
Disclaimer: These agendas have been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the 
Common Council of the City of Marshall. This document does not claim to be complete and is subject to change. 
 

 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
City Council Meeting 

A g e n d a  
Tuesday, August 24, 2021 at 5:30 PM 

City Hall, 344 West Main Street 

OPENING ITEMS 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
1. Consider approval of the minutes of two work sessions held on August 3, August 10 and the regular 

meeting held on July 10, 2021. 
PUBLIC HEARING 
2. 2025 MnDOT College Drive Improvement Project (SP 4204-40) – 1) Public Hearing;  2) Resolution for 

Municipal Consent and Layout Approval 
3. 308 Athens Ave.– 1) Public Hearing regarding a home property tax abatement request 2) Consideration 

of a resolution approving home property tax abatement. 
4. 310 Athens Ave.– 1) Public Hearing regarding a home property tax abatement request 2) Consideration 

of a resolution approving home property tax abatement. 
5. 505 Darlene Dr.– 1) Public Hearing regarding a home property tax abatement request 2) Consideration 

of a resolution approving home property tax abatement. 
AWARD OF BIDS 
6. Project PK-001:  Independence Park Trail Replacement Project – Consider Award of Bids. 
7. Project Z87 - Diversion Channel Slope Repair and Sheet Piling Removal Project – Consider Award of Bid. 
CONSENT AGENDA 
8. Consider annual agreements for renewal with Lutheran Social Services & Marshall Area Senior Citizens 

for 2022 
9. Consider LG220 Application for Exempt Permit for the Buffalo Ridge Gobblers NWTF. 
10. Call for a Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Property Tax Abatement at 306 Athens Ave. 
11. Consider approval of a Temporary On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor License for the Marshall Area Chamber 

of Commerce. 
12. Consider approval of a Temporary On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor License for the Marshall Area YMCA. 
13. Consideration of temporary extension of alcohol license area for Brau Brothers Brewing Company, 

1010 East Southview Drive for Hop Fest on September 10-11, 2021 
14. Consider approval of the bills/project payments 
APPROVAL OF ITEMS PULLED FROM CONSENT 
TABLED ITEM 
15. Consider approval of a Tax Increment Financing Resolution for Suite Liv’n. 
NEW BUSINESS 
16. 2022 Marshall Area Fine Arts Council (MAFAC) Community Contribution Request 
17. Coalition of Greater Minnesota Cities Update 
18. Enterprise Fleet Management 1) Review proposal 2) Consider approval of a fleet management program 

with Enterprise Fleet Management. 
19. Consider Amendment to Purchasing Ordinance 
20. Consider approval of the purchase agreement for 800 N. Hwy. 59 property. 
 

Page 1



City Council Meeting August 24, 2021 Agenda 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Disclaimer: These agendas have been prepared to provide information regarding an upcoming meeting of the 
Common Council of the City of Marshall. This document does not claim to be complete and is subject to change. 
 

COUNCIL REPORTS 
21. Commission/Board Liaison Reports 
22. Councilmember Individual Items 
STAFF REPORTS 
23. City Administrator 
24. Director of Public Works 
25. City Attorney 
INFORMATION ONLY 
26. Information Only 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
27. City Parking Lot Development  
MEETINGS 
28. Upcoming Meetings 
ADJOURN 
 

Page 2



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider approval of the minutes of two work sessions held on August 3, August 10 

and the regular meeting held on July 10, 2021. 

Background 

Information: 

Enclosed are the minutes from two work sessions held on August 3, August 10 and 

the regular meeting held on July 10, 2021. 

Fiscal Impact: None 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

Staff encourages City Council Members to provide any suggested corrections to the 

minutes in writing to City Clerk Kyle Box, prior to the meeting. 

Recommendations: That the minutes of the two work sessions held on August 3, August 10 and the 

regular meeting held on July 10, 2021 be approved as filed with each member and 

that the reading of the same be waived. 

 

Page 3Item 1.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
WORK SESSION 
M I N U T E S  

Tuesday, August 03, 2021 
 

The work session of the Common Council of the City of Marshall was held August 3, 2021, at City Hall, 344 
West Main Street. The meeting was called to order at 4:30 P.M. by Mayor Robert Byrnes. In addition to Byrnes 
the following members were in attendance: Don Edblom, John DeCramer, Russ Labat, and James Lozinski. 
Absent: Craig Schafer and Steve Meister. Staff present included: Sharon Hanson, City Administrator; Annette 
Storm, Director of Administrative Services; Karla Drown, Finance Director; Jason Anderson, Director of Public 
Works/ City Engineer; Scott VanDerMillen, Director of Community Services; Preston Stensrud Park 
Maintenance Superintendent; Bob VanMoer, Wastewater Treatment Facility Superintendent; Scott Truedson, 
Assistant Wastewater Treatment Facility Superintendent; Quinten Brunsvold, Fire Chief; Dean Coudron, Public 
Ways Superintendent and Kyle Box, City Clerk. 
 
2022 Budget – Capital Requests 
Director of Administrative Services Annette Storm introduced the agenda item and provided a brief overview 
of the work session focusing on capital requests. 
 
Wastewater Treatment Facility Superintendent, Bob VanMoer provided an update on the items Wastewater is 
requesting for 2022 including Mill and Overlay for the WWTF plant road and the annual replacement of a lawn 
mower. 
 
Director of Public Works/ City Engineer Jason Anderson provided an update on the items that are being 
requested by Surface Water. Director Anderson listed the Legion Field Stormwater Study: Phase 2, Legion Field 
Park River Stabilization, and City parking lots; Rose, Baldwin & Addison. 
 
Fire Chief, Quinten Brunsvold provided an update on the Fire Department's requests for 2022. Chief Brunsvold 
discussed replacing the card reader system, grass rig skid unit, and a rehabilitation trailer.  
 
Public Ways Superintendent Dean C provided an update on the Street Department Admin's requests for 2022. 
Superintendent Coudron discussed vehicles, a car hoist, and insulation and heating for existing cold storage. 
There was further discussion on future work needed for a potential land purchase. 
 
Park Maintenance Superintendent, Preston Stensrud provided an update on the Parks Department requests 
for 2022. Superintendent Stensrud discussed the Independence Park Bathroom upgrades, and trail 
reconstruction at Independence. There was further discussion on funding for replacing the trails regarding the 
project details, and funding options. Stensrud commented on removing the back parking lot from the 2022 
requests. There was also discussion on a wide area mower, Patriot Park parking lot, Amateur Sports Center 
shelter & storage at the ball fields, and the Park Maintenance shop addition. 
 
Director of Public Works/ City Engineer Jason Anderson provided an update on the Engineering Department's 
requests for 2022 including a new vehicle and GPS. 
 
Director Anderson provided an update on Street projects for 2022 including Halbur Road, RRFB/ Safe routes to 
school, street mill & overlay/ ADA improvements, 1st St/ Greeley St/ Williams St., and UCAP Bus Shelters. 
 
There was additional discussion on a 2023 project regarding Lyon Circle. 
 

Page 4Item 1.



Work Session August 03, 2021 Minutes 
Page 2 of 2 

 

Finance Director Karla Drown provided an overview of the Police Department's request for 2022 including 
vehicles, and LEC building repairs and maintenance. 
 
Director Anderson provided an update on the Airports requests including the Helena Chemical property, 
Tractor with Loader for mowing, Maintenance Building phase 1 and 2, apron reconstruction, runway liquid 
deicer system, self propelled runway snowblower, Airport Zoning ordinance, Maintenance Building Site prep, 
and taxiway sealcoat/ crack fill. Director Anderson added that these projects are largely dependent on state 
funding. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  
At 6:22 P.M., Mayor Byrnes Adjourned the meeting. 

      
          Mayor 

Attest: 
 
     
City Clerk 
 
 

Page 5Item 1.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

M I N U T E S  
Tuesday, August 10, 2021 

 
The regular meeting of the Common Council of the City of Marshall was held August 10, 2021, at City Hall, 344 
West Main Street. The meeting was called to order at 5:30 P.M. by Mayor Robert Byrnes. In addition to Byrnes 
the following members were in attendance: Craig Schafer, Don Edblom, John DeCramer, Russ Labat and James 
Lozinski. Absent: Steve Meister. Staff present included: Sharon Hanson, City Administrator; Dennis Simpson, 
City Attorney; Jason Anderson, Director of Public Works/ City Engineer; Annette Storm, Director of 
Administrative Services; Jim Marshall; Director of Public Safety; Quentin Brunsvold, Fire Chief; Ilya Gutman, 
Plans Examiner/ Assistant Planning & Zoning Administrator and Jasmine DeSmet, Training Facility Coordinator. 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was recited at this time. 
 
There was a general consensus to operate under the current agenda. 
 
Consider approval of the minutes of the regular meeting held on July 27, 2021. 

Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski that the minutes of the 

regular meeting held on July 27, 2021 be approved as filed with each member and that the reading of the 

same be waived. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember 

DeCramer, Councilmember Labat, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 

 

Alley between South Bruce Street and South Minnesota Street - 1) Public Hearing on Resolution Granting 
Petition to Vacate Alley;   2) Consider Resolution Granting Petition to Vacate Alley;  3) Grant of Utility 
Easement. 

A signed petition for vacation of an alley has been received from the owners of all the real property that includes the 

proposed area for vacation. 

Prior to the public hearing and adoption of the resolution granting a petition for vacation, all utility companies were 

contacted.  

For Council review and consideration is a Grant of Permanent Utility Easement over said vacated alley. MMU and 

Charter have permanent facilities located in this area where easement is proposed to be established. Property owner to 

reimburse the City for all costs associated with the vacation. 

Director of Public Works/ City Engineer Jason Anderson introduced the agenda item and provided the background 

information. 

Motion made by Councilmember DeCramer, Seconded by Councilmember Labat to close the public hearing. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, 

Councilmember Labat, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 

Motion made by Councilmember Labat, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski that the Council adopt 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 21-051, which is the Resolution Granting Petition to Vacate Alley. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, 

Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Labat, 

Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 

Page 6Item 1.



City Council Meeting August 10, 2021 Minutes 
Page 2 of 11 

 

Motion made by Councilmember Lozinski, Seconded by Councilmember DeCramer that the Council authorize 

execution of the Grant of Permanent Utility Easement over the eastern 7.5-ft of the vacated 16-ft. alley. Voting Yea: 

Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember 

Labat, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 

 

Project Z84:  Legion Field Park River Stabilization Project – Consider Award of Bid. 

The Redwood River enters the Legion Field Park area adjacent to the park shelter in the southwest portion of the park. 

Over the last several years, the riverbank has eroded several feet closer to the park shelter facilities. Currently, the 

riverbank has eroded immediately behind the water fill spigot and bituminous apron around the park shelter.  

City Engineering staff has identified a stabilization project to reclaim some of the lost riverbank and reinforce the bank 

with riprap rock. Staff originally budgeted $100,000 to perform riverbank stabilization at this location and another 

location adjacent to the bike path on the east portion of the park near the city pool entrance road. Staff removed the 

stabilization adjacent to the bike path to coordinate stabilization needs with potential bike path relocation due to the 

future aquatic center design.  

At the July 13, 2021 meeting, City Council authorized staff to advertise for bids.  

On August 4, 2021, bids were received for the above-referenced project. Three bids were received as shown on the bid 

tabulation. The apparent low bidder is A&C Excavating, LLC in the amount of $37,163.50. 

The project estimate was $65,000, including contingency (10%) and engineering (16%) costs for this stabilization project. 

This project is identified in the 2021 CIP. Based on the bid results, the estimated total project cost, including 5% 

allowance for contingencies and 16% for engineering and administrative costs, is $45,265.14. 

Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski that the Council authorize award 

of the project to A&C Excavating, LLC of Marshall, Minnesota in the amount of $37,163.50. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, 

Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Labat, 

Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 

 

Authorize City Staff to Award Quotes for Curb & Gutter Replacement. 

In 2021, the City Council authorized $625,000 to be used for the annual City Mill and Overlay project of local city streets. 

As part of the project, some sections of curb and gutter are replaced to ensure proper drainage on the newly overlaid 

streets.  

This year’s project included the mill and overlay of the following local streets:  

 London Road (Madrid Street to Channel Parkway)  

 Athens Avenue (Madrid Street to Paris Road)  

 Oslo Avenue (Madrid Street to Dublin Street)  

 Rainbow Drive (Madrid Street to Paris Road)  

 Parkside Drive (Lyon Street to Jewett Street)  

 Woodland Way  

 Garden Circle  

 Baseline Drive (Nwakama Street to Clarice Avenue)  

Next year’s local mill and overlay project will likely include the following streets:  
Page 7Item 1.



City Council Meeting August 10, 2021 Minutes 
Page 3 of 11 

 

 Westwood Drive  

 Ridgeway Road  

 Englewood Road  

 Pinehurst Road  

 Cumberland Road  

 Adobe Road  

 Adobe Circle  

 Prospect Road  

 Prospect Circle  

 Carlson Street  

 Glen Street  

 Peltier Street  

 Simmons Street  

 Tiger Drive  

 Erie Avenue  

At the February 23, 2021 City Council meeting, the City Council awarded the contract at $580,564.28, with a maximum 

expenditure not to exceed $625,000. The local mill and overlay project total costs have come in at approximately 

$590,260. This is largely due to receiving very competitive bids, with the low bid being the best price of bituminous mix 

that we’ve seen in many years.  

At the July 13, 2021 City Council meeting, the City Council authorized City staff to receive quotes for additional curb and 

gutter replacement by utilizing the remaining $34,740 of 2021 overlay project funds to complete curb and gutter 

replacement on routes that will likely be included in a 2022 mill and overlay project.  

Two quotes were received as follows:  

 Hisken Construction, Inc. - Marshall, MN $43,798  

 Musch Construction, Inc. - Pipestone, MN $44,042  

The low quote was received from Hisken Construction, Inc. of Marshall, Minnesota. City staff would propose to reduce 

project quantities to ensure that expenditures do not exceed $34,740. 

No impact beyond allocated 2021 budget of $625,000 for mill and overlay project. 

Motion made by Councilmember Lozinski, Seconded by Councilmember Schafer that the Council award the 

quotes for additional curb and gutter work on next year’s overlay routes to Hisken Construction, Inc. of Marshall, 

Minnesota, in an amount not to exceed $34,740.00. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, 

Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski. Voting Nay: Councilmember 

Labat. The motion Passed. 5-1 

 

Consider Approval of the Consent Agenda 

Councilmember Lozinski requested that item number 6 be removed from the consent agenda in order to abstain. 

Councilmember Labat requested that item number 7 and 10 be removed from the consent agenda for further 

discussion.   

Page 8Item 1.



City Council Meeting August 10, 2021 Minutes 
Page 4 of 11 

 

Motion made by Councilmember DeCramer, Seconded by Councilmember Edblom to approve the consent 

agenda. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember 

DeCramer, Councilmember Labat, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 

Approval for the Wastewater Treatment Facilities Improvement Project – 1) Consider Application for Payment 

No. 25 to Magney Construction, Inc.; 2) Consider Payment of Invoice 0272547 to Bolton & Menk, Inc. 

Approval of the sale of alcoholic beverages at the Independence Park shelter in coordination with Relay for 

Life. 

 

 

Approval of a resolution calling for a public hearing on the proposed assessments for ice, snow and weed 

elimination. 

Approval of a Temporary On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor Licenses for the Convention and Visitors Bureau. 

Approval of the amendment to current MOU with SMSU related to reporting of sexual assaults to local law 

enforcement agency 

Approval to declare vehicle as surplus property for the Marshall Police Department. 

Approval of the bills/project payments 

Call for a Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Property Tax Abatement at 308 Athens. 

Motion made by Councilmember DeCramer, Seconded by Councilmember Edblom To call for a public hearing for 

the proposed property tax abatement. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember 

Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Labat. Voting Abstaining: Councilmember Lozinski. The 

motion Passed. 5-0-1 

 

Introduction of Amendment to Purchasing Ordinance 

Staff are recommending the small change to the purchasing ordinance so the ordinance will be in conformity with the 

purchasing policy. By making the change from $5,000 to reference the purchasing policy it will create efficiency allowing 

changes to the purchasing policy without needing to also change the ordinance.  

Councilmember Labat stated that he was against the $25,000 amount being proposed. 

Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Edblom to introduce the amendments 

to the purchasing ordinance. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, 

Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski. Voting Nay: Councilmember Labat. The motion Passed. 

5-1 

Consider the Resolution certifying unpaid fire service charges. 

Councilmember Labat asked a clarifying question regarding one of the property owners listed on the 

resolution. Fire Chief Quinten Brunsvold clarified that this is the administrative process and that the property 

owners still have the opportunity to pay the amounts owned before its assessed to their taxes. 
Page 9Item 1.



City Council Meeting August 10, 2021 Minutes 
Page 5 of 11 

 

Motion made by Councilmember Labat, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski to adopt Resolution Number 21-

052, a resolution certifying unpaid fire service charges for collection with property taxes. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, 

Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Labat, 

Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 

 

Project Z75/SAP 139-124-004:  South 4th Street Reconstruction Project - 1) Resolution Declaring Cost to Be 
Assessed and Ordering Preparation of Proposed Assessment. 2) Resolution for Hearing on Proposed 
Assessment. 

This project consisted of the following: reconstruction and utility replacement on South 4th Street from the intersection 

of Elaine Avenue and South 4th Street to the intersection of Country Club Drive and South 4th Street. Utility work 

included sanitary sewer, watermain, and storm sewer replacement. This project also included new curb and gutter, new 

5-ft. sidewalk on the west side of the street, driveway aprons, water services, and sewer services to the right-of-way. 

“Resolution Declaring Cost to be Assessed and Ordering the Preparation of the Proposed Assessment” for the project. 

The following is a breakdown of the proposed project funding. The costs shown below include 16% for engineering and 

administrative costs, for a total project cost of $2,968,379.94. The following is a proposed breakdown of the project 

funding:  

Wastewater Fund $594,332  
MMU $784,329  
Surface Water Management Utility $731,750  
Mn/DOT $135,038  
City Participation (MSAS) $514,578  
Assessed to Property Owners $343,391  
Total Project Amount $2,968,380  
 

“Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment,” setting the hearing date for the proposed assessments on September 

14, 2021 for the above-referenced project.  

Per the current Fee Schedule, the assessment interest rate is calculated using the most recent bond interest rate and 

adding 2% for administrative costs. The 2020 GO Bond interest rate was 0.84% plus 2% results in a 2.84% assessment 

interest rate.  

The term of the assessment repayment is proposed by staff to be 8 years. The City has no formal written policy on the 

term but has followed an administrative past practice to generally match the assessment repayment to the bond 

repayment term assuming a typical reconstruction project with assessments reaching near the maximum of the 

residential assessment rate. If the assessment is substantially higher in cases such as commercial assessments the term 

may be appropriate to increase. Alternatively, on smaller assessment projects consideration could be made to shorten 

the assessment term. One other item to note is that if additional principal is paid each year the interest is recalculated 

annually to address the payments. Therefore, there is no penalty for individuals to repay on a more accelerated 

schedule if they so choose. 

Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember DeCramer that the Council adopt 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2021-054, which provides for the “Resolution Declaring Cost to be Assessed and Ordering the 

Preparation of the Proposed Assessment” for Project Z75/SAP 139-124-004: South 4th Street Reconstruction Project. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, 

Councilmember Labat, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 
Page 10Item 1.



City Council Meeting August 10, 2021 Minutes 
Page 6 of 11 

 

Motion made by Councilmember Edblom, Seconded by Councilmember Schafer that the Council adopt 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 2021-055, which provides for the “Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment” for Project 

Z75/SAP 139-124-004: South 4th Street Reconstruction Project setting the hearing date on the proposed assessments 

for September 14, 2021. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, 

Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Labat, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 

 

Project Z76:  South 1st Street Reconstruction Project - 1) Resolution Declaring Cost to Be Assessed and 
Ordering Preparation of Proposed Assessment.  2) Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment. 

This project consisted of reconstruction and utility replacement on South 1st Street generally between Southview Drive 

and George Street. Water, sanitary sewer, and storm sewer catch basins were replaced along South 1st Street in this 

area. Sidewalk was added along the west side of the street to provide connection to existing sidewalk north of the 

project area on South 1st Street and existing sidewalk at Southview Drive. This project also included new curb and 

gutter, driveway aprons, and water services. In addition to the utility replacement and street reconstruction on South 1 

st Street, sanitary sewer force main improvements were made at the intersection of South 1st Street and DeSchepper 

Street. 

“Resolution Declaring Cost to be Assessed and Ordering the Preparation of the Proposed Assessment” for the project. 

The following is a breakdown of the proposed project funding. The costs shown below include 16% for engineering and 

administrative costs, for a total project cost of $730,539.96. The following is a proposed breakdown of the project 

funding:  

Wastewater Fund $164,077  
MMU $213,293  
Surface Water Management Utility $73,850  
City Participation (Ad Valorem) $170,292  
Assessed to Property Owners $109,028  
Total Project Amount $730,540  
 
“Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment,” setting the hearing date for the proposed assessments on September 

14, 2021 for the above-referenced project.  

Per the current Fee Schedule, the assessment interest rate is calculated using the most recent bond interest rate and 

adding 2% for administrative costs. The 2020 GO Bond interest rate was 0.84% plus 2% results in a 2.84% assessment 

interest rate.  

The term of the assessment repayment is proposed by staff to be 8 years. The City has no formal written policy on the 

term but has followed an administrative past practice to generally match the assessment repayment to the bond 

repayment term assuming a typical reconstruction project with assessments reaching near the maximum of the 

residential assessment rate. If the assessment is substantially higher in cases such as commercial assessments the term 

may be appropriate to increase. Alternatively, on smaller assessment projects consideration could be made to shorten 

the assessment term. One other item to note is that if additional principal is paid each year the interest is recalculated 

annually to address the payments. Therefore, there is no penalty for individuals to repay on a more accelerated 

schedule if they so choose. 

Motion made by Councilmember Lozinski, Seconded by Councilmember Labat that the Council adopt 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 21-056, which provides for the “Resolution Declaring Cost to be Assessed and Ordering the 

Preparation of the Proposed Assessment” for Project Z76: South 1st Street Reconstruction Project. Voting Yea: Mayor 

Page 11Item 1.



City Council Meeting August 10, 2021 Minutes 
Page 7 of 11 

 

Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Labat, 

Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 

Motion made by Councilmember Edblom, Seconded by Councilmember Schafer that the Council adopt 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 21-057, which provides for the “Resolution for Hearing on Proposed Assessment” for Project Z76: 

South 1st Street Reconstruction Project setting the hearing date on the proposed assessments for September 14, 2021. 

Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, 

Councilmember Labat, Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 

Independence Park Projects – 1) Project PK-001:  Trail Replacement Project - Consider Authorization to 

Advertise for Bids;  2) Stormwater Pond Expansion – Consider Acceptance of Proposal from Bolton & Menk, 

Inc. 

The multi-use trail within Independence Park is a bituminous-surfaced trail that is approximately 10-FT wide that travels 

throughout the entire park. The trail pavement is in poor condition and several areas do not meet ADA requirements. 

There are numerous locations where surface defects make the trail difficult to traverse, and numerous other locations 

where trail cross slopes are severe, resulting in hazardous conditions.  

City staff has worked quickly to prepare construction plans for trail reconstruction to help ensure that a project could be 

completed prior to the City’s 150th Celebration in August 2022.  

Further, City staff believes it would be prudent to complete an Independence Park Pond forebay expansion project in 

coordination with the trail replacement project. The forebay expansion would create additional pond storage volume in 

the park while also creating a ponding environment that promotes solids settlement (stormwater treatment) within the 

forebay area with the goal of reducing future pond areas that will require dredging. Coordinating the projects helps to 

ensure that new trail is installed in the proper location and investments into trail pavement and new culvert crossing are 

preserved. 

City staff has prepared a set of construction plans to reconstruct the existing trail network within the park as follows:  

- The reconstructed trail is proposed to be a 10-FT wide, concrete-surfaced trail, with few exceptions.  

- The trail in the “center island area” between the three ponds is proposed at 8-FT wide, and the trail north of the 

ballfields that leads to the horseshoe facilities is proposed to be 6-FT wide.  

- The area surrounding the ballfield concessions building and the ballfield seating area is proposed to be replaced with 

concrete. The existing gravel area along the first base of the west field and the third base line of the east field is 

proposed to be removed and replaced with grass. The fencing surrounding the ballfield concessions area is proposed to 

be removed as well.  

- The new trail would meet current ADA standards for accessibility.  

The Base Bid package will include all trail portions, with the exception of the north-south connection from Lyon Street to 

the gazebo. The project is planned to be bid with this section as an Alternate. Council would have the options to award 

the Base Bid package only, both Base Bid and Alternate together, or make no award.  

To help accomplish the goal of an August 2022 completion, staff is proposing to separate the Independence Park Trail 

Replacement Project (PK-001) from the Independence Park Pond Forebay Expansion Project. The Independence Park 

Trail Replacement Project (PK-001) would be bid first because plans are ready. The Independence Park Pond Forebay 

Expansion Project would be bid in September and likely awarded in early October once plans are finalized.  

Page 12Item 1.



City Council Meeting August 10, 2021 Minutes 
Page 8 of 11 

 

For Council review and consideration is a proposal prepared by Bolton & Menk, Inc. of Mankato, Minnesota, for the 

Independence Park stormwater pond expansion. Bolton & Menk’s proposal covers design costs for the pond expansion, 

outlet structure, and trail connection over the outlet structure.  

Staff is proposing the following schedule for PK-001:  
8/10 – Authorize Advertise for Bid  
8/13 – Publish in Newspaper  
8/24 – Open Bids at 10 am; award contract at Council  
8/30 – Notice to Proceed (if paperwork received)  
7/29/22 – Contract End Date  
 
Staff is proposing the following schedule for pond expansion project:  
8/11 – Bolton & Menk Notice to Proceed  
9/1 – Preliminary Plans to City  
9/10 – Final Plans to City  
9/14 – Council Authorize Advertise to Bid  
9/28 or 10/12 – Council Award Contract  
7/29/22 – Contract End Date 
 
Independence Park Trail Replacement Project (PK-001): Engineer’s Estimate for the construction of the Base Bid package 

is $422,875. A total cost of $532,822.50 includes contingency (10%) and engineering (16%).  

The Estimate for the Alternate Bid is $62,062.50. A total cost of $78,198.75 includes contingency and engineering.  

Independence Park Pond Forebay Expansion Project: The total estimated not to exceed cost for project design as 

provided in the included Bolton & Menk proposal is $10,000. The preliminary estimated cost for pond expansion, culvert 

installation, and trail connection is $189,500, of which, $164,000 is estimated to be eligible for funding through the 

Surface Water Management Utility (SWMU). 

Motion made by Councilmember DeCramer, Seconded by Councilmember Edblom that the Council authorize 

advertisement for bids for Project PK-001: Independence Park Trail Replacement Project. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, 

Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Lozinski 

Voting Nay: Councilmember Labat. The motion Passed. 5-1 

Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Lozinski that the Council accept the 

Proposal for Independence Park Pond Forebay Expansion Project for a total estimated not to exceed hourly fee in the 

amount of $10,000. Additional services will be provided on an hourly basis upon approval by City staff. Voting Yea: 

Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember 

Lozinski Voting Nay: Councilmember Labat. The motion Passed. 5-1 

 

Consider the Resolution ordering the abatement of several hazardous buildings located in the Broadmoor 

Valley Mobile Home Park in the city of Marshall, Minnesota 

Council and Staff have long been aware of the deteriorating residential conditions of properties located within the 

Broadmoor Valley mobile home park. Several residents presented information to Council at the July 13, 2021 Council 

Meeting. The presentation included photographs of hazardous/substandard buildings presently located at Broadmoor 

Valley. Subsequent to that meeting, building officials have viewed the properties to confirm present condition of the 

deteriorating condition of properties.  

Page 13Item 1.



City Council Meeting August 10, 2021 Minutes 
Page 9 of 11 

 

Based upon statements and photographs provided, and based upon prior building official inspections, a current list has 

been put together regarding several current problematic residences within the mobile home park. A consolidated list of 

17 structures requiring either demolition or repair has been put together to address an immediate need for action, City 

Attorney is recommending that City Council pass a resolution requiring the immediate demolition and removal of four 

identified uninhabitable properties presently located at the Broadmoor Valley mobile home park. A building inspection 

from Building Official, Ilya Gutman from Thursday, August 5, 2021 confirmed that the four properties identified in the 

resolution need to be razed and removed immediately. In the council packet is a proposed resolution authorizing City 

Attorney to take the necessary steps to serve the abatement order. Minnesota Law provides the property owner 30 days 

to accomplish the abatement as ordered. If the abatement does not occur as ordered, this matter will proceed through 

the Lyon County District Court for enforcement. 

City Attorney, with consultation from Attorney Jason Hill of Kennedy & Graven is proposing to proceed to obtain an 

administrative search warrant authorizing access to the remaining properties on the consolidated list of 17 properties as 

put together. It is anticipated that building official will obtain permission to inspect the properties for compliance with 

either the Minnesota Housing or Building Code. Deficiencies will be identified, and it is anticipated that a subsequent 

abatement order will be prepared for Council either addressing additional removal or repair of properties.  

Minnesota Law does allow for enforcement through court action. If the owner does not abate the hazardous or 

substandard buildings, City can apply for court order authorizing the City to abate the problem and abate the costs back 

to the property owner.  

Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember DeCramer to adopt Resolution Number 

21-058, a Resolution ordering the abatement of several hazardous buildings located in the Broadmoor Valley Mobile 

Home Park in the city of Marshall, Minnesota and authorize staff to insert legal descriptions. Voting Yea: Mayor 

Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Labat, 

Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 

 

Call for a Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Property Tax Abatement at 310 Athens. 

Motion made by Councilmember Schafer, Seconded by Councilmember Edblom to call for the public hearing 

at 310 Athens. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember 

DeCramer, Councilmember Labat. Voting Abstaining: Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Passed. 5-0-1 

 

Call for a Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Property Tax Abatement at 505 Darlene Dr. 

Motion made by Councilmember Edblom, Seconded by Councilmember DeCramer to call for the public 

hearing for a home tax abatement at 505 Darlene Dr. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, 

Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Labat. Voting Abstaining: 

Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Passed. 5-0-1 

 

Consider Appointments to Various City Boards, Commissions, and Authorities. 

Mayor Byrnes recommended the following applicants for the following positions. The applications met with the City 

Council on July 27 and August 10.  

Library Board, Saar Rappana – expired term 12/31/22  

Policy Advisory Board, Kelly Wasberg – unexpired term 5/31/23  
Page 14Item 1.



City Council Meeting August 10, 2021 Minutes 
Page 10 of 11 

 

Public Housing Commission, Janelle Sailer – unexpired term 5/31/26 

Motion made by Councilmember Edblom, Seconded by Councilmember Labat to approve the nominations to 

various City Boards, Commissions, and Authorities. Voting Yea: Mayor Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, 

Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Labat, Councilmember Lozinski. The 

motion Carried. 6-0 

 

Commission/Board Liaison Reports  
Byrnes  No Report 
 
Schafer  No Report 
 
Edblom Planning Commission met and is reviewing the finances and budgets. There is also work going  
  on with the elevator and fire alarm systems. 
   
DeCramer  Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Commission is continuing to plan welcome week with events being  
  held on September 18. 
 
Labat  No Report 
   
Lozinski No Report 
 
Councilmember Individual Items 
Councilmember Lozinski discussed a trip to Wilmar, MN to tour different apartment complexes and low-
income housing facility with Administrator Hanson, Director Deutz and Councilmember Schafer. Member 
Lozinski also commented that a stop was made at a destination park that Wilmar has on Robbins Island. 
 
Member Lozinski also commented on a negative experience a family member had in Marshall. Member 
Lozinski challenged to community to be accepting of everyone.  
 
Councilmember Labat asked for an update on the Helena property and the MAHA contract. Attorney Simpson 
commented that the MAHA contract will be at the first meeting in September. 
 
Councilmember DeCramer commented that Welcoming Week will take place in September and the event is 
just that, an event to welcome everyone to our community. Member DeCramer also mention the Rotary 
pancake breakfast that will be held at the fire hall during Sounds of Summer. Funds will be donated towards 
an inclusive playground in the community. 
 
Councilmember Schafer also challenged the Community in response to member Lozinski’ s individual report. 
 
Mayor Byrnes discussed the inclusive playground in Wilmar and its transformation in that area. Byrnes also 
commented on Marshall 150th celebration in 2022. 
 
City Administrator 
City Administrator Sharon Hanson commented on the Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Commission and how 
the commission will respond to instances and communication. Administrator Hanson also discussed renewed 

Page 15Item 1.



City Council Meeting August 10, 2021 Minutes 
Page 11 of 11 

 

interest on Block 11, a recent meeting with MAHA, and continued discussion on the expansion of the sales tax 
to include the aquatic center and possible park projects. 
 
Director of Public Works 
Director of Public Works/ City Engineer Jason Anderson commented on a MnDOT Project on Hwy 59 will be 
delayed in Marshall due to funding issues. Director Anderson provided an update on local construction 
projects. 
 
City Attorney 
City Attorney Dennis Simpson commented on further action regarding Broadmoor Valley and will work on an 
update with Helena Chemical. 
 
Administrative Report 
There were no questions on the Administrative brief. 
 
Information Only 
There were no questions on the information items. 
 
Upcoming Meetings 
There were no questions on the upcoming meetings. 
 
Adjourn 
Motion made by Councilmember Lozinski, Seconded by Councilmember Edblom to adjourn. Voting Yea: Mayor 
Byrnes, Councilmember Schafer, Councilmember Edblom, Councilmember DeCramer, Councilmember Labat, 
Councilmember Lozinski. The motion Carried. 6-0 
 

      
          Mayor 

Attest: 
 
     
City Clerk 
 

 

Page 16Item 1.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: PUBLIC HEARING 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: 2025 MnDOT College Drive Improvement Project (SP 4204-40) – 1) Public Hearing;  
2) Resolution for Municipal Consent and Layout Approval 

Background 

Information: 

MnDOT is proceeding with plans to complete State Project 4204-40, the 
reconstruction of MN 19/College Drive from South 4th Street to Bruce Street within 
our city limits. The project is a comprehensive reconstruction project that includes 
new pavement, sidewalk, and city utilities. Some notable changes include the 
addition of a roundabout, the removal of a traffic signal, the addition of RRFB 
pedestrian crossings, optimized road widths, access review, and strategically placed 
center medians. In accordance with State Statutes, MnDOT is required to receive the 
City’s approval of the proposed layout by Resolution of the City Council.  
 
MnDOT has made significant efforts to engage with the public, key stakeholders, and 
the City Council leading up to this request to help achieve project support and obtain 
“municipal consent”. City Engineering staff has met numerous times with the MnDOT 
team to review and comment throughout the process.  
 
Included with this memorandum is a “Municipal Consent Packet” as provided by Jesse 
Vlaminck, MnDOT Project Manager. The packet includes a memorandum, applicable 
State Statutes, project schedule, project cost estimate, and resolutions for the city to 
utilize for offering municipal consent. Also included with MnDOT’s submittal is the 
final layout to be used for the project. The final layout provides the basis for the 
project as it highlights the general concept for the project by identifying all key 
features and access points for the highway. 
 
State Statutes required the following: 

- City to schedule a public hearing within 15 days of receiving the final layout 
(by 7/28/21) and the public hearing was scheduled at the 07/13/2021 City 
Council meeting to be held 08/24/2021 

- Conduct a public hearing within 60 days of receiving the final layout 
(by 9/11/21) and the public hearing is being held at this 08/24/2021 City 
Council meeting 

 
State Statutes will require the following: 

- Approve or disapprove the layout by resolution within 90 days of the public 
hearing (by 12/10/21).  

 
MnDOT Project Manager, Jesse Vlaminck is present at this meeting to help present 
this topic and answer City Council questions. Jesse will help explain the municipal 
consent process and guide Council expectations moving forward.  
 

Page 17Item 2.



Fiscal Impact: No fiscal impact at this time.  
 
A future estimated total city cost of $3,895,661 at time of College Drive 
reconstruction project. All improvements may be assessed according to the current 
Special Assessment Policy, including but not limited to participation from Marshall 
Municipal Utilities, Wastewater Department, Surface Water Management Utility 
Fund and Ad Valorem.  Final approval of the project must include determination of 
funding sources.   

Alternative/ Variations: No alternative actions recommended. 

Recommendation: that the Council adopt RESOLUTION NUMBER 21-059, which provides for approval 
of the presented MnDOT layout.  

 

Page 18Item 2.



Page 19Item 2.



Hwy 19/College Dr. Marshall Reconstruction Project
MEMORIAL PARK

FOR MORE INFORMATION

To learn more about this project and sign up to receive project emails and text updates 
visit the project website: www.mndot.gov/d8/projects/hwy19marshall

Scan the QR Code to visit the 
virtual open house and see 
the recommended layout!

Driveway closure

What is an RRFB?
A rectangular rapid flashing 
beacon (RRFB) is a safety 
measure with flashing signals 
to alert drivers of pedestrians 
crossing.

N
S High St

Park Ave

3rd St

College Dr./Hwy 19

Medians provide a refuge for pedestrians 
crossing at 3rd St. and at Park Ave. that 
provide a direct connection to Liberty Park.

6’
Walk

6’
Walk

4’ 4’ 7’14’
Drive lane

14’
Drive lane

13’
Turn lane

S Bruce St

S Hill St

S M
innesota St

S W
hitney St

College Dr./Hwy 19

Boulevards narrowed to provide better 
alignment with street connection 
on north side of College Dr./Hwy 19 
and create a narrower crossing for 
pedestrians.

Median provides 
a refuge for 
pedestrians 
crossing. An RRFB 
will be installed.

Boulevard Boulevard

Country Club Dr

W
 Saratoga St

W
 G

reeley St

S 4
th

 St

S 2nd St

College Dr./ 

Hwy 19

Roundabout

Why a roundabout?
A roundabout will enhance safety and reduce 
traffic delay at this intersection. 

Bumpouts added to 
all corners to narrow 
roadway crossing for 
pedestrians at 4th St. 

Timmerman Dr. will be converted to one-way 
roadway and will provide additional parking.

Artillery Dr. will be closed.

Bump-outs added to 
north side of Greeley St.

What are bumpouts?
Bumpouts are curb extensions 
that improve pedestrian safety at 
intersections by reducing crossing 
distances and increasing pedestrian 
visibility at corners.

Driveway closure
W

 M
ain St

M
arvin Schw

an M
em

 Dr

W
 Lyon St

W
 M

arshall St

59

College Dr./Hwy 19

Parking removed to 
provide wider sidewalks 
and adequate turn lanes 
for Main St signals.

Replace traffic signal with stop 
signs on Lyon St.

Right-in/right-out

Right-in/right-out

What is an RRFB?
A rectangular rapid flashing 
beacon (RRFB) is a safety 
measure with flashing signals 
to alert drivers of pedestrians 
crossing.

Parking removed to provide 
narrower crossing for pedestrians 
at Marvin Schwan Memorial Dr.

Median provides 
a refuge for 
pedestrians 
crossing. An RRFB 
will be installed.

N

10’
Sidewalk

4’ 8’ 13’
Turn lane

13’
Median

13’
Sidewalk

11’
Drive lane

12’
Drive lane

10’
walk

10’
Turn lane

10’
Parking

13’
Sidewalk

13’ 12’
Turn lane Turn lane

11’
Drive lane

4’

4’ 6’ 8’ 9’ 7’ 6’ 3’14’ 14’13’
walk walkDrive lane Drive laneTurn lane ParkingBoulevard Boulevard

12’
Drive lane

12’
Drive lane

10’
Parking

10’
Parking

5’6’4’ 3’8’
walk

6’
walkBoulevardBoulevard

Proposed Roadway Layout 

Boulevard

Page 20Item 2.

www.mndot.gov/d8/projects/hwy19marshall


Municipal Consent

SP 4204-40

City of Marshall

July 13, 2021

Municipal consent submittal letter

SP 4204-40 Layout 1A - Separate file (Signed copy to be hand delivered)

State Statues 161.162 through 161.167

Project schedule

Current Cost Estimate

Sample Resolution for Municipal Consent

Sample Resolution to Waive Municipal Consent

Municipal Consent procedure - Separate file

Page 21Item 2.



District 8
2505 Transportation Road

Willmar, MN 56201
320-231-5195

July 6, 2021

Robert J. Byrnes
Mayor
City of Marshall
344 West Main Street 
Marshall, MN 5658

RE: Request for City Approval (Municipal Consent) of the Final Layout for SP 4204-40

Dear Mayor Byrnes  

MnDOT is proceeding with plans to complete State Project 4204-40, Reconstruction of Hwy 19 
from 4th Street to Bruce Street. In accordance with Minnesota Statute 161.164, I am submitting for 
City approval the project’s Final Layout, identified as Layout No. 1A, S.P. 4204-40.

The City’s approval (municipal consent) is required for this project because it alters access (Many 
access will be closed and /or altered to right in right out), requires acquisition of permanent rights 
of way (permanent right of way will be obtained to bring city alleys to city access standards). 
Municipal consent of MnDOT projects is described in Minnesota Statutes 161.162 through 161.167 
(attached).

Approval or disapproval of the final layout is by resolution of the City Council. (A sample resolution 
is attached). However, if the City neither approves nor disapproves the final layout within 90 days 
of the public hearing, the layout is deemed approved (per MN Statute 161.164).

The deadlines (per MN Statute 161.164) for the City’s responsibilities regarding municipal consent 
of the attached layout are as follows, based on a submittal date of the final layout to the City of 
[7/13/2021]: 

 Within 15 days of receiving the final layout, schedule a public hearing (by 7/28/2021).
 Within 60 days of receiving the final layout, conduct the public hearing (by 9/11/2021).
 Provide at least 30-days’ notice of the public hearing.
 Within 90 days of the public hearing, approve or disapprove the layout by resolution (by 

12/10/2021). 

MnDOT will attend the public hearing to present the final layout and answer questions, as required 
by statute. 

Page 22Item 2.



District 8
2505 Transportation Road

Willmar, MN 56201
320-231-5195

Project Purpose 
This project has a deteriorated pavement, indicated by a sub-standard Ride Quality Index (RQI) 
rating. The RQI rating is projected to continue to decline. This project also has pedestrian access 
facilities, ramps and sidewalks that do not meet the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
standards. This project also has aging underground city utilities; sewer and water mains that are in 
poor condition.

The purpose of this project is to:
A) Improve the RQI on this project which will help the entire Highway System achieve the 

Pavement Performance Targets, and to improve pavement structural integrity and reduce 
maintenance costs.

B) Upgrade the pedestrian ramps/sidewalk to meet ADA standards
C) Facilitate replacement of the deteriorating underground utilities.

Project Description
SP 4204-40 will be a full reconstruction of Trunk Highway (TH) 19 from 4th Street to approximately 
134’ west of Bruce Street in Marshall, MN. The project will include but not limited to Concrete 
Paving, a Roundabout at the intersection of Hwy 19, Country Club Drive, and South 2nd Street, 
new Signals at Saratoga Street and Main Street (TH 59), Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons 
(RRFB), Bridge approach panel work at Bridge No. 5083, Lighting, Storm Sewer, City utilities 
(Sanitary and Water), and some additional sidewalk and pedestrian curb ramps from Marlene 
Street to 4th Street and at Bruce Street.

Planned Project Schedule
SP 4204-40 is planned to be let on November 22, 2024, Construction is to begin the spring of 2025 
and is anticipated to take up to two construction seasons to complete all work, there will be detours 
and staged construction. 

City’s Estimated Project Costs 
Some project costs are the City’s responsibility, as detailed in MnDOT’s cost participation policy. 
(See the policy and the Cost Participation and Maintenance with Local Units of Government 
Manual at MnDOT’s this website: http://www.dot.state.mn.us/policy/financial/fm011.html). 

Attached is MnDOT’s current estimate of the City’s costs for S.P. 4204-40. It also shows MnDOT’s 
estimated costs. 

As shown on the attached, the City of Marshall’s total cost participation for SP 4204-40 is 
estimated to be $3,895,661.

Page 23Item 2.

http://www.dot.state.mn.us/policy/financial/fm011.html


District 8
2505 Transportation Road

Willmar, MN 56201
320-231-5195

The alleys between West Lyon and West Marshall streets will require additional Right of Way 
(R/W) to be built to city standards. It is the intent for MnDOT to obtain the R/W to construct the 
alleys to standard and then turn back to the city.

City’s Maintenance Responsibilities
The City of Marshall will also be responsible for the following:

 Approach legs to the intersections to the outside edge of the shoulder line or outer radius of 
roundabouts.

 Removal of snow from parking lanes.
 Responsible for maintenance of Parking- related markings installed on MnDOT roadways.
 Routine maintenance of all sidewalks and shared use paths, including but not limited to 

patching, snow and ice control/removal, sweeping, debris removal, vegetation control, 
signs, and pavement markings.

MnDOT will be responsible for the following:
 Maintenance activities associated with all trunk highway roadway and shoulder items. 
 Non-routine storm sewer system maintenance is defined as removal of sediment from the 

pipes, replacement, reconstruction, rehabilitation, or improvement of portions of storm water 
drainage infrastructure such as castings, manhole or catch basin structures, and pipe 
segments or aprons, including rip-rap. 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions about this submittal.

Sincerely,

Jesse Vlaminck /s/

Jesse Vlaminck
Project Manager
MnDOT District 8
2505 Transportation Road
Willmar, MN 56201
320-212-0206
jesse.vlaminck@state.mn.us

Page 24Item 2.

mailto:jesse.vlaminck@state.mn.us


District 8
2505 Transportation Road

Willmar, MN 56201
320-231-5195

Attachments:
Final Layout for SP 4204-40, dated 6/30/2021
MN Statutes 161.162 – 161.167
Estimated Project Costs
Project Schedule 
Sample City Resolution
Sample City Waiver Resolution

cc:
Sharon Hanson – Marshall City Administrator
Jason Anderson – Marshall City Engineer

Page 25Item 2.



161.162 DEFINITIONS.

Subdivision 1. Applicability. The terms in sections 161.162 to 161.167 have the meanings given them
in this section and section 160.02.

Subd. 2. Final layout. (a) "Final layout" means geometric layouts and supplemental drawings that show
the location, character, dimensions, access, and explanatory information about the highway construction or
improvement work being proposed. "Final layout" includes, where applicable, traffic lanes, shoulders, trails,
intersections, signals, bridges, approximate right-of-way limits, existing ground line and proposed grade
line of the highway, turn lanes, access points and closures, sidewalks, proposed design speed, noise walls,
transit considerations, auxiliary lanes, interchange locations, interchange types, sensitive areas, existing
right-of-way, traffic volume and turning movements, location of storm water drainage, location of municipal
utilities, project schedule and estimated cost, and the name of the project manager.

(b) "Final layout" does not include a cost participation agreement. For purposes of this subdivision "cost
participation agreement" means a document signed by the commissioner and the governing body of a
municipality that states the costs of a highway construction project that will be paid by the municipality.

Subd. 3. Final construction plan. "Final construction plan" means the set of technical drawings for the
construction or improvement of a trunk highway provided to contractors for bids.

Subd. 4. Governing body. "Governing body" means the elected council of a municipality.

Subd. 5. Municipality. "Municipality" means a statutory or home rule charter city.

History: 2001 c 191 s 3; 2002 c 364 s 3

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

161.162MINNESOTA STATUTES 20201

Page 26Item 2.



161.163 HIGHWAY PROJECT REVIEW.

Subdivision 1. Projects requiring review. Sections 161.162 to 161.167 apply only to projects that alter
access, increase or reduce highway traffic capacity, or require acquisition of permanent rights-of-way.

Subd. 2. Traffic safety measures. Nothing contained in sections 161.162 to 161.167 limits the power
of the commissioner to regulate traffic or install traffic-control devices or other safety measures on trunk
highways located within municipalities regardless of their impact on access or traffic capacity or on the need
for additional right-of-way.

Subd. 3. Construction program. Nothing contained in sections 161.162 to 161.167 limits the
commissioner's discretion to determine priority and programming of trunk highway projects.

History: 2001 c 191 s 4

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

161.163MINNESOTA STATUTES 20201

Page 27Item 2.



161.164 FINAL LAYOUT APPROVAL PROCESS.

Subdivision 1. Submission of final layout. Before proceeding with the construction, reconstruction, or
improvement of any route on the trunk highway system lying within any municipality, the commissioner
shall submit to its governing body a final layout and project report covering the purpose, route location, and
proposed design of the highway. The final layout must be submitted as part of a report containing any
supporting data that the commissioner deems helpful to the governing body in reviewing the final layout
submitted. The supporting data must include a good-faith cost estimate of all the costs in which the governing
body is expected to participate. The final layout must be submitted before final decisions are reached so that
meaningful early input can be obtained from the municipality.

Subd. 2. Governing body action. (a) Within 15 days of receiving a final layout from the commissioner,
the governing body shall schedule a public hearing on the final layout. The governing body shall, within 60
days of receiving a final layout from the commissioner, conduct a public hearing at which the Department
of Transportation shall present the final layout for the project. The governing body shall give at least 30
days' notice of the public hearing.

(b) Within 90 days from the date of the public hearing, the governing body shall approve or disapprove
the final layout in writing, as follows:

(1) If the governing body approves the final layout or does not disapprove the final layout in writing
within 90 days, in which case the final layout is deemed to be approved, the commissioner may continue
the project development.

(2) If the final construction plans contain changes in access, traffic capacity, or acquisition of permanent
right-of-way from the final layout approved by the governing body, the commissioner shall resubmit the
portion of the final construction plans where changes were made to the governing body. The governing body
must approve or disapprove the changes, in writing, within 60 days from the date the commissioner submits
them.

(3) If the governing body disapproves the final layout, the commissioner may make modifications
requested by the municipality, decide not to proceed with the project, or refer the final layout to an appeal
board. The appeal board shall consist of one member appointed by the commissioner, one member appointed
by the governing body, and a third member agreed upon by both the commissioner and the governing body.
If the commissioner and the governing body cannot agree upon the third member, the chief justice of the
supreme court shall appoint a third member within 14 days of the request of the commissioner to appoint
the third member.

Subd. 3. Appeal board. Within 30 days after referral of the final layout, the appeal board shall hold a
hearing at which the commissioner and the governing body may present the case for or against approval of
the final layout referred. Not later than 60 days after the hearing, the appeal board shall recommend approval,
recommend approval with modifications, or recommend disapproval of the final layout, making additional
recommendations consistent with state and federal requirements as it deems appropriate. It shall submit a
written report containing its findings and recommendations to the commissioner and the governing body.

History: 2001 c 191 s 5

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

161.164MINNESOTA STATUTES 20201

Page 28Item 2.



161.165 COMMISSIONER ACTION; INTERSTATE HIGHWAYS.

Subdivision 1. Applicability. This section applies to interstate highways.

Subd. 2. Action on approved final layout. (a) If the appeal board recommends approval of the final
layout or does not submit its findings and recommendations within 60 days of the hearing, in which case
the final layout is deemed approved, the commissioner may prepare substantially similar final construction
plans and proceed with the project.

(b) If the final construction plans change access, traffic capacity, or acquisition of permanent right-of-way
from the final layout approved by the appeal board, the commissioner shall submit the portion of the final
construction plans that shows the changes, to the governing body for its approval or disapproval under
section 161.164, subdivision 2.

Subd. 3. Action on final layout approved with changes. (a) If, within 60 days, the appeal board
recommends approval of the final layout with modifications, the commissioner may:

(1) prepare final construction plans with the recommended modifications, notify the governing body,
and proceed with the project;

(2) decide not to proceed with the project; or

(3) prepare final construction plans substantially similar to the final layout referred to the appeal board,
and proceed with the project. The commissioner shall, before proceeding with the project, file a written
report with the governing body and the appeal board stating fully the reasons for doing so.

(b) If the final construction plans contain changes in access or traffic capacity or require additional
acquisition of permanent right-of-way from the final layout reviewed by the appeal board or the governing
body, the commissioner shall resubmit the portion of the final construction plans that shows the changes,
to the governing body for its approval or disapproval under section 161.164, subdivision 2.

Subd. 4. Action on disapproved final layout. (a) If, within 60 days, the appeal board recommends
disapproval of the final layout, the commissioner may either:

(1) decide not to proceed with the project; or

(2) prepare final construction plans substantially similar to the final layout referred to the appeal board,
notify the governing body and the appeal board, and proceed with the project. Before proceeding with the
project, the commissioner shall file a written report with the governing body and the appeal board stating
fully the reasons for doing so.

(b) If the final construction plans contain changes in access or traffic capacity or require additional
acquisition of permanent right-of-way from the final layout reviewed by the appeal board or the governing
body, the commissioner shall resubmit the portion of the final construction plans that shows the changes,
to the governing body for its approval or disapproval under section 161.164, subdivision 2.

Subd. 5. Final construction plans issued. The commissioner shall send a complete set of final
construction plans to the municipality at least 45 days before the bid opening for informational purposes.

History: 2001 c 191 s 6

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

161.165MINNESOTA STATUTES 20201

Page 29Item 2.



161.166 COMMISSIONER ACTION; OTHER HIGHWAYS.

Subdivision 1. Applicability. This section applies to trunk highways that are not interstate highways.

Subd. 2. Action on approved final layout. If the appeal board recommends approval of the final layout
or does not submit its findings or recommendations within 60 days of the hearing, in which case the final
layout is deemed approved, the commissioner may prepare substantially similar final construction plans and
proceed with the project. If the final construction plans change access or traffic capacity or require additional
acquisition of right-of-way from the final layout approved by the appeal board, the commissioner shall
submit the portion of the final construction plan that shows the changes, to the governing body for its approval
or disapproval under section 161.164, subdivision 2.

Subd. 3. Action on final layout approved with changes. (a) If the appeal board approves the final
layout with modifications, the commissioner may:

(1) prepare final construction plans including the modifications, notify the governing body, and proceed
with the project;

(2) decide not to proceed with the project; or

(3) prepare a new final layout and resubmit it to the governing body for approval or disapproval under
section 161.164, subdivision 2.

(b) If the final construction plans contain changes in access or traffic capacity or require additional
acquisition of permanent right-of-way from the final layout reviewed by the appeal board or the governing
body, the commissioner shall resubmit the portion of the final construction plans that shows the changes,
to the governing body for its approval or disapproval under section 161.164, subdivision 2.

Subd. 4. Action on disapproved final layout. If the appeal board disapproves the final layout, the
commissioner may:

(1) decide not to proceed with the project; or

(2) prepare a new final layout and submit it to the governing body for approval or disapproval under
section 161.164, subdivision 2.

Subd. 5. Final construction plans issued. The commissioner shall send a complete set of final
construction plans to the municipality at least 45 days before the bid opening for informational purposes.

History: 2001 c 191 s 7; 2020 c 83 art 1 s 51

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

161.166MINNESOTA STATUTES 20201

Page 30Item 2.



161.167 REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES.

Members of the appeal board shall submit to the commissioner an itemized list of the expenses incurred
in disposing of matters presented to them. The appeal board members shall be reimbursed for all reasonable
expenses incurred by them in the performance of their duties. The commissioner shall pay these costs out
of the trunk highway fund.

History: 2001 c 191 s 8

Official Publication of the State of Minnesota
Revisor of Statutes

161.167MINNESOTA STATUTES 20201

Page 31Item 2.



Project Schedule – 4204-40

Begin Detailed Design Phase January 2022

Final ADA Field Walk Recommendations March 2022

Preliminary Construction Limits Map August 2022

Final Construction Limits Map November 2022

15% Detailed Design/ADA Detailed Design Submittal November 2022

30% Detailed Design/ADA Detailed Design Submittal March 2023

60% Detailed Design/ADA Detailed Design Submittal August 2023

90% Detailed Design/ADA Detailed Design Submittal January 2023

100% Detailed Design/ADA Detailed Design Submittal July 2024

Project Letting November 2024

Begin Construction Spring 2025

Page 32Item 2.



Construction Cost Estimate 

MARSHALL -TH 19
TOTAL PROJECT COSTS 

Item Description Units Unit Cost Quantity Total Quantity Total Quantity Total

PAVING AND GRADING (P & G) COSTS

Bituminous Pavement (1) ton $100.00 0 -$                 166 16,600$                     0 -$               see Note 1
4" Concrete (Walk, Median) sq ft $8.50 101,446 862,291$         97,410 827,985$                   4,036 34,306$         
4" Colored concreate (Walk, Median) (5) sq ft $17.00 4,800 81,600$           2,400 40,800$                     2,400 40,800$         See Note 5
8" Concrete pavement (Truck Apron, Driveway) sq yd $67.50 2,633 177,716$         2,633 177,716$                   0 -$               
Concrete pavement (1) cu yd $67.50 37,362 2,521,932$      35,902 2,423,380$                1,460 98,552$         See Note 1
Supplemental Reinf Bars pound $4.00 50,000 200,000$         45,000 180,000$                   5,000 20,000$         
Class 6 Aggregate Base (1) cu yd $35.00 8,760 306,610$         8,425 294,872$                   335 11,739$         See Note 1
Subgrade Excavation (1) cu yd $10.00 42,645 426,449$         40,988 409,880$                   1,657 16,569$         See Note 1
Common Excavation cu yd $10.00 15,554 155,535$         14,986 149,857$                   568 5,678$           

Common Borrow cu yd $4.00 77,768 311,071$         74,929 299,715$                   2,839 11,356$         

Select Granular Borrow cu yd $25.00 42,645 1,066,121$      40,988 1,024,700$                1,657 41,422$         

Contaminated Materials Hauling cu yd $55.00 1,000 55,000$           200 11,000$                     800 44,000$         See Note 6
Bridge Approach Panels sq yd $250.00 155 38,750$           155 38,750$                     0 -$               
Curb and Gutter Design B424 lin ft $30.00 364 10,932$           364 10,932$                     0 -$               
Curb and Gutter Design B624 lin ft $35.00 17,218 602,630$         16,341 571,939$                   877 30,692$         

(a) Subtotal Paving and Grading 6,816,638$      6,461,526$                355,112$       
95% 5%

UTILITIES, REMOVALS, DRAINAGE, ETC.

Removals/Clear and Grub 5.0% 338,082$         320,470$                   17,612$         
Signal removal (Lyon) each 1 15,000$           0.5 7,500$                       0.5 7,500$           
City Utilities (sanitary) lump 1 374,500$         -$                           1 374,500$       
City Utilities (Watermain) lump 1 353,900$         1 353,900$       
Signing, Striping, Traffic Control 5.0% 338,082$         320,470$                   17,612$         
Dewatering 10.0% 676,164$         30% 202,849$                   70% 473,315$       
Erosion Control and Turf Establishment 3.0% 202,849$         192,282$                   10,567$         

(b) Subtotal Utilities, Removals, Drainage, Etc. 2,298,577$      1,043,570$                1,255,007$    

DRAINAGE

Storm Sewer 1,511,000$      1,150,000$                361,000$       See Note 7

(c) Subtotal Drainage 1,511,000$      1,150,000$                361,000$       

STRUCTURES/SIGNALS/MISC. COST

Roadway Lighting (MnDOT) (2) each $7,000 12.0 84,000$           8.0 56,000$                     4.0 28,000$         See Note 2

Roadway Lighting  (3) each $3,100 17.0 52,700$           -$                           17.0 52,700$         See Note 3

Decorative Lighting (Single Assembly)  (4) each $4,000 17.0 68,000$           -$                           17.0 68,000$         See Note 4

Decorative Lighting (Double Assembly)  (4) each $6,400 22.0 140,800$         -$                           22.0 140,800$       See Note 4

Decorative Lighting (intersection lighting) (4) each $1,600 8.0 12,800$           -$                           8.0 12,800$         See Note 4

Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacon (RRFB) (Lyon) each $78,000 1.0 78,000$           -$                           1.0 78,000$         

Signal System A (Saratoga) each $250,000 1.0 250,000$         0.5 125,000$                   0.5 125,000$       

Signal System B (Main) each 250,000$    1.0 250,000$         1.00 250,000$                   0.00 -$               

Recycle/waste receptacles each 1,200$        8.00 9,600$             -$                           8.00 9,600$           

Bike loops (with city logo) each 1,400$        8.00 11,200$           8.00 11,200$         

-$                 -$               

-$                 -$                           -$               

(d) Subtotal Misc 957,100$         431,000$                   526,100$       

(a+b+c+d) Subtotal Construction 11,583,314$    9,086,096$                2,497,219$    
Roadway Risk & Contingency 10.0% 1,158,331$      908,610$                   249,722$       
TMP 5.0% 579,166$         454,305$                   124,861$       
Mobilization 5.0% 579,166$         454,305$                   124,861$       

(e) Subtotal Miscellaneous 2,316,663$      1,817,219$                499,444$       

(a+b+c+d+e) Total Construction 13,899,977$    10,903,315$              2,996,662$    

Inflation Adjusted Construction Cost for 2025 (1.14 factor) 15,845,974$    12,429,779$              3,416,195$    

Design & Construction Engineering 16.0% 2,223,996$      1,744,530$                479,466$       

RW Cost

= = =

Total RW -$                 -$                           -$               

Total Estimated Cost 18,069,970$    14,174,309$              3,895,661$    

Notes:
(1) Parking areas are included in the concrete pavement quantity, City will pay 10% of total parking area and MnDOT will pay 90%. 
       Assumed Pavement and Subcut Depths:

TH 19 driveway/ truck apron pavement 8 Concrete 5 bit
6 Class 6 6 Class 6

12 Subcut 12 Subcut
TH 19  concrete pavement 8 Concrete

6 Class 6
40 Subcut

Walks and Medians 5 Concrete * assumed equally split between 4" and 6"
6 Class 6

(2) Country Club (4), Saratoga (4), Main St (4) - lights on local street City costs (4 for City and 8 for MnDOT)
(3) based on estimate from city in 10/6/2020 email
(4) based on estimate from city in 10/2/2020 email
(5) MnDOT to cover cost of regular concrete, City to cover cost of colored (2x the cost of regular)
(6) Assumed 20% MnDOT cost and 80% City; quantity based on similar project amount
(7) Includes Block 11 costs under City costs  - see storm summary for cost breakdown

MNDOT TOTALS CITY TOTALS

Local Road pavement

CP420440_Preliminary cost estimate 7-6-2021.xlsx
Printed on 7/6/2021 Short Elliott Hendrickson, Inc

Page 33Item 2.



RESOLUTION NO.  _____
Resolution for Layout Approval

At a Meeting of the City Council of the City of ___________________, held on the __ day 

of _______, 20__, the following Resolution was offered by ____________________and seconded by

________________ to wit:

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of Transportation has prepared a final layout for State Project 4204-40 on 

Trunk Highway 19,  from 4th Street to Bruce Street within the City of Marshall for Reconstruction 

improvements; and seeks the approval thereof, as described in Minnesota Statutes 161.162 to 161.167: 

and 

WHEREAS, said final layout is on file in the District 8 Minnesota Department of Transportation office, 

Willmar, Minnesota, being marked as Layout No. 1A, S.P. 4204-40, from R.P. 34+00.012 to 35+00.474. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that said final layout for the improvement of said Trunk Highway 

within the corporate limits be and is hereby approved.

Upon the call of the roll the following Council Members voted in favor of the Resolution:

The following Council Members voted against its adoption:

ATTEST:

Mayor _________________________________ Dated ________________, 20__

State of Minnesota

County of ________________

City of ____________________

I do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy of a resolution presented to 

and adopted by the Council of the City of ___________________________, Minnesota at a duly 

authorized meeting thereof held on the ______ day of _________________, 20___, as shown by the 

minutes of said meeting in my possession.

(SEAL)_______________________________

City Clerk  

Page 34Item 2.



RESOLUTION No. _____

Resolution for Waiver of Municipal Consent 

At a Meeting of the City Council of the City of _______, held on the __ day of _______, 20___, the following 
Resolution was offered by ____________________and seconded by ________________, to wit: 

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of Transportation has prepared a final layout for State Project 4204-40 on 

Trunk Highway 19,  from 4th Street to Bruce Street within the City of Marshall for Reconstruction 

improvements; and seeks the approval thereof, as described in Minnesota Statutes 161.162 to 161.167: and 

WHEREAS, said final layout is on file in the District 8 Minnesota Department of Transportation office, 
Willmar, Minnesota, being marked as Layout No. 1A, S.P. 4204-40, from R.P. 34+00.012 to 35+00.474; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council waives the municipal consent approval action, 
described in Minnesota Statutes 161.162 to 161.167, of the final layout for SP 4204-40 for the improvement 
of said and Trunk Highway 19 within the corporate limits. 

Upon the call of the roll the following Council Members voted in favor of the Resolution: 

The following Council Members voted against its adoption: 

ATTEST: 

Mayor _________________________________Dated ________________, 20__ 

State of Minnesota
County of___________
City of_____________

I do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy of a resolution presented to and 

adopted by the Council of the City of ___________________________, Minnesota at a duly authorized 

meeting thereof held on the ______ day of _________________, 20___, as shown by the minutes of said 

meeting in my possession.

(SEAL)_______________________________

City Clerk   

Page 35Item 2.



UMH

F

UMH

F

F

UMH

F

F

UMH

F

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

F

F
F

U
M

H
U

M
H

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

F

U
M

H

U
M

H

U
M

H

U
M

H

U
M

H
U

M
H

U
M

H

F

UMH

UMH

UMH

F

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH
UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

F

UMH

UMH

UMH
UMH

UMH
UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH
UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH
UMH

UMH
UMH

UMH

UMH

F

UMH

UMH

UMH

F

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

F

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMHUMHUMH

UMH UMH

UMHUMHUMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

?

?

?

?

?

F

S
I

G
N

S
I

G
N

S
I

G
N

S
I

G
N

S
I

G
N

U
M

H

S
I

G
N

B
R
E

M
E
R
 
B

A
N

K

A
T

M

A
P
S

A
P
S

A
P
S

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMHUMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMHUMH

F

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

UMH

?

UMH

UMH

UMH

APS

APSAPS

APS

APS
APS

VAR.

VAR.

VAR. VAR.

M

 
4
0
1

1
-
S
-
F

W
E
S
T
S
I

D
E
 
S
C

H
O

O
L

A
R

M
O
R

Y

1
-
S
-
F

S
H
E

D

G
A
R
.

1
-
S
-
F

G
A
R
.

 
3
2
2

1
-
S
-
F

 
3
2
0

2
-
S
-
F

1
-
S
-
F

B
L

D
G
.
 

N
O
.
 
3
1
0

1
-
S
-
B
R

&
 
C

O
M
P

A
N

Y
 
L
L
P

D
A

N
A
 
F
.
 
C

O
L
E

G
A
R
.

N
O
.
 
3
0
1

1
-
S
-
F
 
B
L

D
G
.
 

T
H
E
 
E
S
C

A
P
E
 
S
P

A
 
L
L
C

W
E

S
T

E
R

N
 

P
R
I

N
T
 

G
R

O
U

P

 
3
0

8
1
-

S
-

F

 
3
0
6

1
-

S
-

F

G
A

R
.

G
A

R
.

LAUNDRY
LIBERTY 

BLDG. NO. 302
2-S-BR.

REALTORS

WILSON O'BRIEN

PRUDENTIAL

RYANS COMPUTER

MIRACLE EAR

GROUP
KONTZ FIN.

300
BLDG. NO.
1-S-BR.

B
L

D
G
.
 

N
O
.
 
2
1
2

1
-

S
-

F

P
H

O
T

O
G

R
A

P
H

Y

C
H

E
L

B
I
 

L
Y

N
 

SUPPLY

ARNOLD MOTOR B
L

D
G
.
 

N
O
.
 
2
0
6

1
-

S
-

B
L
.

C
H

U
C

K
 

F
E

N
N

E
L

L
 

A
G

E
N

C
Y

A
M

E
R
I

C
A

N
 

F
A

M
I

L
Y

B
L

D
G
.
 

N
O
.
 
2
0
4

1
-

S
-

B
L
.

B
A

R
B

E
R

R
Y
 

H
E

A
L

T
H
 

C
T

R
.

B
O

E
R

B
O

O
M
 
I

N
S

U
R

A
N

C
E

1
-

S
-

B
L
.

S
I

S
T

E
R

S
 

B
R
I

D
A

L
I

N
F
I

N
I

T
Y
 

B
Y

M
A

R
S

H
A

L
L
 

C
L

E
A

N
E

R
S

C
A

R
R

O
W

S
 

AUTO GLASS

MURRAY'S

1-S-F

GARAGE

1-S-BL

CHAMBER OF COMMERCE
MARSHALL AREA

BLDG. NO. 118

1-S-F

1
1
5

B
L

D
G
.
 

N
O
.

1
-

S
-

B
L

C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
S

C
H

W
A

N
'

S

US BANK

RESTAURANT

BELLA CUCINA

3-S-BRICK

TOBACCO
MARSHALL

2-S-BRICKSTR WEST

200 MAIN

TATTOO
PALMER

STR WEST

208 MAIN

VARSITY PUB

2-S-BRICK

STR WEST

128 MAIN

CONCRETE PATIO

A
L

L
E

Y
C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
A

L
L

E
Y

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

CONCRETE LOT

SHOPS AND OFFICES

1-S-F

B
R
E

M
E
R
 
B

A
N

K

2
-
S

P
I

Z
Z

A
 

H
U

T

ANYTIME FITNESS

1-S-F

 REDWOOD ST.

203 W.

2-S-F

KUAY LOO KLAY

1-S-F

1-S-F

CULLIGAN

1-S-F

1
-

S
-

B
R
I

C
K

F
R

E
E

D
O

M

C
A

N
O

P
Y

GAR.

1.5-S-F

SHOPS AND OFFICES

1-S-BRICK

H
O
.

2
-
S
-
F

H
O
.

1
-
S
-
F

U
M

H

M

M

M

M

U

U

U

U

M

M

M

M
M

M

M

M

M M

M

M

M

U

U

M
M

M

M

M

U

U

M

M

U

M

M

UU

M

M

M

M

MM

U

115 W.

201 

301

307

5
0
1

5
0
3

.
300

200 

3
0
4

2
0
8
 

M

D
I

M

M

M

HO.
1-S-F

HO.
1-S-F

HO.
1-S-F

HO.
1-S-F

HO.
2-S-F

HO.
2-S-F

101 PARK AVE

S
H

E
D

GAR.

HO.
2-S-F

HIGH STR
100 SO.

HO.
1.5-S-F

HO.
1.5-S-F

GAR.

HO.
2-S-F

HIGH ST.
101 SO.

WHITNEY ST.
100 SO.

GRACE LIFE SCHOOL

1-S-BRICK

HO.
1.5-S-F

HO.
2-S-F

HO.
1-S-F

HO.
1.5-S-F

HO.
1-S-F

HO.
1-S-F

GAR.

HO.
1-S-F

DUPLEX
1-S-F HO.

1-S-F
SHED

WHITNEY ST.
101 SO.

HILL ST.
100 SO.

MINN. ST.
100 SO.

1-S-F

CPA'S
HOFFMAN AND BROST

CANOPY

SPEEDWAY

1-S-BRICK

CAR WASH

1-S-BRICK

SHOPKO OPTICAL JIMMY JOHN'S

M

M

MM

M

M

U

M

U
M

M U

M

MM

M

M

M

M

M

M

U

U

505

507
509

511

515 601

701

703

705
707

800

903

1001

1101

M

ELAINE AVE.

AVE.

C
T
.

M
A
R

V
IN

S
C
H

W
A
N

L
A

W
R

E
N

C
E

C
T
.

A
V

E
.

O
'

ERIE

RD.

ERIE

H
A

L
B

U
R
 
 

R
D
.

MICHIGAN RD.

HURON RD.

P
E

R
I
O

R
U

S
R

D
.

ONTARIO RD.

MICHIGAN RD.

H
A

H
N

R
D
.

W
Y.

P
K

6
t
h

5
t
h

10
t
h

11
t
h

11
t
h

PARIS

D
R
.

RD.

RD.

S
T
.

S
T
.

S
T
.

S
T
.

S
T
.

S
T
.

S
T
.

S
T
.

N
.

S
T
. FAIRVIEW

ST.

N
.

7
t
h

23

23

23

23

68

68

68

68

19

19

19

19

19

59

59

59

59

3333

33

33

7

CT.

C
O

L
T

S
T
. AVE.

EMER

S
T
.

C
A

M
E

L
O

T

R

O
U

N
D
 

T
A

B
L

E
 

R
D
.

WINCHESTER

A AV LON

CORNWALL

AVE.

AVE.

AVE.

K
A

Y
E

P
L
.

R
O

B
I
N
 

H
O

O
D

FAIRVIEW ST.

V
I
L

L
A

G
E

D
R
.

N
.

7
t
h

O
A

K
S
T
.

N
.

6
t
h

H
U
D
S
O
N

A
V
E
.N

.

5
 
t
h

S
T
.

M
A

S
O

NA
V
E
.

S
T
.

K
O
S
S
U
T

H

A
V
E
.

E
L

M

S
T
.

H
IG

H7
t
h

S
T
.

TN
OM

FRE

P
L

E
A

S
A

N
T
 

S
T
.

P
L
E
A
S
A
N
T

S
T
.

W

A

L
N
U
TS

T
.

DANO CIR.

AVE.

W
H
I

SUMMIT ST.

T
N

E
Y

PINE VE.A

A

A

VE.

VE.WIL LOW

POP LAR

S
T
.

H
I
L

L

S
T
.

OW

ILLW

BIRCH

S
T
.

S
T

A
T

E

McLAUGHLIN RD.

M
A

R
K

E
T

S
T
.

L
L

N
E

C
O

N
S

T
.

S
H

E
R

M
A

N

A
V

E
.

S
T
.

M
A
R
S

H
A
L
L

W
.

W
.

R
E
D

W
O
O
D

S
.

S
.

S
.

N
.

N
.

N
.

6
t
h

W
.

LY
O
N

5
t
h

4
t
h

S
T
.

N
.

ST.

3
r
d

N
.

1s
t

S
T
.

D
R
.

E
.

O
L
L

C

E
G
E

ST.

S
T
.

ST.

AVE.

S
T
.

S
IM

M
O
N
S
 
S
T
.

P
E
L

S
T
.

7t
h

S
.

MLOHBLAD

A
V

E
.

ST
.

T
IE

R

G
L
E
N
N
 
S
T
.

L
E

G
I
O

N
F
I
E

L
D

M
IL

LS
T
.

LY
N
D

S
T
.

N
.
3
r
d

S
T
.

S
A
R
A

4
t
h

M
A
IN

S
T
.

W
.

P
A

R
K

A
V

E
.

E. MAR SHA LL ST.

ARLCH ES

M
I
N

N
E
S

O
T

A

AVE.

COLLEGE DR.E.

H
IG

H

S
T
.

CHUR CH

ST.

JEAN

AVE.

K
E

N
N

E
D

Y

S
T
.

JEFERSON

AV E.

C
I
R
.

AV.

A

ARBOR

CT.

CEN TRAL

LINCO LN V.A

WASHIN GTON VE.

BRUCECIR.

C
IR

C
L
E

D
R
.

E

S
T
.W

H
I
T

N
E

Y
 

C
I
R
.

GARDEN

CI
R.

P
ROS

PECT

CI
R.

PROSPECT

RD.

C
IR
.

A
D
O
B
E

C
A

R
L
S

O
N

S
T
.

ST.

P
A

R
K
S
I
D

E
D

R
.

PARKSIDE DR.

A
D

O
B

E
D

R
.

L
Y

O
N

C
I
R
.

LYON
ST
.

E
.

S
T
.

N
.

S
T
.

A

E
.

L
Y
O
N

B

S
T
.

F

G

H

S
T
.

ST.

S
T
.

ST.

ST.

S
U

N
S

E
T

C
I
R
.

M
O

R
N
I
N

G
S
I
D

E
C
I
R
.

YSK LINE

DR.

O
W

C
A

R
R

C
IR
.

C
A

R
R

O
W

ARLCH

ST.
GRE ENVIEW

S
U

N
R
IS

E

S
T
.

D
R
.

PL.
DR.

HORI
Z

O
N

1.

2.

3.

4.5.

BIR CH

H
A

M
D
E
N

S
T
.

S
T
.

S
.

A

ST

.

G
R
E

GRIMES

ST.
DE SCH EPP

C
T
.

I
L
I
A

M
S

S
T
.

L
W

ROBERT ST.
MAP LE ST.

LUCILLE

ST.

GEORGE ST.

S
T
.

JAMES

L
A

W
R

E
N

C
E J

AM ES AVE.

D
E
S

C
H

E
P
P

E
R

S
T
.

V
I
K
I
N

G
D

R
.

GRAY PL. W.

AV
E
.

M
A
R
G
U
E
R
IT

E

D
R
.

C
A

M
D
EN

S
O
U
T
H
 
B
E
N
D

A
V
E
.

SOUTH VIEW
DR.

DONITA

KATHRYN

THOMAS

AVE.

AVE.

AVE.

S
T
.

4
t
h

S
.

S
T
.

2
n
d

S
.

S
A

R
A

C
I
R
.

P
E

A
R

L

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

W
E
S

T
M

A
R

C
I
R
.

N
D

L
A

C
U

M
B

E
R

E
N

G
L

E
W

O
O

D

W
A

Y

PI
NEHURST

RD.

R
D
.

RD.

77

77

RI
D

GE

R
D
.

OODWTS

E
W

RD.

R
D
.

T
R

A
V
I
S

E
A

S
T

W
O

O
D

S
T
.

D
I
V
I
T

O

C
O
U
N
T
R
Y

COLLEGE

M
A

R
L

E
N

E

S
T
.

P
V
IE

D
R
.

A
R

K
W

S
PAUL

T.

H
A

C
K

B
E

R
R

Y
D

R
.

S
A

R
A

T
O

G
A

S
T
.

H
W

THO
R

DR.C
O

L
 

U
M

B
I
N

E

S
I
L

V
E

R

S
O

U
T

H
V
I
E

W

S
O

U
T

H
V
I
E

W
 

C
T
. 
 E
.

C
T
. 
 W
.

V
I
N

E
 

D
R
.

D
R
. SO

U
T

H
V
IE

W

D
R
.

D
R
.

GENESIS AVE.

TIMBERLA

L

IL
AC

DR.

A
S

H
D
R
.

S
P

R
U

C
E

D
R
.

SPRUC

L
O
C
U
S
T

DR.

MA

P

1.  HORIZON CIR.

2.  WOODLAND WAY

3.  EVERGREEN AVE.

5.  ROOSEVELT AVE.

S
.

B
R

U
C

E
S

T
.

S
T
.

N
.

B
R

U
C

E
B

R
I
A

N

N
U

E
S
E

L
.

L .

C

E

N
E

DR.W.

Bu
rlin
gton

No
rth
ern

&

Sa
nta

Fe

B
ur
lin
gto
n

N
or
th
er
n

&

DAR

R
E
D

W
O

O
D

O
G
A

T

R
ed

wo o
d

Rive
r

R
iver

2627

3435

T112N R42W

T112N

3334

34

T111N

R41W

R41W

3132

56

T112N R41W

T111N R41W

1 6

712

T111N

R41WR42W

7 8

1718

9 10

1516

23

10 11

T111N R41W

C

S
T
.

M
E

M
O
R
IA

L
 
 
D
R
.

J
E

W
E

T
T

S
T
.

W
O

O
D

F
E

R
N
 

D
R
.

S
T
.

1
s
t

S
.

S
T
.

7

T111N

T111N

R41WR42W
3136

61

6.

6.  VIKING CIR.

4.  VAN BUREN ST.

8
.

T
R
.

ES

ST.

9.  CULLEN CIR.

10.  DOGWOOD AVE.

7.  HACKBERRY PL.

DUBLIN

ST.

A
V

E
.

A
V

E
.

C
LU

B

D
R
.

23

C
T
.

C
I
R
.

D
R
.

A
N

D

C
L
I
F
T

O
N

R
ed
wo
od

23

DAVI
D

M
c
F
A

R
LC

T
.

P
A

T
R
I
C
I
A

P
A

T
R

I
C
I
A

S
T
.

L
A

K
E
 
 

R
D
.

R
D
.

ALLKEND

9.

I IND ANA

A
V

E
.

JONES AVE.

CA RL SON

ST.

MALL ST.

PETERSON

E.   LYON  ST.

C
IR
.

C
A

N

D
R
.

RD
BI

HO
E CI

R.LA

O

F
L

O
Y

D
W
I
L

D
D

R
.

D
R
.

L
E

L

10.

7.

A

N

A
L

A

J
A

G
U

A
R

C
T
.

C
T
.

C
T
.

C
T
.

ST.

S
T
.

ST.

E
D

E
S

DENALI

R
D
.

S
A

R
A

T
O

G
A

DR.
MER

C

CIR.

T111N

R41W

S
IE

N
A

N

I
M

P C
O

U
G

A
R

S
C

O
T
T

S
T
.

T
I
G

E
R
 
 

D
R
.

AMIRET ST.

59

ERBOXELD

AVE.W
IN

IF
R
E
D

D
R
.

N
C

H
R

A
A

V
E
.

S
T
.

WINCHESTER

ALD

8
t
h
 
S
T
.

E
L
E
Y

ST.

AV E.

ER

265th ST.

B
A

S
E

L
I
N

E

R
D
.

TIIIN

R41W

RD.

2
6
5
t
h
 

A
V

E
.

BURLIN
GTON

CIR
.

G
A

PARK

E
L

L
I
S

A
V

E
.

S
U

N

S
A

C
L

A
R
I
C

E

WINDSTAR ST.

BOYER DR.

M
A

R
G

A
R

E
T

A
V

E
.

D
A
R
L
E
N
E

E
S
T

H
E
R

D
R
.

D
R
.

STEPHEN

ELIZABETH

ANDREW

DONALD

ST.

ST.

ST.

A
V
.

A
M

B
E

R
C
I
R
.

K
A

L
E

B
C
I
R
.

A
L

A
N

11
.

C
IR
.

11.  ESTHER LN.

T
T

HARRIE

WARSAW

BERLIN

CIR.

CIR.

VIENNA

CIR.

B
U
S
S

E
L
S

C
T
.

R

O
S

L

KH

AVE.

C OOT LS

R
A
I
N
 

B
O

W

M

O

T.S

TALNTINEN

THUNDERBIRD RD.

A
D
I
L
L

A
C

R
D
.

CO

C

VIPER

35

35

35

B
I
R

D
T

H
U

N
D

E
R
-

8.  TIMMERMAN DR.

GRANITE TR.

CR.
COBBLE STONE

INE ST.

R
T

Z
I
T

E

PL.
SO

U
C
YD

R
.

HERITAGE

N
. 
7
t
h
 

S
T
.

I
O

W
A

NWAKAMA  ST.

A
V

E
.

BLVD.

C
H

E
R

Y
L

C
T
.

C
H
A
N
N
E
L

R
D
.

W
.

CH

11th

MADRID

L
O

N
D

O
N

R
D
.

ST.

ANNEL

D
iv
er
si
o
n

C
h
a
n
n
el

A
T

H
E

N
S

R
ed

w
o
o
d

2829

3233

R41W

T112N

STADIUM DR.

C
I
R
.

T
R
.

T
I
G

E
R
 

D
R
.

VICTORY

DR.

MADRID

CIR.

LN.

N
.

N

N

L
N
.

L
N
.

M
E

R
L
I
N
 

L
N
.

COM
E
N
C
 
E

M
E
N
T

M

S
T

A
N

G
M

U

PETERSON

MUSTANG

WIND
A
R

ST

D
R
.

S
T

A
T
 

E

C
A
N
O
G
A

UC LA ST.

TRAVERT

D
R
.

D
I
A

M
O

N
D

SLATE

Q
U

A

ST.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020
 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

So
lu
ti

on
s,
 I

nc
. 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

So
lu
ti

on
s,
 I

nc
. 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

So
lu
ti

on
s,
 I

nc
. 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

So
lu
ti

on
s,
 I

nc
. 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

So
lu
ti

on
s,
 I

nc
. 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
2
0 

Tr
an

so
ft
 S

ol
ut
io

ns
, 
In

c.
 A

ll 
ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
2
0 

Tr
an

so
ft
 S

ol
ut
io

ns
, 
In

c.
 A

ll 
ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

So
lu
ti

on
s,
 I

nc
. 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020
 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

So
lu
ti

on
s,
 I

nc
. 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

So
lu
ti

on
s,
 I

nc
. 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

So
lu
ti

on
s,
 I

nc
. 

A
ll 

ri
gh
ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

So
lu
ti

on
s,
 I

nc
. 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

So
lu
ti

on
s,
 I

nc
. 

A
ll 

ri
gh
ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 20
20 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

So
lu
ti

on
s,
 I

nc
. 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

S
-

B
U
S
-
3
6

AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U
S
-
3
6

A
A
SH

TO
 2018 (U

S)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U
S
-
3
6

A
A
SH

TO
 2018 (U

S)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U
S
-
3
6

A
A
SH

TO
 2018 (U

S)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U
S
-
3
6

A
A
SH

TO
 2018 (U

S)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U
S
-
3
6

AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U
S
-
3
6

AAS
HT

O 
20

18
 (

US
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T
ra

ns
of
t 

So
lut
ion

s, 
Inc
. A
ll 
rig

ht
s 
re
se
rve

d.

S
-

B
U
S
-
3
6

A
A
SH

TO
 2018 (U

S)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U
S
-
3
6

AAS
HT

O 
20

18
 (

US
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T
ra

ns
of
t 

So
lut
ion

s, 
Inc
. A
ll 
rig

ht
s 
re
se
rve

d.

S
-

B
U
S
-
3
6

A
A
SH

TO
 2018 (U

S)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U
S
-
3
6

AAS
HT

O 
20

18
 (

US
)

(c
) 

20
20
 T
ra

ns
of
t 

So
lut
ion

s, 
Inc
. A
ll 
rig

ht
s 
re
se
rve

d. S
-

B
U
S
-
3
6

A
A
SH

TO
 2018 (U

S)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

5
5
 

M
e
te
r 

W
in
d
 
B
la
d
e
 
N
L

EB TH 19

WB TH 19

W
B
 T

H
 19E

B
 T

H
 19

S
. 2

nd
 S

T
.

CLUB DR.

COUNTRY

EB TH 19

WB TH 19

W
B
 T

H
 19E

B
 T

H
 19

S
. 2

nd
 S

T
.

CLUB DR.

COUNTRY

=
6
5
'

R

=
6
0
'

R

=133.9'R

=50'

R

=
9
5
'

R

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

C&G

R424

=
4
4
'

R

13' TRUCK APRON

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

22'

2
2
'

22'

2
2
'

22'
22'

2
0
'

2
2
.
5
'

23.1'

2
4
'

2
0
'

1
9
.
8
'

(TIPPED OUT)

B624 C&G

1
8
'

1
8
.
3
'

=
8
0
'

R

EB TH 19

WB TH 19

W
B
 T

H
 19E

B
 T

H
 19

S
. 2

nd
 S

T
.

CLUB DR.

COUNTRY

55 Meter Wind Blade NLWisDOT OSOW (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

EB TH 19

WB TH 19

W
B
 T

H
 19E

B
 T

H
 19

S
. 2

nd
 S

T
.

CLUB DR.

COUNTRY

WB-62

AASHTO 2004 (U
S)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

W
B
-

6
2

A
A
S
H
T
O
 
2
0
0
4
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

WB-62
AASHTO 2004 (US)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

WB-
62

AASHTO 2
004

 (US)
(c) 2

021 
Trans

oft S
olutio

ns, I
nc. A

ll rig
hts r

eserv
ed.

W
B
-
6
2

AASHTO 2004 (US)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

WB-62
AASHTO 2004 (US)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

EB TH 19

WB TH 19

W
B
 T

H
 19E

B
 T

H
 19

S
. 2

nd
 S

T
.

CLUB DR.

COUNTRY

W
B
-
6
2

AASHTO 2004 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

WB-62
AASHTO 2004 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

WB-62

AASHTO 2004 (US)
(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

W
B
-

6
2

A
A
S
H
TO
 
2
0
0
4
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

WB-
62

AASHTO 2
004

 (U
S)

(c) 
202

0 T
rans

oft 
Solu

tion
s, I

nc. 
All 

righ
ts r

eser
ved.

W
B
-
6
2

A
A
SH

TO
 2004 (U

S)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

W
B
-

6
2

A
A
S
H
TO
 
2
0
0
4
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

WB-62

AASHTO 20
04 (U

S)(c) 20
20 Tra

nsoft 
Solutio

ns, Inc
. All r

ights r
eserve

d.

P
ic

k
u
p
 
T
ru

c
k

T
R
A

N
S
O
F
T
S

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

Pic
ku

p 
Tr

uc
k

TRANSOFTS(c) 2
020 

Tran
soft 

Solut
ions,

 Inc.
 All 

right
s res

erved
.

P
ic

k
u
p
 
T
ru

c
k

T
R
A

N
S
O
F
T
S

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

P
ic
k
u
p
 
T
ru

c
k

TR
A
N
S
O
FTS

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

EB TH 19

WB TH 19

W
B
 T

H
 19E

B
 T

H
 19

S
. 2

nd
 S

T
.

CLUB DR.

COUNTRY

1
,

1
6

5
.

8
4

1
,

1
6

5
.

1
3

1
,

1
6

4
.

5
3

1
,

1
6

4
.

1
0

1
,

1
6

3
.

8
1

1
,

1
6

3
.

5
0

1
,

1
6

3
.

3
7

1
,

1
6

3
.

1
1

1
,

1
6

2
.

7
9

1
,

1
6

2
.

5
3

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
4

1
,

1
6

1
.

8
8

1
,

1
6

1
.

6
5

1
,

1
6

1
.

5
1

1
,

1
6

1
.

5
1

1
,

1
6

1
.

6
3

1
,

1
6

1
.

9
1

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
2

1
,

1
6

2
.

9
6

1
,

1
6

3
.

7
9

1
,

1
6

4
.

7
9

1
,

1
6

6
.

0
8

1
,

1
6

7
.

2
9

1
,

1
6

7
.

8
5

1
,

1
6

7
.

6
4

1
,

1
6

7
.

2
8

1
,

1
6

6
.

8
3

1
,

1
6

6
.

3
5

1
,

1
6

5
.

9
2

1
,

1
6

5
.

5
4

1
,

1
6

5
.

1
9

1
,

1
6

4
.

8
6

1
,

1
6

4
.

6
0

1
,

1
6

4
.

3
5

1
,

1
6

4
.

0
1

1
,

1
6

3
.

6
6

1
,

1
6

3
.

3
5

1
,

1
6

3
.

1
5

1
,

1
6

2
.

8
7

1
,

1
6

2
.

5
9

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
0

1
,

1
6

3
.

0
0

1
,

1
6

4
.

5
7

1
,

1
6

5
.

7
8

1
,

1
6

6
.

0
0

1
,

1
6

5
.

5
9

1
,

1
6

5
.

3
3

1
,

1
6

4
.

8
7

1
,

1
6

4
.

3
5

1
,

1
6

3
.

8
3

1
,

1
6

3
.

2
3

1
,

1
6

2
.

8
8

1
,

1
6

3
.

0
4

1
,

1
6

2
.

9
7

1
,

1
6

2
.

7
4

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
8

1
,

1
6

1
.

8
6

1
,

1
6

1
.

2
5

1
,

1
6

0
.

5
8

1
,

1
5

9
.

8
1

1
,

1
5

8
.

7
8

1
,

1
5

8
.

2
1

1
,

1
5

7
.

9
0

1
,

1
5

7
.

6
2

1
,

1
5

7
.

4
3

1
,

1
5

7
.

2
2

1
,

1
5

7
.

1
0

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
9

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
8

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
1

1
,

1
5

6
.

8
2

1
,

1
5

6
.

7
5

1
,

1
5

6
.

7
2

1
,

1
5

6
.

8
7

1
,

1
5

7
.

8
2

1
,

1
5

8
.

7
7

1
,

1
5

8
.

8
4

1
,

1
5

8
.

7
8

1
,

1
5

8
.

7
6

1
,

1
5

8
.

5
5

1
,

1
5

8
.

1
9

1
,

1
5

7
.

9
0

1
,

1
5

7
.

5
4

1
,

1
5

7
.

1
9

1
,

1
5

7
.

0
9

1
,

1
5

7
.

2
2

1
,

1
5

7
.

6
4

1
,

1
5

8
.

2
8

1
,

1
5

8
.

7
4

1
,

1
5

9
.

5
2

1
,

1
5

9
.

7
8

1
,

1
5

9
.

7
0

1
,

1
5

9
.

4
9

1
,

1
5

9
.

2
3

1
,

1
5

8
.

9
6

1
,

1
5

8
.

8
4

1
,

1
5

8
.

6
9

1
,

1
5

8
.

6
0

1
,

1
5

8
.

4
9

1
,

1
5

8
.

2
9

1
,

1
5

8
.

1
2

1
,

1
5

7
.

9
0

1
,

1
5

7
.

6
5

1
,

1
5

7
.

4
2

1
,

1
5

7
.

2
0

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
9

1
,

1
5

6
.

7
5

1
,

1
5

6
.

5
0

1
,

1
5

6
.

1
8

1
,

1
5

5
.

9
4

1
,

1
5

5
.

6
1

1
,

1
5

5
.

2
3

1
,

1
5

4
.

8
8

1
,

1
5

4
.

3
7

1
,

1
5

3
.

9
6

1
,

1
5

3
.

5
6

1
,

1
5

3
.

1
4

1
,

1
5

2
.

8
0

1
,

1
5

2
.

4
8

1
,

1
5

2
.

2
1

1
,

1
5

2
.

0
3

1
,

1
5

1
.

8
6

1
,

1
5

1
.

8
5

1
,

1
5

1
.

7
6

1
,

1
5

1
.

7
3

R=287.92'

CURVE 2040 (LT)

229.27'

R=199.59'

CURVE 2050 (RT)

159.36'

520.00'

R=68,779.36'

CURVE 2060 (LT)

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

T
H
 

1
9
 

S
T

A
.
 
7

4
0

+
1

4
.

6
2

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

T
H
 

1
9
 

S
T

A
.
 
8

0
2

+
8

5
.

0
4

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

CL

CL

CL

CL

CL

CL

CL

CL

CL

CL

CL

CL

CL

GREENLEY ST.

SARATOGA ST.
MEMORIAL DRIVE (RT)
MARVIN SCHWANN

U.S. T.H. 59
MAIN ST.

WEST LYON ST.

WEST REDWOOD ST.

MARSHALL ST.
WEST

N. 3RD ST. (LT)

PARK AVE. (RT)

HIGH ST.

WHITNEY ST.

HILL ST.

MINNESOTA ST.

CL S. 4TH ST.

30 MPH SSD

60 MPH SSD

45 MPH SSD

70 MPH SSD

35 MPH HSD

35 MPH HSD

30 MPH CSD

30 MPH HSD

35 MPH HSD

60 MPH HSD

30 MPH CSD

PROFILE GRADE - TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE

PROFILE GRADE - TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE

PROFILE GRADE - TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE

PROFILE GRADE - TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE

PROFILE GRADE - TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE

PROFILE GRADE - TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE

NOSE

MEDIAN
NOSE

MEDIAN

NOSE

MEDIAN

NOSE

MEDIAN

NOSE

MEDIAN

NOSE

MEDIAN

1
,

1
6

5
.

2
6

741 742 743 744 745 746 747 748

1
,

1
6

4
.

3
1

1
,

1
6

3
.

8
2

1
,

1
6

3
.

5
5

1
,

1
6

3
.

2
8

1
,

1
6

3
.

0
1

1
,

1
6

2
.

7
4

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
7

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
0

1
,

1
6

1
.

9
3

1
,

1
6

1
.

6
7

1
,

1
6

1
.

4
0

1
,

1
6

1
.

1
7

1
,

1
6

0
.

9
4

1
,

1
6

0
.

9
5

1
,

1
6

1
.

1
8

749 750 751 752 753 754 755 756 757 758 759 760 761 762 763 764 765 766 767 768 769 770 771 772 773 774 775 776 777 778 779 780 781 782 783 784

1
,

1
6

1
.

4
4

1
,

1
6

1
.

7
0

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
7

1
,

1
6

3
.

3
0

1
,

1
6

4
.

4
8

1
,

1
6

5
.

6
5

1
,

1
6

6
.

8
1

1
,

1
6

7
.

4
2

1
,

1
6

7
.

2
2

1
,

1
6

6
.

7
7

1
,

1
6

6
.

3
1

1
,

1
6

5
.

8
5

1
,

1
6

5
.

4
0

1
,

1
6

4
.

9
4

1
,

1
6

4
.

5
5

1
,

1
6

4
.

2
5

1
,

1
6

4
.

0
0

1
,

1
6

3
.

7
5

1
,

1
6

3
.

5
0

1
,

1
6

3
.

2
5

1
,

1
6

3
.

0
0

1
,

1
6

2
.

7
5

1
,

1
6

2
.

5
0

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
5

1
,

1
6

2
.

0
3

1
,

1
6

2
.

6
1

1
,

1
6

4
.

1
7

1
,

1
6

5
.

5
7

1
,

1
6

5
.

6
8

1
,

1
6

5
.

1
2

1
,

1
6

4
.

6
1

1
,

1
6

4
.

3
0

1
,

1
6

3
.

9
2

1
,

1
6

2
.

9
6

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
7

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
5

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
8

1
,

1
6

2
.

0
3

1
,

1
6

1
.

7
9

1
,

1
6

1
.

5
4

1
,

1
6

1
.

2
3

1
,

1
6

0
.

4
6

1
,

1
5

9
.

6
1

1
,

1
5

8
.

7
7

1
,

1
5

7
.

9
2

1
,

1
5

7
.

2
5

1
,

1
5

7
.

0
7

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
1

1
,

1
5

6
.

7
6

1
,

1
5

6
.

6
1

1
,

1
5

6
.

4
7

1
,

1
5

6
.

3
6

1
,

1
5

6
.

2
5

1
,

1
5

6
.

1
5

1
,

1
5

6
.

0
4

1
,

1
5

5
.

9
3

1
,

1
5

5
.

8
3

1
,

1
5

6
.

0
8

1
,

1
5

7
.

4
1

1
,

1
5

8
.

5
6

1
,

1
5

8
.

9
1

1
,

1
5

8
.

8
6

1
,

1
5

8
.

7
3

1
,

1
5

8
.

3
9

1
,

1
5

8
.

0
3

1
,

1
5

7
.

6
8

1
,

1
5

7
.

3
2

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
6

1
,

1
5

6
.

7
6

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
9

1
,

1
5

7
.

5
0

1
,

1
5

8
.

0
2

1
,

1
5

8
.

5
4

785 786 787 788 789 790 791 792 793 794 795 796 797 798 799

1
,

1
5

9
.

2
3

1
,

1
5

9
.

5
6

1
,

1
5

9
.

5
3

1
,

1
5

9
.

3
0

1
,

1
5

9
.

0
8

1
,

1
5

8
.

8
6

1
,

1
5

8
.

6
4

1
,

1
5

8
.

4
1

1
,

1
5

8
.

1
9

1
,

1
5

7
.

9
7

1
,

1
5

7
.

7
5

1
,

1
5

7
.

5
2

1
,

1
5

7
.

3
0

1
,

1
5

7
.

0
8

1
,

1
5

6
.

7
1

1
,

1
5

6
.

1
8

1
,

1
5

6
.

1
3

1
,

1
5

6
.

0
8

1
,

1
5

5
.

8
7

1
,

1
5

5
.

6
3

1
,

1
5

5
.

3
9

1
,

1
5

5
.

1
4

1
,

1
5

4
.

8
6

1
,

1
5

4
.

4
9

1
,

1
5

4
.

0
7

1
,

1
5

3
.

6
6

1
,

1
5

3
.

2
4

1
,

1
5

2
.

8
3

1
,

1
5

2
.

4
1

1
,

1
5

2
.

0
8

1
,

1
5

1
.

5
0

800 801 802

1
,

1
5

1
.

9
3

1
,

1
5

1
.

8
5

1
,

1
5

1
.

7
8

1
,

1
5

1
.

7
0

1
,

1
5

1
.

6
3

1
,

1
5

1
.

5
5

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

1
,

1
6

6
.

0
9

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
5

0
.

2
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

5
.

2
6

V
P
I
 
 

+
0

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

4
.

0
8

-2.34%

-0.54%

100.00' V.C.

K = 55

ex = 0.23'

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
5

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

3
.

8
2

V
P
I
 
 

+
4

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

8
9

+0.50%

+2.
35%

100.00' V.C.

K = 54

ex = 0.23'

V
P
I
 
 

+
9

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

7
.

7
7

-0.91%

100.00' V.C.

K = 31

ex = -0.41'

SSD = 381'

V
P
I
 
 

+
4

5
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

4
.

5
3

-0.50%

100.00' V.C.

K = 242

ex = 0.05'

V
P
I
 
 

+
8

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

8
5

+3
.3

0%

80.00' V.C.

K = 21

ex = 0.38'

V
P
I
 
 

+
1

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

6
.

1
5

80.00' V.C.

K = 19

ex = -0.45'

SSD = 281'

V
P
I
 
 

+
7

1
.

6
3

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

5
.

4
3

-1.17%
-1.10%

V
P
I
 
 

+
4

9
.

6
6

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

4
.

5
8

-0.56%

50.00' V.C.

K = 93

ex = 0.03'

V
P
I
 
 

+
4

9
.

7
8

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

4
.

0
2

50.00' V.C.

K = 32

ex = -0.10'

SSD = 719'

V
P
I
 
 

+
4

0
.

3
8

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

1
1

-2.11%

60.00' V.C.

K = 21

ex = 0.21'

V
P
I
 
 

+
0

0
.

1
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

5
2

+0.69%
-0.49%

50.00' V.C.

K = 42

ex = -0.07'

SSD = 939'

V
P
I
 
 

+
5

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

3
0

-1.69%

50.00' V.C.

K = 42

ex = -0.07'

SSD = 925'

V
P
I
 
 

+
9

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

7
.

2
5

-0.31%

50.00' V.C.

K = 36

ex = 0.09'

V
P
I
 
 

+
3

5
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

6
.

5
0

-0.21%

V
P
I
 
 

+
0

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

5
.

7
2

+3
.9

5%

80.00' V.C.

K = 19

ex = 0.42'

V
P
I
 
 

+
8

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

8
.

8
8

80.00' V.C.

K = 20

ex = -0.40'

SSD = 306'

V
P
I
 
 

+
4

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

8
.

7
2

-0.10%

-0.68%

90.00' V.C.

K = 155

ex = -0.07'

SSD = 1898'

V
P
I
 
 

+
5

8
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

6
.

5
5

+1.04%

100.00' V.C.

K = 58

ex = 0.21'

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
9

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

6
4

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
9

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

3
.

0
7

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
4

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

6
.

5
9

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
4

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

7
.

3
1

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
9

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

4
.

9
9

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
9

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

4
.

2
8

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
4

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

0
5

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
2

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

3
.

1
8

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
7

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

4
.

8
3

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
5

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

5
.

6
8

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
2

4
.

6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

4
.

8
5

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
7

4
.

6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

4
.

4
4

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
2

4
.

7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

4
.

1
6

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
7

4
.

7
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

3
.

4
9

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
1

0
.

3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

7
4

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
7

0
.

3
8
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
1

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
7

5
.

1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
5

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
2

5
.

1
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
0

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
2

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

4
2

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
7

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

0
.

8
8

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
6

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

7
.

6
7

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
1

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

7
.

1
7

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
6

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

5
.

8
1

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
4

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

7
.

3
0

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
4

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

7
.

3
0

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
8

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

8
.

4
1

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
0

8
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

6
.

8
9

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
0

8
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

7
.

0
7

V
P
I
 
 

+
5

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

9
.

7
5

-0.45%

100.00' V.C.

K = 68

ex = -0.19'

SSD = 779'

V
P
I
 
 

+
9

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
0

40.00' V.C.

K = 31

ex = -0.06'

SSD = 864'

V
P
I
 
 

+
3

0
.

9
9

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

6
.

1
9

-1.72%

40.00' V.C.

K = 25

ex = 0.08'

V
P
I
 
 

+
5

8
.

0
8

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

6
.

0
8

-0.09%

-0.49%

V
P
I
 
 

+
0

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

4
.

9
0

100.00' V.C.

K = 292

ex = -0.04'

SSD = 3202'

V
P
I
 
 

+
5

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

2
.

0
0

-0.83%

-0.15%

100.00' V.C.

K = 147

ex = 0.08'

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
0

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

9
.

2
3

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
0

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

9
.

5
3

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
7

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
9

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
1

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

6
.

5
6

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
1

0
.

9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

6
.

5
4

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
5

0
.

9
9
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

6
.

1
8

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
5

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

5
.

1
4

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
5

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

4
.

4
9

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
0

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

2
.

4
1

1
,

1
5

1
.

5
0

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
0

0
.

1
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

1
.

9
3

HISTORIC BRIDGE
OVER

NO CONSTRUCTION

AND EXIT PROFILES
SEE ROUNDABOUT APPROACH 

35 MPH SSD

35 MPH SSD

35 MPH SSD

35 MPH SSD

35 MPH SSD

75 MPH HSD

30 MPH CSD

30 MPH SSD

45 MPH HSD

30 MPH CSD

THRU THRU WALKWALK BLVD. BLVD.

CL

T.H. 19 TYPICAL SECTIONS

R/W
R/W

PROPOSED

T.H. 19 STA. 741+79.02 TO STA. 743+31.97

83'

T.H. 19

T.H. 19

WALK WALKBLVD.BLVD. THRUTHRUPARKING TWLTL

R/WR/W

PROPOSED

T.H. 19 STA. 749+14.63 TO STA. 770+92.70

CROWN

R/WR/W

PROPOSED

T.H. 19 STA. 770+92.70 TO STA. 778+02.63

CL T.H. 19

6.5'

WALK WALKBLVD.THRUTHRUPARKING

CL

3.5'

R/W R/W

BLVD. TWLTL BLVD.THRUTHRU WALKWALK

CL T.H. 19

6.5'

T.H. 19 TO 2ND ST

COUNTRY CLUB DRIVE TO T.H. 19

10'10'
TRUCK APRON TRUCK APRON CIRCULATORY PATHCIRCULATORY PATH

ROUNDABOUT TYPICAL SECTION

CLCL

PROPOSED

T.H. 19 STA. 779+11.04 STA. 802+66.86

EXISTING TYPICAL SECTIONS

WALK WALK

WALK WALK

WALK

BLVD. BLVD.

BLVD.BLVD.

BLVD.

SHLD SHLD

THRU

SHLDSHLD

THRU THRU

THRU THRU

CL T.H. 19

CL T.H. 19

CL

5'6'15'13'15'6'5'

THRU WALKBLVD.

6.5'

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

R424 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G R424 C&G

EAST SIDEWEST SIDE

WALK THRU THRU WALK

INP T.H. 19

BRIDGE NO. 5083

T.H. 19

TWLTL

TWLTL

TWLTL

6' 14' 14' 14' 6'

STA. 778+02.63 TO STA. 779+11.04

BARRIERBARRIER

1'-2"1'-2"

CL T.H. 19

7'

1'

33'
R/W

5'6'10'12'12'10'5'5' 17'

R/W
50'

1'

40'
R/W

40'

5'9'13'12'12'13'9'5' 1'

R/W

33' 33'

6'VAR.14'13'14'0'-7'6'

B624 C&G

B624 C&G (TIPPED OUT) B624 C&G (TIPPED OUT)

CIDCID

PARKING PARKING

10'VAR14'13'12'9'11'VAR.

22'13'44'44'13'22'

1'

8'VAR.10'12'12'10'5'6'

68'

80'

79'

INP T.H. 19

MARSHALL ST TO BRUCE ST

STA. 740+62.54 TO STA. 747+27.71

INP T.H. 19

4TH ST TO 2ND ST

STA. 747+27.71 - 766+05.00

INP T.H. 19

2ND ST TO MAIN ST

STA. 777+16.11 - 804+00.00

2' PI

2' PI

2' PI

2'

8'6'-7'14'12'12'9'-10'9'-13'6'-8'

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2
0
2
0
 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 202
0 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m
(c) 2

0
2
0
 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m
(c) 2

0
2
0 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67Custom

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2
0
2
1 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. A
ll rig

hts reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2
0
2
1 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. 
A
ll rig

hts reserved.

W
in

d
 

T
o

w
e
r
 
u
p
p
e
r
-

M
id
 

S
e
c
t
io

n
W
is

D
O
T
 
O
S

O
W
 
(U

S
)

(
c
)
 
2
0
2
0
 

T
ra

n
s
o
ft
 

S
o
lu
t
io

n
s
, 
In

c
. 

A
ll 

rig
h
t
s
 
re

s
e
rv

e
d
.

Wind Tower upper-Mid Section
WisDOT OSOW (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

W
in

d
 

T
o

w
e
r
 
u
p
p
e
r
-

M
id
 

S
e
c
t
io

n
W
is

D
O
T
 
O
S

O
W
 
(U

S
)

(
c
)
 
2
0
2
0
 

T
ra

n
s
o
ft
 

S
o
lu
t
io

n
s
, 
In

c
. 

A
ll 

rig
h
t
s
 
re

s
e
rv

e
d
.

Wind Tower upper-Mid Section
WisDOT OSOW (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

W
in

d
 

T
o

w
e
r
 
u
p
p
e
r
-

M
id
 

S
e
c
t
io

n

W
is

D
O
T
 
O
S

O
W
 
(U

S
)

(
c
)
 
2
0
2
0
 

T
ra

n
s
o
ft
 

S
o
lu
t
io

n
s
, 
In

c
. 

A
ll 

rig
h
t
s
 
re

s
e
rv

e
d
.

Wind Tower upper-Mid Section

WisDOT OSOW (US)
(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

W
in

d
 

T
o

w
e
r
 
u
p
p
e
r
-

M
id
 

S
e
c
t
io

n

W
is

D
O
T
 
O
S

O
W
 
(U

S
)

(
c
)
 
2
0
2
0
 

T
ra

n
s
o
ft
 

S
o
lu
t
io

n
s
, 
In

c
. 

A
ll 

rig
h
t
s
 
re

s
e
rv

e
d
.

Wind Tower upper-
Mid Sectio

n

WisDOT OSOW (US)
(c) 2020 Tr

ansoft Solut
ions, Inc. A

ll rights res
erved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m
(c) 2

0
20
 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67

Custom
(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2
0
2
0
 Transoft S

olutio
ns, 

Inc. 
A
ll rig

hts reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m
(c) 2

02
0
 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67

Custom
(c) 2020 T

ransoft So
lutions, Inc

. All rights
 reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2
0
2
0
 Transoft S

olutio
ns, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2
0
2
0
 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2
0
2
0
 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. A
ll rig

hts reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2
0
2
0
 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2
0
2
0
 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. 
A
ll rig

hts reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m
(c) 2

0
2
0
 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m
(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67Custom

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2
0
2
1 Transoft S

olutio
ns, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2
0
2
1 Transoft S

olutions, 
Inc. A

ll rig
hts reserved.

1
,

1
6

1
.

3
4

1
,

1
6

0
.

6
9

1
,

1
6

0
.

8
0

1
,

1
6

1
.

5
1

1
,

1
6

1
.

7
5

1
,

1
6

1
.

4
5

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
8

1
,

1
6

1
.

8
1

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

PROFILE GRADE - TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE

1
,

1
6

3
.

3
4

V
P
I
 
 

+
9

4
.

4
3

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
0

-1.00% +1.00%

90.00' V.C.

K = 45

ex = 0.22'

V
P
I
 
 

+
8

2
.

8
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

4
.

2
8

+1.00% -1.00%

90.00' V.C.

K = 45

ex = -0.23'

SSD = 584'

1
,

1
6

3
.

3
4

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
4

9
.

4
4
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

8
5

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
3

9
.

4
3
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

8
5

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
3

7
.

8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

3
.

8
3

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
2

7
.

8
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

3
.

8
3

10 11 12 13

1
,

1
6

3
.

3
4

1
,

1
6

2
.

8
4

1
,

1
6

2
.

6
3

1
,

1
6

2
.

9
5

1
,

1
6

3
.

4
5

1
,

1
6

3
.

9
4

1
,

1
6

4
.

0
2

1
,

1
6

3
.

6
1

{
 

R
A

B
_

C
I

D
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

0
+

0
0
.

0
0

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

{
 

R
A

B
_

C
I

D
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

3
+

7
6
.

9
9

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

1
,

1
6

2
.

9
8

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
6

1
,

1
6

1
.

9
9

1
,

1
6

1
.

3
0

1
,

1
6

2
.

5
3

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
9

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

S
W

C
C

D
 

S
T

A
.
 
2

0
+

3
8
.

7
0

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

20

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

{
 

S
W

C
C

D
 

S
T

A
.
 
2

2
+

0
7
.

3
6

{
 

C
I

D
_

R
A

B
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

3
+

1
9
.

5
8

A
 

P
T
.
 
1

8
.

0
0
'
 

R
T

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

NOSE RT.

MEDIAN

21 22

1
,

1
6

2
.

5
1

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
0

1
,

1
6

2
.

7
0

1
,

1
6

3
.

4
4

1
,

1
6

2
.

5
7

V
P
I
 
 

+
1

5
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

1
9

-0.50%
+1.4

7%

90.00' V.C.

K = 46

ex = 0.22'

1
,

1
6

3
.

5
5

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
7

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
1

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
6

0
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

8
5

1
,

1
6

3
.

6
6

1
,

1
6

3
.

3
3

1
,

1
6

2
.

7
9

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
7

1
,

1
6

1
.

9
7

1
,

1
6

1
.

6
7

1
,

1
6

2
.

0
0

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

PROFILE GRADE - TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

N
E

C
C

D
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

2
1

+
2

3
.

1
5

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

{
 

N
E

C
C

D
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

2
2

+
8

4
.

0
8

{
 

C
I

D
_

R
A

B
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

3
+

5
1
.

8
4

A
 

P
T
.
 
1

8
.

0
0
'
 

L
T

NOSE LT.

MEDIAN

122

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
3

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
4

1
,

1
6

2
.

7
2

1
,

1
6

2
.

5
6

V
P
I
 
 

+
1

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

1
3

-0.50%
+1.4

9%

90.00' V.C.

K = 45

ex = 0.22'

1
,

1
6

3
.

2
3

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
6

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
5

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
5

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

8
0

1
,

1
6

1
.

2
5

1
,

1
6

1
.

0
8

1
,

1
6

1
.

6
1

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
3

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

PROFILE GRADE - TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

S
B

2
N

D
 

S
T

A
.
 
4

0
+

2
4
.

0
4

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

{
 

S
B

2
N

D
 

S
T

A
.
 
4

1
+

5
6
.

2
5

{
 

C
I

D
_

R
A

B
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

0
+

2
7
.

6
4

A
 

P
T
.
 
1

8
.

0
0
'
 

R
T

NOSE RT.

MEDIAN

41

1
,

1
6

1
.

3
0

1
,

1
6

1
.

7
1

1
,

1
6

2
.

5
9

1
,

1
6

1
.

1
7

V
P
I
 
 

+
9

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

5
0

+0.50%

+1.8
3%

90.00' V.C.

K = 68

ex = 0.15'

1
,

1
6

2
.

7
1

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
4

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

2
7

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
3

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
2

1
,

1
6

1
.

4
6

1
,

1
6

1
.

3
1

1
,

1
6

1
.

1
2

1
,

1
6

1
.

3
3

1
,

1
6

1
.

2
6

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

N
B

2
N

D
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

4
0

+
8

0
.

6
9

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

{
 

N
B

2
N

D
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

4
2

+
1

0
.

8
9

{
 

C
I

D
_

R
A

B
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

0
+

5
4
.

2
3

A
 

P
T
.
 
1

8
.

0
0
'
 

L
T

NOSE LT.

MEDIAN

LINE 
GROUND
EXISTING

141 142

1
,

1
6

1
.

2
7

1
,

1
6

1
.

6
0

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
8

1
,

1
6

1
.

1
7

V
P
I
 
 

+
5

0
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

5
2

+0.50%
+1.5

1%

90.00' V.C.

K = 89

ex = 0.11'

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
4

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
0

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

3
0

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
9

5
.

0
0
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
0

1
,

1
6

0
.

6
5

1
,

1
6

1
.

0
0

1
,

1
6

1
.

3
6

1
,

1
6

1
.

5
9

1
,

1
6

1
.

8
1

1
,

1
6

2
.

0
9

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

PROFILE GRADE - TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

N
E

T
H

1
9
 

S
T

A
.
 
6

3
+

1
3
.

8
7

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

1,150

1,160

1,170

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

{
 

N
E

T
H

1
9
 

S
T

A
.
 
6

0
+

4
9
.

8
4

{
 

C
I

D
_

R
A

B
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

1
+

1
1
.

5
3

A
 

P
T
.
 
1

8
.

0
0
"
 

L
T

NOSE LT.

MEDIAN

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
0

V
P
I
 
 

+
4

4
.

9
1

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

0
.

8
0

-1.58% +0.50%

90.00' V.C.

K = 43

ex = 0.23'

1
,

1
6

1
.

6
4

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
9

9
.

9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

5
1

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
8

9
.

9
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

0
2

61 62 631,150

1,160

1,170

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
9

1
,

1
6

1
.

5
0

1
,

1
6

1
.

0
0

1
,

1
6

1
.

0
7

1
,

1
6

1
.

3
2

1
,

1
6

1
.

5
7

1
,

1
6

1
.

6
0

1
,

1
6

1
.

4
8

1
,

1
6

1
.

5
6

1
,

1
6

1
.

7
1

1
,

1
6

2
.

0
1

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

PROFILE GRADE - TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

S
W

T
H

1
9
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

6
2

+
9

1
.

4
6

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

{
 

S
W

T
H

1
9
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

6
0

+
4

0
.

2
7

{
 

C
I

D
_

R
A

B
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

1
+

5
2
.

3
9

A
 

P
T
.
 
1

8
.

0
0
'
 

R
T

NOSE RT.

MEDIAN

1
,

1
6

2
.

6
2

V
P
I
 
 

+
2

9
.

6
6

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

0
1

-1.80%
+0.50%

90.00' V.C.

K = 39

ex = 0.26'

1
,

1
6

1
.

8
2

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
8

4
.

6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

8
2

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
7

4
.

6
6
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

1
.

2
4

161 162

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
4

1
,

1
6

1
.

5
7

1
,

1
6

1
.

1
9

1
,

1
6

1
.

3
6

1
,

1
6

1
.

6
1

1
,

1
6

4
.

1
0

1
,

1
6

3
.

8
1

1
,

1
6

3
.

5
0

1
,

1
6

3
.

3
7

1
,

1
6

3
.

1
1

1
,

1
6

2
.

7
9

1
,

1
6

2
.

5
3

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
4

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

PROFILE GRADE - TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

W
B

T
H

1
9
 

S
T

A
.
 
8

0
+

0
0
.

0
0

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

{
 

W
B

T
H

1
9
 

S
T

A
.
 
8

3
+

7
2
.

2
4

{
 

C
I

D
_

R
A

B
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

2
+

3
8
.

6
2

A
 

P
T
.
 
1

8
.

0
0
'
 

R
T

NOSE RT.

MEDIAN

1
,

1
6

3
.

5
5

V
P
I
 
 

+
8

2
.

5
1

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

1
3

-0.50%
+1.5

0%

90.00' V.C.

K = 45

ex = 0.22'

1
,

1
6

3
.

4
8

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
3

7
.

5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
6

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
2

7
.

5
1
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

8
1

80 81 82 83

1
,

1
6

3
.

5
5

1
,

1
6

3
.

3
0

1
,

1
6

3
.

0
5

1
,

1
6

2
.

8
0

1
,

1
6

2
.

5
5

1
,

1
6

2
.

3
1

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
8

1
,

1
6

3
.

1
5

1
,

1
6

3
.

3
9

1
,

1
6

3
.

2
0

1
,

1
6

2
.

8
3

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
2

1
,

1
6

1
.

9
8

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

E
B

T
H

1
9
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

8
0

+
0

0
.

0
0

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

{
 

E
B

T
H

1
9
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

8
2

+
2

3
.

4
8

{
 

C
I

D
_

R
A

B
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

2
+

8
0
.

0
6

A
 

P
T
.
 
1

8
.

0
0
'
 

R
T

NOSE LT.

MEDIAN

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

1
,

1
6

2
.

8
9

V
P
I
 
 

+
2

6
.

9
5

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

2
5

-0.50%
+1.5

0%

90.00' V.C.

K = 45

ex = 0.23'

1
,

1
6

3
.

7
0

V
P

C
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
8

1
.

9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
8

V
P

T
 
 
 
 
 
 

+
7

1
.

9
5
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

2
.

9
3

180 181 182

1
,

1
6

2
.

8
9

1
,

1
6

2
.

6
4

1
,

1
6

2
.

4
2

1
,

1
6

2
.

6
5

1
,

1
6

3
.

3
5

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

S
A

R
A

T
O

G
A
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

3
+

7
2
.

4
0

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

S
A

R
A

T
O

G
A
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

2
+

0
8
.

5
6

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

11 12 13 14

1
,

1
6

4
.

1
7

1
,

1
6

4
.

0
4

1
,

1
6

3
.

9
4

1
,

1
6

3
.

6
0

1
,

1
6

3
.

3
3

1
,

1
6

3
.

0
9

1
,

1
6

2
.

7
2

CL TH 19

V
P
I
 
 

+
9

3
.

1
6

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

3
.

0
8

-0.93%

1
,

1
6

3
.

8
7

V
P
I
 
 

+
1

6
.

8
8

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

3
.

5
6

+2.
00%

-2.00%

V
P
I
 
 

+
3

1
.

8
8

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

3
.

2
6

-0.88%

1
,

1
6

2
.

9
0

1
,

1
6

3
.

4
8

1
,

1
6

3
.

2
2

1
,

1
6

3
.

1
0

EXISTING GROUND LINE 

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

1
,

1
6

0
.

0
0

1
,

1
5

8
.

5
6

1
,

1
5

8
.

2
0

1
,

1
5

7
.

2
6

1
,

1
5

6
.

1
2

1
,

1
5

4
.

9
6

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

H
I

G
H

_
S

T
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

0
+

3
2
.

4
2

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

H
I

G
H

_
S

T
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

1
+

6
1
.

4
9

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

CL TH 19

V
P
I
 
 

+
6

2
.

8
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

7
.

7
2

-4.24%
+2.

00%

1
,

1
5

9
.

0
1

V
P
I
 
 

+
8

3
.

8
1

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

8
.

1
4

V
P
I
 
 

+
0

5
.

2
2

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

7
.

7
1

-2.00%
-1.33%

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
7

1
,

1
5

8
.

2
6

1
,

1
5

7
.

8
2

1
,

1
5

7
.

1
2

1
,

1
5

6
.

6
2

1
,

1
5

7
.

1
2

1
,

1
5

6
.

7
4

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
5

1
,

1
5

5
.

9
7

1
,

1
5

5
.

0
2

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

W
H
I

T
N

E
Y

_
S

T
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

0
+

0
0
.

0
0

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

W
H
I

T
N

E
Y

_
S

T
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

2
+

4
4
.

4
7

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

LINE 
GROUND
EXISTING

CL TH 19

NOSE RT.

MEDIAN

V
P
I
 
 

+
9

6
.

9
6

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

6
.

1
4

-0.50%

1
,

1
5

6
.

6
2

V
P
I
 
 

+
4

0
.

0
7

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

7
.

0
0

+2.
00%

-2.00%

V
P
I
 
 

+
6

2
.

1
3

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

6
.

5
6

-1.70%

1
,

1
5

5
.

1
6

10 11 12
1,140

1,150

1,160

1
,

1
5

6
.

3
7

1
,

1
5

6
.

2
0

1
,

1
5

6
.

8
0

1
,

1
5

5
.

9
2

1
,

1
6

0
.

8
4

1
,

1
5

8
.

5
8

1
,

1
5

5
.

9
6

1
,

1
5

4
.

5
9

1
,

1
5

4
.

4
7

1
,

1
5

5
.

2
0

1
,

1
5

5
.

3
9

V
P
I
 
 

+
1

9
.

7
4

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

4
.

3
0

-5.47%

1
,

1
6

0
.

8
4

V
P
I
 
 

+
4

2
.

6
1

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

4
.

7
5

+2.
00%-2.00%

V
P
I
 
 

+
6

3
.

1
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

4
.

3
4

+0.95%

1
,

1
5

5
.

2
7

10 11 12

1
,

1
6

0
.

8
4

1
,

1
5

8
.

1
1

1
,

1
5

5
.

3
8

1
,

1
5

4
.

6
1

1
,

1
5

4
.

6
9

1
,

1
5

5
.

1
7

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

GROUND LINE 
EXISTING

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

H
I

L
L
_

S
T
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

2
+

6
1
.

3
3

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

H
I

L
L
_

S
T
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

0
+

0
0
.

0
0

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

CL TH 19

NOSE RT.

MEDIAN

1
,

1
5

3
.

9
7

1
,

1
5

2
.

9
8

1
,

1
5

2
.

2
7

V
P
I
 
 

+
1

6
.

5
9

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

1
.

7
2

-1.93%
+2.

00%

1
,

1
5

3
.

9
7

1
,

1
5

2
.

0
3

10 11

1
,

1
5

3
.

9
7

1
,

1
5

3
.

0
1

1
,

1
5

2
.

0
4

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

M
I

N
N

E
S

O
T

A
_

S
T
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

0
+

0
0
.

0
0

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

M
I

N
N

E
S

O
T

A
_

S
T
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

1
+

3
2
.

0
2

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

CL TH 19

NOSE RT.

MEDIAN

LINE 
GROUND
EXISTING

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c) 2
0
2
0
 Transoft S

olutio
ns, 

Inc. 
A
ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m
(c

) 
2
0
2
0
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

S
ol

ut
io

ns
, 
In

c.
 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c
) 

2
0
2
0
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

S
ol

ut
io

ns
, 
In

c.
 A

ll 
ri

gh
ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67

Custom
(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m
(c) 2

0
2
0
 Transoft S

olutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c
) 

2
0
2
0
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

S
ol

ut
io

ns
, 
In

c.
 

A
ll 

ri
gh
ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c
) 

2
0
2
0
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

S
ol

ut
io

ns
, 
In

c.
 

A
ll 

ri
gh

ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c
) 

2
0
2
0
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

S
ol

ut
io

ns
, 
In

c.
 

A
ll 

ri
g
ht

s 
re

se
rv

ed
.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

MnDOT Mod. WB-67
Custom

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

M
n

D
O

T
 

M
o
d
. 

W
B
-

6
7

C
u
s
to

m

(c
) 

2
0
2
0
 T

ra
ns

of
t 

S
ol

ut
io

ns
, 
In

c.
 A

ll 
ri
gh
ts
 r

es
er

ve
d.

1
,

1
6

5
.

1
3

1
,

1
6

5
.

1
9

1
,

1
6

5
.

8
9

1
,

1
6

6
.

5
2

V
P
I
 
 

+
1

8
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

3
.

9
5

-2.00%

1
,

1
6

4
.

3
1

V
P
I
 
 

+
4

1
.

2
2

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
6

4
.

3
0

+1.5
0%

+2.
31%

1
,

1
6

6
.

2
0

10 11
1,150

1,160

1,170

1
,

1
6

4
.

3
1

1
,

1
6

4
.

5
0

1
,

1
6

5
.

6
6

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

LINE 
GROUND
EXISTING

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

4
T

H
_

S
T
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

1
+

2
3
.

4
8

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

4
T

H
_

S
T
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

0
+

0
0
.

0
0

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

CL TH 19

10 11

1
,

1
5

9
.

2
1

1
,

1
5

8
.

7
4

1
,

1
5

9
.

0
0

1
,

1
5

9
.

1
7

V
P
I
 
 

+
1

8
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

8
.

8
9

-2.00%

1
,

1
5

9
.

2
5

V
P
I
 
 

+
4

6
.

7
4

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

8
.

6
1

-1.00% +0.61%

1
,

1
5

9
.

0
9

1,150

1,160

1
,

1
5

9
.

2
5

1
,

1
5

8
.

6
3

1
,

1
5

8
.

9
3

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

LINE 
GROUND
EXISTING

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

W
_

L
Y

O
N

_
S

T
_

N
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

1
+

2
5
.

8
1

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

W
_

L
Y

O
N

_
S

T
_

N
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

0
+

0
0
.

0
0

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

CL TH 19

10

1
,

1
5

8
.

5
9

1
,

1
5

8
.

8
0

1
,

1
5

8
.

9
7

1
,

1
5

8
.

9
3

1
,

1
5

9
.

2
1

V
P
I
 
 

+
8

2
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

7
.

9
1

-1.29%

+2.
00%

1
,

1
5

8
.

9
7

1
,

1
5

8
.

2
7

11 12

1,150

1,160

1
,

1
5

8
.

9
6

1
,

1
5

8
.

3
2

1
,

1
5

8
.

2
7

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

W
_

L
Y

O
N

_
S

T
_

S
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

2
+

0
0
.

0
0

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

W
_

L
Y

O
N

_
S

T
_

S
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

0
+

9
9
.

7
3

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

LINE 
GROUND
EXISTING

CL TH 19

10 11 12

1
,

1
5

7
.

7
6

1
,

1
5

6
.

7
4

1
,

1
5

6
.

4
3

1
,

1
5

5
.

9
9

1
,

1
5

5
.

7
8

V
P
I
 
 

+
1

8
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

7
.

2
0

-2.00%

-0.89%

1
,

1
5

7
.

5
6

1
,

1
5

6
.

5
6

10
1,140

1,150

1,160

1
,

1
5

7
.

5
6

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
2

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

LINE 
GROUND
EXISTING

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

W
_

M
A

R
S

H
A

L
L
_

S
T

_
N
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

0
+

9
0
.

6
0

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

W
_

M
A

R
S

H
A

L
L
_

S
T

_
N
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

0
+

0
0
.

0
0

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

CL TH 19

10 11

1
,

1
5

6
.

9
8

1
,

1
5

6
.

8
5

1
,

1
5

6
.

8
8

1
,

1
5

6
.

8
1

1
,

1
5

7
.

9
0

V
P
I
 
 

+
8

2
.

0
0

E
L
.
 
 

1
,

1
5

7
.

4
5

+0.73%

+2.
00%1

,
1

5
6
.

8
8

1
,

1
5

7
.

8
1

12
1,140

1,150

1
,

1
5

7
.

2
2

1
,

1
5

7
.

8
1

TOP OF FINSHED SURFACE
PROFILE GRADE -

LINE 
GROUND
EXISTING

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

W
_

M
A

R
S

H
A

L
L
_

S
T

_
S
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

2
+

0
0
.

0
0

E
N

D
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

M
A

T
C

H
 

E
X
I

S
T
I

N
G

{
 

W
_

M
A

R
S

H
A

L
L
_

S
T

_
S
 

S
T

A
.
 
1

1
+

0
3
.

4
7

B
E

G
I

N
 

P
R

O
F
I

L
E

CL TH 19

SP 4204-40 : TH 19 Reconstruction in Marshall

L
A

Y
O

U
T
 

H
IS

T
O

R
Y

S
:\

K
O
\

M
\

M
n
t
0
8
\
1
5
1
0
2
4
\
4
-
p
r
e
li

m
-
d
s
g
n
-
r
p
t
s
\
4
3
-
p
r
e
li

m
-
d
s
g
n
\

L
a
y

o
u
t
\

C
P
4
2
0
4
4
0
_

L
a
y

o
u
t
.d

g
n

D
E
S
I
G

N
 

F
I
L

E
:

D
A

T
E
:

6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
1

D
A

T
E
:

R
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

B
y

P
r
o

g
r
a

m
m

e
d
 

L
e
t
t
in

g
 

D
a
t
e
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

L
e

v
e
l 
 1
 
L

A
Y

O
U

T
 

A
P

P
R

O
V

A
L

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

2
0

R
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

B
y

A
p
p
r
o

v
e

d
 

B
y

A
p
p
r
o

v
e

d
 

B
y

S
t
a
t
e
 

D
e
s
ig

n
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
r

S
t
a
t
e
 

G
e

o
m

e
t
r
ic

s
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
r

R
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 

B
y

A
N

D
 

T
H

A
T
 
I
 
A

M
 

A
 

D
U

L
Y
 

L
I
C

E
N

S
E

D
 

P
R

O
F

E
S

S
I
O

N
A

L
 

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
 

U
N

D
E

R
 

T
H

E
 

L
A

W
S
 

O
F
 

T
H

E
 

S
T

A
T

E
 

O
F
 

M
I
N

N
E

S
O

T
A
.

I
 
H

E
R

E
B

Y
 

C
E

R
T
I
F

Y
 

T
H

A
T
 

T
H
I
S
 

L
A

Y
O

U
T
 

W
A

S
 

P
R

E
P

A
R

E
D
 

B
Y
 

M
E
 

O
R
 

U
N

D
E

R
 

M
Y
 

D
I
R

E
C

T
 

S
U

P
E

R
V
I
S
I
O

N
 

N
A

M
E
:

L
I
C
. 

N
O
.

6
/
3
0
/
2
0
2
1

0
1
/
2
4
/
2
0
2
5

D
is
t
r
ic
t
 
8
 
P
r
e
li

m
in

a
r
y
 

D
e
s
ig

n
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
r

D
is
t
r
ic
t
 
8
 

T
r
a
f
f
ic
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
r

D
is
t
r
ic
t
 
8
 

E
n
g
in

e
e
r

    50

SCALE IN FEET

Marshall
City of

LOCATION
PROJECT

County
Lyon

    50

SCALE IN FEET

    50

SCALE IN FEET

C
o

p
y
 

T
o
:

F
o
r
:

 
 

T
h
e
 
a
li
g
n

m
e

n
t
 
a
n
d

g
r
a
d
e
s
 
s
h
o

w
n
 
o

n

t
h
is
 

m
a
p
 
a
r
e
 
t
e

n
t
a
t
iv

e

a
n
d
 
s
u
b
j
e
c
t
 
t
o
 
c
h
a
n
g
e

w
it

h
o

u
t
 
n
o
t
ic

e
.

S
t
a
f
f
 

A
p
p
r
o

v
a
l

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

T
h
e
 
t
r
a
f
f
ic
 
v
o
lu

m
e
s
 
s
h
o

w
n
 
a
r
e

_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

B
y

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

F
R

O
M
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

S
.P
.

T
.H
.

A
.J
.

P
P

M
S
 

A
c
t
iv
it

y

L
A

Y
O

U
T
 

N
o
.

T
.H
.

V
I
C
I
N
I
T

Y
 

O
F
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
r
e

p
a
r
e

d
2
0

S
c
a
le
: 

H
o
r
. 
1
 
in

c
h
 

=
f
t
.

D
a
t
e
:

e
s
t
im

a
t
e

d
 
f

o
r
 
y
e
a
r

2
0
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
r
e

p
a
r
e

d
 
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_
_

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1
A

1
9

 
M

A
R

S
H

A
L

L
, 

M
N
.

C
O

P
Y
 

N
o
.

4
T

H
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 

S
. 

T
O
 

B
R

U
C

E
 
S

T
R

E
E

T
 

N
.

2
1

5
0

4
2
0
4
-
4
0

1
1
4
0

1
9

=
0
1
4

S
E

H
 
I
N

C
.

1 2 35

PHI=25.9°

PHI=27.7°

PHI=27.3°

PHI=29.6°

LEGEND

R  , R  , RR   , PHI

ROUNDABOUT DETAIL AND TRAFFIC COUNTS
OSOW MOVEMENTS LEFT TURNING MOVEMENTSRIGHT TURNING MOVEMENTS

FAST PATH-RIGHT TURN FAST PATH-THRU

13
5 
(1
12
) 
{1
37

}

    50

SCALE IN FEET

2 
(1
) 
{1
}

71
 (
18
) 
{1
7}

56
 (
4
0
) 
{2
8
}

159 (126) {100}

67 (131) {134}

15 (32) {38}

7 
(2
3)
 {
21
}

0
 (
0
) 
{0

}

0 (0) {0}

214 (105) {94}

9 (3) {4}

60 (25) {20}

240 (120) {105}

10 (5) {5}

5 
(5
) 
{5
}

8
0
 (
20

} 
{2
0
}

6
5 
(4
5)
 {
30

}

180 (140) {115}

75 (150) {150}

15 (35) {45}

15
5 
(1
25
) 
{1
55

}

10
 (
25
) 
{2
5}

20
 (
25
) 
{3
5}

1,170

1,160

1,150

1,140 1,140

1,150

1,160

1,170

=138'R

=149'R

=140'R
=130'R

=76'R

=166'R

=121'R

1

1
1

1

2

2

2

2

=77'R

=149'R

=315'R

=515'R

=430'R
3

3

3

3

=64'R

=157'R

=114'R

=73'R
5

5

5

5

CHAIN: 19INP

PROFILE: TH19

TH 19

WB-62
DESIGN VEHICLE

    50

SCALE IN FEET

    50

SCALE IN FEET

    50

SCALE IN FEET

    50

SCALE IN FEET

    50

SCALE IN FEET

2
0
4
0

E
v
a
lu

a
t
io

n
 

R
e

p
o
r
t

F
r
o

m
: 
I
n
t
e
r
s
e
c
t
io

n
 

C
o

n
t
r
o
l

M
a
r
c
h

2
0

M
A
T
C
H
 L
IN

E
 T

H
 1
9 
S
T
A
 7
85

+0
0

M
A

T
C

H
 L
IN

E
 T

H
 1

9
 S

T
A
 7

8
5
+
0
0

M
A
T
C

H
 L
IN

E
 T

H
 1
9 
S
T
A
 7
85

+0
0

M
A

T
C

H
 L
IN

E
 T

H
 1

9
 S

T
A
 7

8
5
+
0
0

T
8

A
9
3
3

f
r
o

m
 
t
h
e
 

b
r
o
a
d
e
r
 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it

y
. 

f
e
e

d
b
a
c
k
 

w
il
l 
b
e
 

k
e

y
 
t
o
 
id

e
n
t
if

y
in

g
 
d
e
s
ig

n
 
s
o
lu
t
io

n
s
 
a
n
d
 
g
a
in
in

g
 
c
o

n
s
e

n
s
u
s
 
s
u
p
p
o
r
t
 

a
lo

n
g
 
t
h
e
 
c
o
r
r
id

o
r
 
e

v
e
r
y
 

d
a
y
. 

C
a
r
e
f

u
l 
p
la

n
n
in

g
 
o
f
 
im

p
r
o

v
e

m
e

n
t
s
 
t
h
a
t
 
in
t
e

g
r
a
t
e
s
 
s
t
a
k
e

h
o
ld

e
r

e
v
e

n
 

m
o
r
e
 
im

p
o
r
t
a
n
t
ly
, 
it
 

m
u
s
t
 
f

u
ll
y
 
c
o

n
s
id

e
r
 
t
h
e
 

n
e
e

d
s
 
o
f
 
t
h
e
 

p
e

o
p
le
 

w
h
o
 
li
v
e
, 

w
o
r
k
 
a
n
d
 
d
r
iv

e

li
k
e
 

T
H
 
1
9
 
r
e

q
u
ir

e
s
 
a
n
 
a
p
p
r
o
a
c
h
 
f

o
c
u
s
e

d
 
a
r
o

u
n
d
 
u
n
d
e
r
s
t
a
n
d
in

g
 
c
u
r
r
e

n
t
 
a
n
d
 
f

u
t
u
r
e
 
r
o
a
d

w
a
y
 

u
s
e
;

f
r
e
ig

h
t
 
v
e

h
ic
le

s
. 

P
la

n
n
in

g
 
f

o
r
 
f

u
ll
 r

e
c
o

n
s
t
r
u
c
t
io

n
 
o
f
 
a
n
 
im

p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
u
r
b
a
n
 
c
o

n
n
e
c
t
o
r

d
in
in

g
 
a
n
d
 
b
u
s
in

e
s
s
e
s
. 
I
n
 
a
d
d
it
io

n
, 

T
H
 
1
9
 
s
e
r
v
e
s
 
a
s
 
a
 
c
o
r
r
id

o
r
 

w
it

h
 
s
e

v
e
r
a
l 
 n

o
d
e
s
 
f

o
r
 
la
r
g
e

c
o

n
n
e
c
t
io

n
 
t
o
 
im

p
o
r
t
a
n
t
 
c
o

m
m

u
n
it

y
 

d
e
s
t
in

a
t
io

n
s
 
s
u
c
h
 
a
s
 
s
c
h
o

o
ls
, 
c
h
u
r
c
h
e
s
, 
p
a
r
k
s
, 
s
h
o

p
p
in

g
,

A
s
 

T
r
u
n
k
 

H
ig

h
w
a
y
 

1
9
 
(T

H
 
1
9
) 
t
r
a
v
e
ls
 
t
h
r
o

u
g
h
 
d
o

w
n
t
o

w
n
 

C
it

y
 

o
f
 

M
a
r
s
h
a
ll
, 
it
 
p
r
o

v
id

e
s
 
a
 
k
e

y

P
U

R
P

O
S

E
 

A
N

D
 

N
E

E
D
:

CHAIN: RAB_CID

PROFILE: RAB_CID RAB_CID

1,160

1,170

1,150

1,160

1,170

1,150

1,150

1,160

1,170

1,150

1,160

1,170

SWCCDPROFILE: SWCCD

CHAIN: SWCCD

1,150

1,160

1,1701,170

1,160

1,150

CHAIN: NECCD

NECCDPROFILE: NECCD

1,150

1,160

1,170

1,150

1,160

1,170

CHAIN: SB2ND

PROFILE: SB2ND SB2ND
CHAIN: NB2ND

PROFILE: NB2ND NB2ND

1,150

1,160

1,170

1,150

1,160

1,170

NETH19
CHAIN: NETH19

PROFILE: NETH19

1,170

1,160

1,150

1,150

1,160

1,170

1,150

1,160

1,170

SWTH19
CHAIN: SWTH19

PROFILE: SWTH19

1,170

1,160

1,150

1,170

1,160

1,150

CHAIN: WBTH19

PROFILE: WBTH19 WBTH19

CHAIN: EBTH19

PROFILE: EBTH19 EBTH19

1,150

1,160

1,170

1,150

1,160

1,170

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

S
.A
.P
.

S
.A
.P
.

S
.A
.P
.

S
.A
.P
.

S
.A
.P
.

1
3
9
-
1
1
1
-
0
0
7
P

R

1
3
9
-
1
1
2
-
0
0
6

P
R

1
3
9
-
1
1
5
-
0
0
4
P

R

1
3
9
-
1
2
2
-
0
0
7
P

R

1
3
9
-
1
2
4
-
0
0
5
P

R

1,150

1,160

1,170

1,150

1,160

1,170

1,150

1,160

1,150

1,160

CHAIN: HIGH_ST

PROFILE: HIGH_ST HIGH_ST

1,160

1,150

1,140

1,160

1,150

1,140

CHAIN: WHITNEY_ST

PROFILE: WHITNEY_ST WHITNEY_ST

1,160

1,150

1,140

1,160

1,150

1,140

HILL_STPROFILE: HILL_ST

CHAIN: HILL_ST

1,140

1,150

1,160

1,140

1,150

1,160

MINNESOTA_ST
CHAIN: MINNESOTA_ST

PROFILE: MINNESOTA_ST

    25

SCALE IN FEET

2
2
'

2
2
'

25'

SARATOGA_ST
CHAIN: SARATOGA_ST

PROFILE: SARATOGA_ST

=102'

R

=
1
1
2
'

R

=1
02
'

R

=
1
0
2
'

R

=
4
4
0
'

R

=153.
9'

R

=
5
0
2
'

R

J
U

N
E

CHAIN: 4TH_ST

PROFILE: 4TH_ST 4TH_ST

1,170

1,160

1,150

1,170

1,160

1,150

1,150

1,160

1,150

1,160

W_LYON_ST_N
CHAIN: W_LYON_ST_N

PROFILE: W_LYON_ST_N

1,150

1,160

CHAIN: W_LYON_ST_S

PROFILE: W_LYON_ST_S W_LYON_ST_S

CHAIN: W_MARSHALL_ST_N

PROFILE: W_MARSHALL_ST_N W_MARSHALL_ST_N

1,150

1,140

1,160

1,150

1,140

1,160

1,150

1,140

W_MARSHALL_ST_S

1,150

1,140

CHAIN: W_MARSHALL_ST_S

PROFILE: W_MARSHALL_ST_S

1,150

1,160

WIND BLADE NL
55 METER -

DESIGN VEHICLE

WB MOVEMENT

EB MOVEMENT

 
-
 

H
o
r
iz

o
n
t
a
l 
C
u
r
v
e
 

R
a
d
iu

s

*
 

D
e
s
ig

n
 

E
x
c
e

p
t
io

n
s
:

p
r
e
li

m
in

a
r
y
 

d
e
s
ig

n
 
p
r
o
c
e
s
s
.

*
 

L
a
y

o
u
t
 

w
a
s
 
a
d
v
a
n
c
e

d
 
t
o
 

n
a

m
in

g
 
o
f
 

L
a
y

o
u
t
 
1
A
 
d
u
e
 
t
o
 
s
ig

n
if
ic

a
n
t
 
p
r
o
f
il
e
 
r
e

v
is
io

n
s
 
d
u
r
in

g
 
t
h
e

L
a
y

o
u
t
 

N
o
t
e
s

PICKUP TRUCK
WB-62

DESIGN VEHICLE

4
3
8
3
3

S
C

O
T

T
 

R
. 

H
O

T
C

H
K
I
N
, 

P
.E
.

0.020.020.02
0.015

0.015
0.020.02 0.02

PROFILE
GRADE

PROFILE
GRADE

0.020.02 0.02
0.020.02

0.015 0.015

0.015

PROFILE
GRADE

0.02 0.020.020.020.02
0.020.015

0.020.02 0.02
0.020.020.020.015 0.015

PROFILE
GRADE

0.01 0.01
1:6 1:6

0.02 0.020.02 0.02

0.02 0.020.02

0.02

0.02

0.02 0.02 0.02

0.02 0.02 0.020.02
0.0150.015

0.02 0.02

0.02

1:4

1:4

1:4

1:4

1:4

1:4

1:4

1:4

1:4
1:4

2
0
.
3
'

2
1
.
9
'

2
3
.
9
'

2
2
.
4
'

(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19 (E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

P
A

R
K
 

A
V
E

H
IG

H
 

S
T

H
IG

H
 

S
T

H
IL

L
 
S
T

W
H
IT

N
E

Y
 
S
T

N
B
 

W
H
IT

N
E

Y
 
S
T

S
B
 

W
H
IT

N
E

Y
 
S
T

S
B
 

H
IL

L
 
S
T

N
B
 

H
IL

L
 
S
T

S
B
 

M
IN

N
E
S

O
T

A
 
S
T

N
B
 

M
IN

N
E
S

O
T

A
 
S
T

PARK AVE
HIGH ST WHITNEY ST HILL ST

MINNESOTA ST

S-BUS-36
DESIGN VEHICLE:

S-BUS-36
DESIGN VEHICLE:

S-BUS-36
DESIGN VEHICLE:

S-BUS-36
DESIGN VEHICLE:

S-BUS-36
DESIGN VEHICLE:

(W
. C

O
LLEG

E D
R
)

TH
 
19

S
. 4

TH
 
S
T

S.
 4
TH
 
ST

10 (11) {10}

136 (143) {172}

34 (40) {81}
10 (10) {10}

155 (160) {195}

40 (45) {90}

20 (11) {7}

25 (10) {10}

179 (149) {118}

200 (170) {135}

95 (10) {10}

83 (7) {8}

38
 (3
4)
 {3
6}

40
 (4
0)
 {4
0}

20
 (1
0)
 {5
}

80
 (5
5)
 {8

0}

72
 (5
0)
 {7
2}

17
 (9
) {
5}

38
 (3
4)
 {3
6}

72
 (5
0)
 {7
2}

58
 (7
0)
 {8

9}

17
 (9
) {
5}

8 
(3
8)
 {2
1}

5 
(7
) {
14
}

LEGEND

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2045 - PROJECTED AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2019 EXISTING - AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

S. 4TH ST

S-BUS-36
DESIGN VEHICLE:

(W. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

S
A

R
A
T

O
G

A
 
S
T

S
A

R
A
T

O
G

A
 
S
T

(W. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19
(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

U
.S
. 
T
.H
. 
5
9

M
A
IN
 

S
T
R

E
E
T

U
.S
. 
T
.H
. 
5
9

M
A
IN
 

S
T
R

E
E
T

(W. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19
(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

U
.S
. 
T
.H
. 
5
9

M
A
IN
 

S
T
R

E
E
T

U
.S
. 
T
.H
. 
5
9

M
A
IN
 

S
T
R

E
E
T

(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

W
E
S
T
 
L
Y
O

N
 

S
T

W
E
S
T
 
L
Y
O

N
 

S
T

BRUCE ST

(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

B
R

U
C

E
 
S
T

B
R

U
C

E
 
S
T

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2019 EXISTING - AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2045 - PROJECTED AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

MAIN ST U.S. T.H. 59

WEST LYON ST

SARATOGA ST MAIN ST U.S. T.H. 59

SECTION
WIND TOWER UPPER-MID
DESIGN VEHICLE:

"R" CURVE CHART
APPROACH CURVE RADIUS e SPEED DIFFERENCE*

ft ft/ft mph mph

NB S. 2ND ST. R1 149 0.02 24 8

R2 74 -0.02 17 1

PHI = 29.6 DEGREES R3 515 0.02 37 ***

R4 64 -0.02 16 **

R5 114 0.02 21 5

SWB TH 19 R1 140 0.02 23 7

R2 76 -0.02 17 1

PHI = 27.7 DEGREES R3 315 0.02 31 ***

R4 64 -0.02 16 **

R5 157 0.02 24 8

EB TH 19 R1 130 0.02 22 6

R2 166 -0.02 21 5

PHI = 27.3 DEGREES R3 149 0.02 24 ***

R4 64 -0.02 16 **

R5 64 0.02 17 1

NWB COUNTRY CLUB DR. R1 138 0.02 23 7

R2 121 -0.02 20 4

PHI = 25.9 DEGREES R3 430 0.02 34 ***

R4 64 -0.02 16 **

R5 73 0.02 18 2

WB-67 MOD.
DESIGN VEHICLE:

WB-67 MOD.
DESIGN VEHICLE:

WB-67 MOD
DESIGN VEHICLE:

CLOSE

PROPOSED WALK

LEGEND

PROPOSED SHOULDER

PROPOSED ROADWAY

CONSTRUCTION LIMITS

PARCEL BOUNDARY

EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY

SECTION LINE

PROPOSED RIGHT OF WAY

PROPOSED CURB AND GUTTER

PROPOSED RAISED MEDIAN

PROPOSED PARKING

EXISTING TRAFFIC SIGNAL

ACCESS CLOSURE

PROPOSED TRUCK APRON

PROPOSED TRAFFIC SIGNAL

RIGHT IN RIGHT OUT

PROPOSED TURF

EASEMENT

TEMPORARY UTILITY

LYON COUNTY

 RIRO

7
4
0

S
t
a
 
7
4
1
+
0
0
.
0
0
 
B

K
 
=
 

E
Q

U
A
T
I

O
N
:

S
t
a
 
7
4
0
+
9
9
.
7
9
 

A
H

POT1
. 

74
0+9

9.
79

7
4
5

P
C
.
 
7
4
5
+
9
0
.
0
0

S
t
a
 

7
4

8
+

1
9
.

2
6
 

B
K
 

=
 

E
Q

U
A

T
I

O
N
:

S
t
a
 

7
4

8
+

1
8
.

0
7
 

A
H

P
T
.
 

7
4

8
+

1
9
.

2
6

750 755 760 765 770 775 780

P
C
.
 

7
8

3
+

2
0
.

7
0

S
t
a
 
7
8
4
+
8
0
.
0
6
 
B

K
 
=
 

E
Q

U
A
T
I

O
N
:

S
t
a
 
7
8
4
+
6
2
.
9
8
 

A
HPI

P
T
.
 
7
8
4
+
8
0
.
0
6

7
8
5

CURVE 2050

PI 784+04.90

X  517,224.537

Y  192,913.392

T  84.20

L  159.36

R  199.58

PC 783+20.70

PT 784+80.06

CURVE 2040

PI 747+11.10

X  514,635.236

Y  190,259.282

T  121.10

L  229.27

R  287.92

PC 745+90.00

PT 748+19.26

1
8
0

1
4
0

120

60

1
0

4
0

20

1
6
0

1
0

7
8
0

9
8
0

9
8

5

1
4

4
2

1
4
2

122

22

1
8
2

8
0

8
4

62

162

1
2

1
0

1
1

1
0

1
0

1
1

1
1

1
0

1
1

1
1

785 790

P
C
.
 

7
9

4
+

4
0
.

0
0

795

S
t
a
 

7
9

9
+

6
0
.

0
0
 

B
K
 

=
 

E
Q

U
A

T
I

O
N
:

S
t
a
 

7
9

9
+

6
0
.

1
0
 

A
H

PI

P
T
.
 

7
9

9
+

6
0
.

0
0

800
805

CURVE 2060

PI 797+00.00

X  518,545.761

Y  192,912.486

T  260.00

L  520.00

R  68,779.36

PC 794+40.00

PT 799+60.00

1
0

1
01
0

1
0

1
1

1
3

1
2

1
3

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020
 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020
 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020
 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 20 20 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020
 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 20
20 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 202
0 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020
 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 202
0 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2020 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

Wind Tower upper-Mid Section
WisDOT OSOW (US)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

Wind Tower uppe
r-Mid Sect

ion

WisDOT OSOW (US)
(c) 2021 

Transoft S
olutions, I

nc. All rig
hts reserv

ed.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 202
1 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A
ll rights reserved.

S-BUS-36
AASHTO 2018 (US)

(c) 2021 Transoft Solutions, Inc. All rights reserved.

S
-

B
U

S
-

3
6

A
A
S

H
T
O
 
2
0
1
8
 
(U

S
)

(c) 202
1 Transoft Solutions, Inc. A

ll rights reserved.

G
R

E
E
L
E

Y
 
S
T

G
R

E
E
L
E

Y
 
S
T

(W. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

(W. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

(W. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

(W. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19
(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19
(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

(E. COLLEGE DR)

TH 19

S
A

R
A
T

O
G

A
 
S
T

S
A

R
A
T

O
G

A
 
S
T

M
E

M
O

R
IA

L
 
D

R
IV

E

M
A

R
V
IN
 

S
C

H
W

A
N

N

U
.S
. 
T
.H
. 
5
9

M
A
IN
 

S
T
R

E
E
T

U
.S
. 
T
.H
. 
5
9

M
A
IN
 

S
T
R

E
E
T

W
E
S
T
 
L
Y
O

N
 

S
T

W
E
S
T
 
L
Y
O

N
 

S
T

R
E

D
W

O
O

D
 

S
T

W
E
S
T

R
E

D
W

O
O

D
 

S
T

W
E
S
T

M
A

R
S

H
A
L
L
 
S
T

W
E
S
T

M
A

R
S

H
A
L
L
 
S
T

W
E
S
T

N
. 
3
R

D
 

S
T

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2045 - PROJECTED AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2019 EXISTING - AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

LEGEND

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2045 - PROJECTED AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2019 EXISTING - AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

LEGEND

40 (45) {45}

17 (31) {32}

50
 (
4
0
) 
{5
0
}

8
9
 (
55
) 
{7
0
}

36
 (
33
) 
{4

5}

50 (35) {40}

22 (21) {13}

20
 (
4
0
) 
{4

0
}

27
 (
4
2)
 {
26

}

50
 (
8
0
) 
{6

0
}

9
1 
(6
9
) 
{6

6
}

70 (43) {62}

8
0
 (
56
) 
{8

2}

2 (4) {15}

21 (48) {49}

5 
(1
0
) 
{1
5}

1 
(9
) 
{1
2}

10
 (
5)
 {
10

}

5 
(5
) 
{0

}

3 (4) {7}

23 (31) {31}

4
5 
(7
5)
 {
70

}

27
 (
58
) 
{6

7}

5 (4) {13}

10
 (
15
) 
{2
0
}

0
 (
5)
 {
5}

0 (5) {1}

9 (13) {24}

10
 (
10
) 
{5
}

10
 (
8
) 
{6
}

5 
(1
0
) 
{1
5}

11
 (
14
) 
{3
0
}

5 (5) {10}

12
 (
6
) 
{5
}

4
4
 (
52
) 
{4

8
}

3 (4) {10}

417 (398) {328}

470 (450) {370}

80 (120) {90}

290 (460) {445}

50
 (
6
0
) 
{5
5}

15
 (
5)
 {
5}

69 (108) {81}

258 (407) {394}

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2019 EXISTING - AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

LEGEND

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2045 - PROJECTED AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

4
3 
(3
6
) 
{4

5}

4
0
 (
35
) 
{4

5}

10
0
 (
6
0
) 
{8

0
}

233 (256) {248}

34 (40) {40}

6
8
 (
74
) 
{1
11
}

22
 (
34
) 
{3
7}

363 (227) {229}

45 (31) {35}

20 (35) {35}

265 (290) {280}

30
 (
4
5)
 {
30

}

75
 (
8
5)
 {
12
5}

25 (25) {15}

410 (255) {260}

LEGEND

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2019 EXISTING - AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2045 - PROJECTED AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2045 - PROJECTED AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

PEAK HOUR VOLUMES
2019 EXISTING - AM (MIDDAY) {PM}

LEGEND

26
2 
(2
8
1)
 {
31
1}

4
4
 (
73
) 
{5
3}

69 (118) {115}

164 (222) {194}

39 (80) {104}

24
1 
(2
8
5)
 {
4
31
}

12
2 
(1
13
) 
{9

2}

237 {178) {170}

99 (86) {100}

80 (50) {70}

270 (200) {190}

110 (95) {115}

10
5 
(8
0
) 
{7
5}

29
5 
(3
20
) 
{3
50

}

45 (90) {120}

185 (250) {220}

80 (135) {130}

14
0
 (
13
0
) 
{1
0
5}

27
0
 (
32

0
) 
{4

8
5}

9
0
 (
6
5)
 {
9
5}

4
 (
3)
 {
0
}

7 
(6
) 
{8
}

241 (359) {346}4
1 
(6
8
) 
{6

1}

3 
(4
) 
{2
}

377 (329) {277}

25 (35) {35}

425 (370) {315}

5 (5) {10}

25 (55) {55}

270 (405) {390}

5 (5) {15}

5 
(5
) 
{5
}

30
 (
6
5)
 {
75

}

0
 (
2)
 {
5}

3 
(4
) 
{7
}

8
 (
13
) 
{1
8
}

2 (11) {6}

263 (398) {380}

2 
(9
) 
{1
3}

402 (381) {314}

10 (15) {25}

455 (403) {355}

0 (5) {5}

5 
(5
) 
{1
0
}

5 (5) {15}

295 (450) {430}

5 (10) {15}

10
 (
15
) 
{3
5}

GREELEY ST SARATOGA ST
MEMORIAL DRIVE

MARVIN SCHWANN
WEST LYON ST

WEST REDWOOD ST WEST MARSHALL ST N. 3RD STMAIN ST U.S. T.H. 59

S-BUS-36
DESIGN VEHICLE:

S-BUS-36
DESIGN VEHICLE:

S-BUS-36
DESIGN VEHICLE:

S-BUS-36
DESIGN VEHICLE:

S-BUS-36
DESIGN VEHICLE: S-BUS-36

DESIGN VEHICLE:
S-BUS-36

DESIGN VEHICLE:
S-BUS-36

DESIGN VEHICLE:
1
2
'

1
2
'

 

1:3

1
:
3

1:3

1
:
3

1
:
3

1
:
3

1:
3

1
2
'

1
2
'

8
'
 
S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K

6
'
 
S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K

2
0
'

2
2
'2

2
'

16'

12'

14'

14'

13'

15'

14'

13'

14'

13'

12'

16'

13'

14'

14'

14'

13'

16'

14'x 100' RTL

1
6
'

1
6
'

1
0
'

1
0
'

SIDEWALK

8' 11' SIDEWALK

 

8' SIDEWALK

 

8' SIDEWALK
8' SIDEWALK

8' SIDEWALK
8' SIDEWALK

-6' SIDEWALK

-6' SIDEWALK

1:4

=
1
5
'

R

3
4
'

35'

13'

8'

40'

40'

44'

36'

34'

6' SIDEWALK

N
O
.
9
1
3
5
2

E
X
.
 
B
R
.

N
O
.
6
5
6
8

E
X
.
 
B
R
.

N
O
.
9
3
3
4
3

E
X
.
 
B
R
.

N
O
.
5
0
8
3

E
X
.
 
B
R
.

N
O
.
4
2
J
2
2

E
X
.
 
B
R
.

S
. 2

nd
 S

T
.

G
R

E
E

L
E

Y
 S

T
.

G
R

E
E

L
E

Y
 S

T
.

M
A

R
V
IN
 S

C
H

W
A

N
N
 M

E
M

O
R
IA

L
 D

R
.

W
E

S
T
 L

Y
O

N
 S

T
.

W
E

S
T
 R

E
D

W
O

O
D
 S

T
.

W
E

S
T
 R

E
D

W
O

O
D
 S

T
.

W
E

S
T
 M

A
R

S
H

A
L
L
 S

T
.

W
E

S
T
 M

A
R

S
H

A
L
L
 S

T
.

W
ALN

UT 
ST.

UMH

PARK

LIBERTY

PARK

MEMORIAL

PARK

LIBERTY

1
2
'

1
2
'

=
1
0
'

R

14'

12'

16'
12'

14'

13'x 100' RTL

16'

13'

16'
14'

14'

13'

16'

12'

14'x 100' RTL

REDWOOD RIVER

REDWOOD 
RI

VER

REDWOOD RIVER

R
E

D
W

O
O

D
 
R
I

V
E
R

R
E

D
W

O
O

D
 

R
I

V
E

R

REDWOOD RIVER

WEST COLLEGE DR. EAST COLLEGE DR.
WEST COLLEGE DR.

W
E
S
T
 C

O
LLE

G
E
 D

R
.

M
N
. 
T
.H
. 
6
8
/U
.S
. 
T

H
 5

9

M
A
IN
 S

T
R

E
E

T
  

M
A
IN
 S

T
R

E
E

T
  
  
 U
.S
. 
T
.H
. 
5
9

26'

13'

13'

17'

6
'
 
S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K

14'

16'

12'

1:31:
31:31:2

1
:
2

8' SIDEWALK

1
2
'

1
2
'

1
2
'

1
8
'

1
2
'

34'

12' 14'
24'

24'

32'

28' 18'

24'

32' 24'

29.2'

24'

26'

24'

1
2
'

24'

D
E
S
IG

N

S
P

E
E

D

3
0

P
O
S
T
E
D

S
P

E
E

D

3
0

D
E
S
IG

N

S
P

E
E

D

3
0

P
O
S
T
E
D

S
P

E
E

D

3
0

DESIGN

S
P
EED

3
0

POSTED

S
P
EED

3
0

DE
SI

GN

S
P
EE

D

3
0

PO
ST

ED

S
P
EE

D

3
0

13' SIDEWALK

8' SIDEWALK

13'

=
1
5
'

R

8' SIDEWALK

10' SIDEWALK

12' SIDEWALK

13' SIDEWALK 8' SIDEWALK

8' SIDEWALK

8' SIDEWALK

12'14'
13' 13'11'12' 11'

18' 12' 13' 12' 14'

14'17'

16' 14'

16' 12'

26'

16' 12' 16'

44.5'

43.3'

16' 16'

T
IM

M
E

R
M

A
N
 D

R
.

A
R

T
IL

L
E

R
Y
 D

R
.

7
.
5
'
-

1
1
.
3
'

28'

16'

14'

24'

3
0
'

15
'

R

8' SIDEWALK

20'

VAR.

VAR.  

18'

3
8
'

3
6
'

3
6
'

4
4
'

4
3
'

4
4
'

44'

25'

44'

51'

44'

36'

36'

38'

36'

36'

69'

60'

57'

56'

{ T.H. 19

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
3
0
'

R

=
4
8
'

R

=22'

R

=
4
0
'

R

=2
4'

R

=
1
8
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
3
5
'

R

{ T.H. 19

{ NETH19

{ SWTH19

{ WBTH19

{ EBTH19

{ RAB_CID

{ SWCCD

{ NECCD

{ SB2ND

{ NB2ND

20'

=30'

R

=
1
5
'

R

24'

2
4
'

1:70

10' PARKING

WEST LYON ST.

{ INP68

{ INP59

=3.3'

R

=1
5'

R

1
:
2

1
:
3

=4'

R
=4
'

R

8' SIDEWALK

SIGNAL SYSTEM
REPLACE EXISTING

SIGNAL SYSTEM
REPLACE EXISTING

=
1
5
'

R

=2'
R

8
'
 
S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K

5
'
 
B
L

V
D

5
'
 
B
L

V
D

6
'
 

B
L

V
D

6' 
BLVD

8
'
 

S
I

D
E

W
A

L
K

7' BLVD 6' BLVD 7' BLVD6' BLVD

13' BLVD
14' BLVD

8' SIDEWALK

VAR. BLVD

VAR. BLVD VAR. BLVD 10' BLVD

B
6
2
4
 
C

&
G

B
6
2
4
 
C

&
G

B
6
2
4
 
C

&
G

B
6
2
4
 
C

&
G

B
6
2
4
 
C

&
G

(TIPPED OUT)

B624 C&G

R424 C&G

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

C&G

B624

B624 C&G

B624 C&G
B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

1
:
3

1
5
'
 
S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K

1
5
'
 
S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K

1:3

1:
3

1:
3

+
8

5

+
6
5

+
6

5 +
9

0

2
4
'

13' BLVD

(M
S

A
S
 1
1
0
)

S
. 
4
T
H
 S

T
. 

(M
S
A
S
 1
24
)

S
. 4

T
H
 S

T
.

(MSAS 122)

COUNTRY CLUB DR.

(M
S

A
S
 1

1
1
)

S
A

R
A

T
O

G
A
 S

T
.

(M
S

A
S
 1

1
1
)

S
A

R
A

T
O

G
A
 S

T
.

(M
S

A
S
 1

1
2
)

N
. 
3

R
D
 S

T
.

SOUTHBOUND MAIN ST
TWO THROUGH LANES FOR 
PARKING REMOVED TO ALLOW

1
0
'
 
P

A
R

K
I

N
G

14.7'

1
0
'
 

P
A

R
K
I

N
G

1
2
.
5
'
 

P
A

R
K
I

N
G

1:31:6

+
7

8

+
6

0

V
A
R
.
 
B
L

V
D

14'

=
6
0
'

R

1:140

1
9
'

9' MEDIAN

9' MEDIAN

9
'
 

M
E

D
I

A
N

2
4
'

12' 12'
12'

12'

=15'R

=
2
'

R

=
2
3
'

R =
2
3
'

R

=24'

R

=
4
0
'

R

1
:
3

=17'
R

2
4
'

24'

20'

9' PARKING

9' PARKING9' PARKING9' PARKING
9' PARKING9' PARKING9' PARKING9' PARKING

15' SIDEWALK
14' SIDEWALK

CLOSECLOSECLOSE

CLOSE CLOSECLOSECLOSE

CLOSE
CLOSECLOSE

CLOSE

CLOSE

C
LO

S
E

 
R
IR

O

C
L
O
S
E

CLO
SE

43'

31.5'

31'

43'

36.5'

=
2
0
'

R =
2
6
'

R

3
8
'

2
4
'

1:50

1
:
2

14'

(RRFB) SYSTEM
RAPID FLASHING BEACON 
INSTALL RECTANGULAR

REPLACE APPROACH PANELS

SIGNAL SYSTEM
REMOVE EXISTING

+
0
5

+
1
8

6
'
 
S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K

+
0
0

+
2
5

+
9

5

+
4

0

+
3
2

+
2

2

+
2

4

+
6

3

S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K
V

A
R
.

S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K
V

A
R
.

S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K
8
'

S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K

V
A
R
.

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=15'

R

=
1
8
'

R

=
9
'

R

=
1
5
'

R
=
1
5
'

R

=
1
6
'

R

=18
'

R

+
6
9

+
7
6

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

9' PARKING

9' MEDIAN

1
0
'
 
P

A
R

K
I

N
G

12'

14'

2
9
.

2
'

6
'
 

S
I

D
E

W
A

L
K

6
'
 

S
I

D
E

W
A

L
K

6.67' BLVD

+
6

0

+
4

9 3
5
'

R

6' SIDEWALK VAR. SIDEWALK

S
I

D
E

W
A
L

K
V

A
R
.

+
6
4

+
4
3

1:15

1
:
3

1
:
3

1
:
5

1
:
5

SIDEWALK

VAR.

16'

{ W_MARSHALL_ST_S

{ W_MARSHALL_ST_N

{ W_LYON_ST_N

{ W_LYON_ST_S

+
2
1

+
3
0

+
2
2

+
2
9

{ 4TH_ST

=9'

R

=15'

R

=
1
5
'

R

+
5
7

+
6
0

+
5
8

+
6
3

+
7
1+

6
3

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
6
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

+
7

5

=
1
6
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R =
1
5
'

R

+
6

3

{ SARATOGA_ST

+60

+45

28'

+
4

6

+
8

8

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

+
3

9

+
5

9

+92

+08

=15'

R

=15'
R

=15'R

+29

+04

=1
5'

R

=
1
7
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

+
9

4

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=15'R

32'

=15'
R

+46

+84

=1
5'

R

=15
'

R

+52

+41

=15'

R

32'

SIDEWALK

VAR.

1:
5

CLOSE

CURB

EXISTING

REMOVE 

13'

14'

12'

12'

13'

1:5

1:30

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R
=
1
5
'

R

1
:
2

14'

12'

12'

12'

14'

28'

20'20'

53'

20' 20'

32'

44'

32'

P
A

R
K
 A

V
E
.

H
IG

H
 S

T
.

H
IG

H
 S

T
.

W
H
IT

N
E

Y
 S

T
.

N
B
 W

H
IT

N
E

Y
 S

T
.

S
B
 W

H
IT

N
E

Y
 S

T
.

S
B
 H
IL

L
 S

T
.

N
B
 H
IL

L
 S

T
.

H
IL

L
 S

T
.

S
B
 M

IN
N

E
S

O
T

A
 S

T
.

N
B
 M

IN
N

E
S

O
T

A
 S

T
.

S
. 

B
R

U
C

E
 S

T
.

N
. 

B
R

U
C

E
 S

T
.

13'

14'

14'

13'

14'

14'

13'

14'

14'

13'

14'

20' 20'

EAST COLLEGE DR.

1:55

27'

12' 16'

14'

12'

29' 26'

24'
18'

34'
32' 32'

D
E
S
IG

N

S
P

E
E

D

3
0

P
O
S
T
E
D

S
P

E
E

D

3
0

D
E

S
I
G

N

S
P

E
E

D

3
0

P
O

S
T

E
D

S
P

E
E

D

3
0

1
6
'

1
6
'

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=1
5'

R =15'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

=10'

R

1
:
3

1
:
3

1
:
3

1
:
3

1
:
3

1
:
3

=
1
5
'

R

=
1
5
'

R

1
:
5

1
:
5

1
:
5

1
:
5

1
:
5

1
:
5

1
:
3

1
:
3

1
:
3

1
:
3

29'

36'

36' 36'

36'
36'

36'

36'

{ T.H. 19

{ HIGH ST.

{ WHITNEY ST.

{ HILL ST.

{ MINNESOTA ST.

6' SIDEWALK

6' SIDEWALK

6' SIDEWALK

6' SIDEWALK

6' SIDEWALK

6' SIDEWALK

6' SIDEWALK

6' SIDEWALK

6' SIDEWALK

5' SIDEWALK

=
1
5
'

R

32'

-4' BLVD

7' BLVD

-4' BLVD

6' BLVD

-4' BLVD

6' BLVD
12' BLVD

VAR. BLVD

VAR. BLVD

6' BLVDVAR. BLVD

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

B624 C&G

C&G

B624

+
1

1 +
7

6

+
2

2

+74

+20

+73

+16

=10
'

R

+73

+20

+16+18

=1
0'

R

+13

+70

9' MEDIAN 9' MEDIAN

 RIRO

CLOSE CLOSE CLOSE

CLOSE

4
4
.

5
'

12'

+
1
2

8.2'

=15'
R

=1
5'

R

=15'
R

=15'R =15'
R

=15
'

R

=15'
R =19'R

=15'
R

=1
5'

R

=1
5'

R=15'R

=15
'

R

=15'
R

=15'R
=15
'

R

=10.6'

R

=15'
R

=19'R

=15'R

+04

+37

+06

+24

+30 +39

+68+62

+39
+30

+68

+34

+66

+44

+70

+04

+15

+05

+36

=15'R

+37

+49

6
'
 

S
I

D
E

W
A

L
K

6
'
 

S
I

D
E

W
A

L
K

=
1
5
'

R

=15'
R

=19'
R

1
:
3

1
:
3

+29

+28 +29

+30

14.8'

19'

+
0

5

+
9

1

=15'R

=
1
5
'

R

MN TH 19

M
N
 T

H
 19

MINNESOTAM

19

M
INNESOTA

M
19

M
N
 
T

H
 
5
9

MN TH 19

MINNESOTAM

19

2
0
4
5
 

A
D

T
 
=
 
2
,0

0
0

2
0
1
8
 

A
D

T
 
=
 
1
,7

5
0

D
E

S
IG

N
 
S

P
E

E
D
 
=
 
3
0
 

M
P

H

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 
P

O
S

T
E

D
 
S

P
E

E
D
 
=
 
3
0
 

M
P

H

2
0
4
5
 

A
D

T
 
=
 
2
,3

5
0

2
0
1
8
 

A
D

T
 
=
 
2
,0

5
0

D
E

S
IG

N
 
S

P
E

E
D
 
=
 
3
0
 

M
P

H

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 
P

O
S

T
E

D
 
S

P
E

E
D
 
=
 
3
0
 

M
P

H

S
A

R
A

T
O

G
A
 
S

T

W
E

S
T
 

M
A

R
S

H
A

L
L
 
S

T

N
. 

3
R

D
 
S

T

S
A

R
A

T
O

G
A
 
S

T

S
O

U
T

H
 

O
F
 
T

H
1
9

2
0
4
5
 

A
D

T
 
=
 
3
,6

5
0

2
0
1
8
 

A
D

T
 
=
 
3
,2

0
0

D
E

S
IG

N
 
S

P
E

E
D
 
=
 
3
0
 

M
P

H

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 
P

O
S

T
E

D
 
S

P
E

E
D
 
=
 
3
0
 

M
P

H

N
O

R
T

H
 

O
F
 
T

H
1
9

2
0
4
5
 

A
D

T
 
=
 
4
,1

0
0

2
0
1
8
 

A
D

T
 
=
 
3
,6

0
0

D
E

S
IG

N
 
S

P
E

E
D
 
=
 
3
0
 

M
P

H

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 
P

O
S

T
E

D
 
S

P
E

E
D
 
=
 
3
0
 

M
P

H

N
O

R
T

H
 

O
F
 
T

H
1
9

2
0
4
5
 

A
D

T
 
=
 
1
1
,1

0
0

2
0
1
8
 

A
D

T
 
=
 
9
,8

0
0

D
E

S
IG

N
 
S

P
E

E
D
 
=
 
3
0
 

M
P

H

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 
P

O
S

T
E

D
 
S

P
E

E
D
 
=
 
3
0
 

M
P

H
M

N
 
T

H
 
6
8

M
IN

N
E
S

O
TA

M

6
8

S
O

U
T

H
 

O
F
 
T

H
1
9

2
0
4
5
 

A
D

T
 
=
 
1
0
,8

0
0

2
0
1
8
 

A
D

T
 
=
 
9
,5

0
0

D
E

S
IG

N
 
S

P
E

E
D
 
=
 
3
0
 

M
P

H

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 
P

O
S

T
E

D
 
S

P
E

E
D
 
=
 
3
0
 

M
P

H

2018 H
C
A
D
T = 220

2045 A
D
T = 3,600

2018 A
D
T = 3,150

D
E
S
IG

N
 S

P
E
E
D
 = 30 M

P
H

C
U
R
R
E
N
T P

O
S
TE

D
 S

P
E
E
D
 = 30 M

P
H

2018 HCADT = 410

2045 ADT = 9,300

2018 ADT = 8,200

DESIGN SPEED = 30 MPH

CURRENT POSTED SPEED = 30 MPH

2018 HCADT = 235

2045 ADT = 10,350

2018 ADT = 9,500

DESIGN SPEED = 30 MPH

CURRENT POSTED SPEED = 30 MPH

MN TH 19

MINNESOTAM

19
2018 HCADT = 260

2045 ADT = 10,800

2018 ADT = 9,500

DESIGN SPEED = 30 MPH

CURRENT POSTED SPEED = 30 MPH

 5
9

Page 36Item 2.



Municipal Consent 
HPDP / Minnesota Department of Transportation 

Last Updated: December 8, 2014 

Page 1 of 7 

 

 

 
 

Municipal Consent 
 

Contact 
 

Ryan Gaulke, ryan.gaulke@state.mn.us 
Office of Chief Counsel 
395 John Ireland Boulevard, MS 130 
St. Paul, MN 55155 
651.366.3057 

 
 
 

Municipal Consent Risk Management 
 
 
 

Submittal Letter and Attachments 
• Submittal Letter/Template 
• MN Statutes 161.162 – 161.167 
• Example: Cost Estimate / City Costs 
• Example: City Resolution for Municipal Consent 
• Example: City Resolution Waiving Municipal Consent 

 
 
 

Legal Basis 
The Minnesota municipal consent statutes were revised in the 2001 legislative session. 

 
State Municipal Consent Statutes 

 

Definitions MN Statute 161.162 

Highway Project Review MN Statute 161.163 

Final Layout Approval Process MN Statute 161.164 

Commissioner Action; Interstate Highways MN Statute 161.165 

Commissioner Action; Other Highways MN Statute 161.166 

Reimbursement of Expenses 
(for Appeal Board Members) MN Statute 161.167 

Page 37Item 2.

mailto:ryan.gaulke@state.mn.us
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=1503913
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=1503913
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=1503394
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=1503394
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=1503388
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=1503388
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=1503383
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=1503383
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=1503385
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=1503385
https://edocs-public.dot.state.mn.us/edocs_public/DMResultSet/download?docId=1503386
http://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/stats/161/162.html
http://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/stats/161/163.html
http://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/stats/161/164.html
http://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/stats/161/165.html
http://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/stats/161/166.html
http://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/stats/161/167.html


Municipal Consent 
HPDP / Minnesota Department of Transportation 

Last Updated: December 8, 2014 

Page 2 of 7 

 

 

 
 

Threshold Criteria 
Municipal consent should only be requested from a city if it is required. 

 
 

When Required 
Municipal approval is required for any trunk highway project that results in any of the 
following within a municipality: 

 
• Alters access, 
• Increases or reduces traffic capacity, or 
• Requires acquisition of permanent right of way. 

 
Increasing or reducing traffic capacity means increasing or reducing the number of 
through lanes. For example, adding an auxiliary lane is not a change in capacity. 

 
Acquisition of permanent right of way includes acquisition of permanent easements 
(e.g., drainage easements). 

 
 

Exceptions 
Municipal consent is not required for maintenance activities or for the following: 

• HOV Lanes / Dynamic shoulders (MN Statute 160.93, Subd. 3) 
• Traffic safety measures (MN Statute 161.163, Subd. 2) 

 
HOV Lanes / Dynamic Shoulder Lanes (MN Statute 160.93, Subd. 3) 
Municipal consent is not required (regardless of impacts to access, capacity, or right of 
way) for the construction and/or designation of lanes on trunk highways for use as 
either: 

• High-Occupancy Vehicle Lanes (e.g., MnPASS), or 
• Dynamic Shoulder Lanes, 

 
Traffic safety measures (MN Statute 161.163, Subd. 2) 
Municipal consent is not required (regardless of impacts to access, capacity, or right of 
way) for projects needed for any of the following: 

• Regulate traffic, or 
• Install traffic control devices, or 
• Other safety measures 

Page 38Item 2.

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=160.93
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=161.163
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=160.93
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=161.163


Municipal Consent 
HPDP / Minnesota Department of Transportation 

Last Updated: December 8, 2014 

Page 3 of 7 

 

 

 
 
 

The term “other safety measures” refers to traffic safety measures. The 
addition of a turn lane, for example, is a traffic safety measure; the 
replacement of a structurally-deficient or fracture-critical bridge is not. 

 
Below are examples of traffic safety exceptions: 

 
Safety Improvements for Pedestrian/ADA Facilities 

Municipal consent is not required for projects in which the only trigger for 
municipal consent is the acquisition of minor amounts of right of way 
needed for safety improvements required to comply with ADA and to 
further MnDOT’s goal of providing safe, accessible pedestrian facilities. 

 
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) is a federal act that requires 
MnDOT to provide accessible pedestrian facilities. MnDOT projects often 
include improvements to comply with ADA and to help reach MnDOT’s 
goal of providing safe and accessible pedestrian facilities. 

 
NOTE: The Minnesota statutory definition of “pedestrian” includes 
any person in a wheelchair. (See Minnesota Statute 169.011, 
Subd.53 and Subd. 93). 

 
Acquisition of permanent right of way is one of the statutory triggers for 
obtaining municipal consent, and minor amounts of right of way are 
sometimes needed for safe and accessible pedestrian facilities. However, 
Minnesota Statute 161.163, Subd. 2 includes a traffic safety exception to 
the municipal consent requirement. Improvements needed to provide 
safe, accessible pedestrian facilities are traffic safety measures, and thus 
are safety exceptions to municipal consent. These safety improvements 
include curb ramps, accessible sidewalks and ramps, pedestrian refuge 
areas, areas for safe pedestrian movement, and pedestrian-operated 
warning devices. 

 
Roundabouts 

Roundabouts are used for traffic regulation and as a safety measure, and 
thus are exceptions that do not require municipal consent even if they 
require acquisition of permanent right of way. 

Page 39Item 2.

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=169.011
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=161.163


Municipal Consent 
HPDP / Minnesota Department of Transportation 

Last Updated: December 8, 2014 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 

 
 

Roles and Procedures 
Municipal consent should only be requested from a city if it is required. (See Threshold Criteria 
above). 

 
Sometimes a city may choose to waive municipal consent on a specific project. In that case the 
city council must pass a resolution clearly identifying the project and waiving its right to 
municipal consent for that project. However, the typical municipal consent process is as outlined 
below. 

 

Procedure (for obtaining municipal consent) 
1. Mn/DOT (District) submits to the city the final layout with a letter requesting city 

approval. The letter includes a good faith cost estimate of the city’s share of the 
project’s cost and the following (either in the letter or in an attached report): 

• project purpose 
• route location 
• short description of the proposed design of the highway 
• any additional supporting data 

 
2. City schedules and holds public hearing (within 60 days of submittal). 

City must schedule within 15 days of receiving Mn/DOT’s request for approval and 
must give 30 days public notice. 

 
3. City passes resolution approving / disapproving (within 90 days of public hearing). 

After 90 from the date of the public hearing, if the city has not passed a resolution 
disapproving the layout, the layout is deemed approved. 

 
4. If city disapproves, Mn/DOT decides whether to: 

 

a. Meet city’s condition(s), assuming city approved with conditions: 
Mn/DOT writes city a letter indicating this and attaches revised layout with 
change(s). This ends the MC process. 

 
b. Go to the appeal process. 

 

c. Stop the project (do not build the project, or scale project down so that municipal 
consent is no longer required). 

Page 40Item 2.



Municipal Consent 
HPDP / Minnesota Department of Transportation 

Last Updated: December 8, 2014 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 

 
 
 
 

5. If in the final plan Mn/DOT alters access, capacity or R/W, Mn/DOT must re-submit 
changed portion of plan for city’s approval. (The city is not required to hold another 
public hearing and has 60 days to approve or disapprove). 

 

City Approval 
The city can approve either by a formal approval resolution (see generic resolution in 
Appendix), or by not passing a resolution disapproving the layout within 90 days of the 
public hearing. 

 
The city’s review – with regards to layout approval – is limited to the project elements 
in the final layout that are within the boundaries of that city. A city cannot impose a 
condition on its approval that is outside of the city’s boundaries. 

 
The process allows the city one opportunity to exercise approval or disapproval of the 
final layout (unless Mn/DOT alters the plan with regards to access, capacity, or right- 
of-way). Once a city approves the layout, it cannot rescind its approval later. If a city 
disapproves with conditions, and if Mn/DOT agrees to meet those conditions – and 
notifies the city in writing (including copy of revised layout) – then municipal consent 
has been obtained. 

 
The municipal consent statute applies to changes on “any route on the trunk highway 
system lying within any municipality.” If a T.H. borders a city and no section of the T.H. 
is completely within the city limits, municipal consent is still required for any of the 
designated changes (access, capacity, or right of way) that do occur within that city. 
However, if the changes triggering the municipal consent process are on the other side 
of the T.H. – and thus outside the city’s limits – then municipal consent is not required 
from that city and is not requested from that city. 

 

City Disapproval 
If a city disapproves the final layout, Mn/DOT can stop the project (or scale it back so 
that municipal consent is no longer required), or Mn/DOT can take the project to the 
appeal process. 

Page 41Item 2.



Municipal Consent 
HPDP / Minnesota Department of Transportation 

Last Updated: December 8, 2014 

Page 6 of 7 

 

 

 
 
 

If the city disapproves – but includes condition(s) for approval, Mn/DOT has the above 
options plus the option of meeting the city’s condition(s), and thus obtaining the city’s 
approval. To do this, Mn/DOT sends the city a letter to that effect with the layout 
attached (revised to show the change(s)). This completes the municipal consent 
process; Mn/DOT then has the city’s approval. (Sending the letter and revised layout is 
NOT a resubmittal for further consideration by the city). 

 

Appeal Process 
The appeal process is the same for interstate and non-interstate projects. However, 
the Mn/DOT Commissioner is not bound by the recommendations of the appeal board 
with respect to interstate highways. 

 
If Mn/DOT decides to go to the appeal process, the first step is to establish an Appeal 
Board of three members: one member appointed by the Commissioner, one member 
appointed by the City Council, and a third member agreed upon by both the 
Commissioner and the City Council. (If a third member cannot be agreed upon, the 
Commissioner refers the selection to the chief justice of the Supreme Court, who then 
has 14 days to appoint the third member). 

 
After the appeal board is established, the Commissioner refers the final layout to the 
Appeal Board. The Appeal Board then has 30 days to hold a hearing at which the 
Commissioner and the City Council may present their cases for or against approval of 
the layout. Within 60 days after the hearing, the Appeal Board must make its 
recommendation regarding the final layout. The recommendation can be for: 

• approval, or 
• approval with modifications, or 
• disapproval. 

 
The board can also make additional recommendations consistent with state and 
federal requirements as it deems appropriate. The board must submit a written report 
with its findings and recommendations to the Commissioner and the City Council. 

Page 42Item 2.



Municipal Consent 
HPDP / Minnesota Department of Transportation 

Last Updated: December 8, 2014 

Page 7 of 7 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mn/DOT Public Involvement 
 
 
 
 

Glossary 
Municipality: A statutory or home rule charter city. 

 
Municipal Consent: A municipality’s approval of Mn/DOT’s final layout for a project on a Trunk 
Highway when such approval is required by State Statute – see Threshold Criteria above. 
(Approval is by a resolution passed by the elected council of the municipality – the City Council). 

 
 
 
 

Appendix 
Municipal Consent Process & Timeline 

Sample City Resolution 

Page 43Item 2.

http://www.dot.state.mn.us/publicinvolvement/index.html


Municipal Consent Process & Timeline 
Mn/DOT / HPDP 

holds whether municipal consent was obtained through the basic MC process or through the appeal process. 

 

 

Basic Process 
1. Mn/DOT submits the final layout to the City with a letter requesting City approval of the layout. 

 
2. The City holds public hearing within 60 days of Mn/DOT’s submittal 60 days 

and gives a 30-day (minimum) public notice of the hearing. 
Mn/DOT presents the layout at the public hearing 

 
3. The City Council passes a resolution approving / disapproving the layout 

(within 90 days of public hearing). 
If after 90 days from the public hearing the City has not passed a 90 days 
resolution disapproving the layout, the layout is deemed approved 

 
4. If the City approves, Mn/DOT can proceed with the project. 

 
5. If the City disapproves, Mn/DOT’s options are: 

o Make the changes requested by the City (if any) 
o Refer the layout to an Appeal Board 
o Stop the project 
o Modify the project so municipal consent is not required 
o Prepare a new final layout and start the MC process over from beginning 

 

Before Appeal: Total Maximum time  = 150 days 
Appeal Process 
1. Mn/DOT notifies the City that it is appealing. 

 

2. An Appeal Board of three persons is established: 
o Mn/DOT appoints a member Undefined time to 
o The City appoints a member establish appeal board 
o Third member selected by mutual agreement between the City & Mn/DOT. 

If they cannot agree, Mn/DOT requests the MN Chief Justice to select. 
The Chief Justice appoints third member within 14 days of Mn/DOT’s request. 14 days 

 
3. Mn/DOT refers the final layout to the Appeal Board. Undefined time 

 
4. The Appeal Board holds a hearing (within 30 days of receiving final layout from Mn/DOT). 

The City and Mn/DOT each present their case 30 days 
 

5. The Appeal Board makes its recommendation (within 60 days of the hearing): 60 days 
o Approval, or 
o Approval with modifications, or 
o Disapproval of the final layout Maximum for Appeal Process = 104 days + 

(plus time to establish appeal board, etc.) 
6. If the Board approves, Mn/DOT can proceed with the project. 

 
7. If the Board disapproves, or approves with modifications, Mn/DOT’s options are: 

o Make recommended modifications (if any), and proceed with the project 
o Stop the project 
o Modify the project so municipal consent is not required 
o Prepare a new final layout and start the MC process over from beginning 
o If it is an Interstate Highway project, Mn/DOT may proceed with the project using 

the layout that was not approved (and sends a report to the City and the Appeal 
Board stating the reasons for doing so). 

TOTAL Possible Time = 254 days + 
 

NOTE: If final construction plans contain changes to access, capacity, or right of way from the layout approved by the 
City, Mn/DOT resubmits the changed portion of the plans to the City for approval. (City has 60 days to approve). This 

Page 44Item 2.



 

 

Sample City Resolution 
RESOLUTION NO.     

Resolution for Layout Approval 
 

At a Meeting of the City Council of the City of  , held on the  day 

of  , 20    , the following Resolution was offered by  and seconded by 

  to wit: 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of Transportation has prepared a final layout for State Project XXXX.XX 

on Trunk Highway XX, from  to  within the City of  for 

  improvements; and seeks the approval thereof, as described in Minnesota 

Statutes 161.162 to 161.167: and 

 
WHEREAS, said final layout is on file in the District X Minnesota Department of Transportation office, 

CITY, Minnesota, being marked as Layout No. XXXX, S.P. XXXX-XX, from R.P. XX+xxx to XX+xxx. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that said final layout for the improvement of said Trunk Highway 

within the corporate limits be and is hereby approved. 

 
Upon the call of the roll the following Council Members voted in favor of the Resolution: 

The following Council Members voted against its adoption: 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

Mayor   Dated  , 20   
 
 

State of Minnesota 

County of                                 

City of     

 
I do hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution is a true and correct copy of a resolution presented to 

and  adopted  by  the  Council  of  the  City  of    , Minnesota at a duly 

authorized meeting thereof held on the  day of  , 20 , as shown by the 

minutes of said meeting in my possession. 

 
(SEAL)   

City Clerk 

Page 45Item 2.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: PUBLIC HEARING 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: 308 Athens Ave.– 1) Public Hearing regarding a home property tax abatement request 2) 

Consideration of a resolution approving home property tax abatement. 

Background 

Information: 

On July 13, 2021 a public hearing was called for and to be held on August 24, 2021 regarding a 

home property tax abatement request. Per M.S 469.1813 sub 5 The governing body of 

the political subdivision may approve an abatement under sections 469.1812 to 

469.1815 only after holding a public hearing on the abatement. The property is located 

at 308 Athens Ave. with an estimated market value of $213,600.00 and with the difference of 

improvement being $201,800.00. 

27-711049-0                           Stanley & Sandra Dopheide        308 Athens Ave 

 

HOMESTEAD TAX RATE 

 

2021 prebuild raw land value 
2021 post build 

total 

value 

Difference of 
improvement 

 11,800 $                 
213,600.00 

$                  
201,800.00 

 
taxes @ 2021 rates 

  
taxes @ 2021 
rates 

 

$                                       42.00 $                      
1,165.00 

$                       
1,123.00 

city portion only 

 

 

Fiscal Impact: The approximate amount of assistance is $1,123 a year or $2,246 over a maximum period of 2 

years as a Homestead. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None Recommended. 

Recommendations: Recommendation #1- To Close the Public Hearing 

Recommendation #2- To approve the resolution approving home property tax 

abatement 

 

Page 46Item 3.



Resolution Number 21-061 
 

RESOLUTION RELATING TO A TAX ABATEMENT ON PROPERTY BY STANLEY & 
SANDRA DOPHEIDE; GRANTING THE ABATEMENT 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Marshall, Minnesota, as 

follows: 
 
Section 1. AUTHORIZATION AND RECITALS. 

 
1.01. The City, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.1812 to 469.1815, as 

amended (the “Act”), is authorized to grant an abatement of the property taxes 
imposed by the County on a parcel of property (Property Tax Abatement) if certain 
conditions are met, through the adoption of a resolution specifying the terms of the 
abatement.  
 

1.02. The City has adopted the City of Marshall Tax Abatement Policy which further 
stipulates requirements before an abatement of taxes will be granted for residential 
development. 

 
1.03. STANLEY & SANDRA DOPHEIDE; have applied for a Home Tax Abatement pursuant 

to the City’s Home Tax Abatement Policy on property legally described as: Parcel 
ID: 27-711049-0, 308 Athens Ave., Marshall, MN 56258.  

 
1.04. Pursuant to the Act, this Common Council on August 24, 2021, conducted a public 

hearing on the desirability of granting the abatement. Notice of the public hearing 
was duly published as required by law in the Marshall Independent, the official 
newspaper of the City. 

 
Section 2. FINDINGS. On the basis of information compiled by the City and elicited 

at the public hearing referred to in Section 1.04, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared: 

 
2.01. There is a need for new development on the Property to increase the tax base of 
the City and to improve the general economy of the state. 
 
2.02. The granting of the proposed abatement is in the public interest because it will 
increase or preserve the tax base of the City. 
 
2.03. The Property is not located in a tax increment financing district. 
 
2.04. The granting of the proposed abatement will not cause the aggregate amount of 
abatements granted by the City under the Act to exceed the greater of ten percent 
(10.00%) of the County’s current property tax levy, or $200,000. 

Page 47Item 3.



 
2.05. It is in the best interests of the City to grant the tax abatement authorized in this 
Resolution. 
 
 Section 3. GRANTING OF TAX ABATMENT 
 
3.01. A property tax abatement (the “Abatement”) is hereby granted in respect of 
property taxes levied by the City on the Property for two (2) years, commencing with taxes 
payable for the assessed value related to the capital improvements outlined in 1.03. 
 
3.02. The City shall provide the awarded abatement payment following payment of due 
real estate taxes annually. One single payment shall be made to the owner of record by 
December 30th of that calendar year. 
 
3.03 The tax abatement shall be for the residential capital improvements only. Land 
values and the current base value are not eligible and will not be abated. 
 
3.04 The tax abatement period will commence with receipt of the Certificate of 
Occupancy, or not more than one year following approval of the taxing authority’s 
resolution, whichever is first.   
 
3.05. The Abatement may be modified or terminated at any time by the Common Council 
in accordance with the Act. 
 
 
 Passed by the Common Council of the City of Marshall, this 24th day of August, 
2021. 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
          Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 

Page 48Item 3.



 
CITY OF MARSHALL 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT 

FOR HOME TAX ABATEMENT APPLICANT STANLEY & SANDRA DOPHEIDE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Marshall Minnesota (the “City”), 

will hold a public hearing at a meeting of the Council beginning at 5:30 p.m., on August 24, 2021 to 

be held at City Hall, 344 West Main Street, in Marshall, Minnesota, on the request of Home Tax 

Abatement Applicant that the City abate a portion of property taxes levied by the City in connection 

with the construction house structure. The property is located within the City and is currently 

identified as Parcel No. 27-711049-0. The approximate amount of assistance is $2,246 over a 

maximum period of 2 years. The City Council will consider granting a property tax abatement in 

response to the request.  

 

Information about the proposed tax abatement will be on file and available for public inspection at 

the office of the City Clerk at City Hall.  

 

All interested persons may appear at the public hearing and present their views orally or in writing. 

Following the public hearing, the City Council will take action concerning the adoption or rejection 

of the proposed tax abatement application.  

  

August 10, 2021 

 

Kyle Box 

City Clerk 
 

Page 49Item 3.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: PUBLIC HEARING 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: 310 Athens Ave.– 1) Public Hearing regarding a home property tax abatement request 2) 

Consideration of a resolution approving home property tax abatement. 

Background 

Information: 

On August 10, 2021 a public hearing was called for and to be held on August 24, 2021 regarding 

a home property tax abatement request. Per M.S 469.1813 sub 5 The governing body of 

the political subdivision may approve an abatement under sections 469.1812 to 

469.1815 only after holding a public hearing on the abatement. The property is located 

at 310 Athens Ave. with an estimated market value of $212,100.00 and with the difference of 

improvement being $199,100.00. 

27-711048-0 E & J Rentals 310 Athens Ave 
 

 

NON -HOMESTEAD TAX RATE 

2021 post build total 
2021 prebuild raw land value value 

Difference of 
improvement 

 
taxes @ 2021 rates 

13,000 $    212,100.00 
taxes @ 2021 rates 

$ 199,100.00 

$77.00 $ 1,264.00 $ 1,187.00 
 

Fiscal Impact: The approximate amount of assistance is $1,187 a year or $2,374 over a maximum period of 2 

years as a Non- Homestead. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None Recommended. 

Recommendations: Recommendation #1- To Close the Public Hearing 

Recommendation #2- To approve the resolution approving home property tax 

abatement 

 

Page 50Item 4.



Resolution Number 21-062 
 

RESOLUTION RELATING TO A TAX ABATEMENT ON PROPERTY BY E&J RENTALS; 
GRANTING THE ABATEMENT 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Marshall, Minnesota, as 

follows: 
 
Section 1. AUTHORIZATION AND RECITALS. 

 
1.01. The City, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.1812 to 469.1815, as 

amended (the “Act”), is authorized to grant an abatement of the property taxes 
imposed by the County on a parcel of property (Property Tax Abatement) if certain 
conditions are met, through the adoption of a resolution specifying the terms of the 
abatement.  
 

1.02. The City has adopted the City of Marshall Tax Abatement Policy which further 
stipulates requirements before an abatement of taxes will be granted for residential 
development. 

 
1.03. E&J RENTALS; have applied for a Home Tax Abatement pursuant to the City’s Home 

Tax Abatement Policy on property legally described as: Parcel ID: 27-711048-0, 310 
Athens Ave., Marshall, MN 56258.  

 
1.04. Pursuant to the Act, this Common Council on August 24, 2021, conducted a public 

hearing on the desirability of granting the abatement. Notice of the public hearing 
was duly published as required by law in the Marshall Independent, the official 
newspaper of the City. 

 
Section 2. FINDINGS. On the basis of information compiled by the City and elicited 

at the public hearing referred to in Section 1.04, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared: 

 
2.01. There is a need for new development on the Property to increase the tax base of 
the City and to improve the general economy of the state. 
 
2.02. The granting of the proposed abatement is in the public interest because it will 
increase or preserve the tax base of the City. 
 
2.03. The Property is not located in a tax increment financing district. 
 
2.04. The granting of the proposed abatement will not cause the aggregate amount of 
abatements granted by the City under the Act to exceed the greater of ten percent 
(10.00%) of the County’s current property tax levy, or $200,000. 

Page 51Item 4.



 
2.05. It is in the best interests of the City to grant the tax abatement authorized in this 
Resolution. 
 
 Section 3. GRANTING OF TAX ABATMENT 
 
3.01. A property tax abatement (the “Abatement”) is hereby granted in respect of 
property taxes levied by the City on the Property for two (2) years, commencing with taxes 
payable for the assessed value related to the capital improvements outlined in 1.03. 
 
3.02. The City shall provide the awarded abatement payment following payment of due 
real estate taxes annually. One single payment shall be made to the owner of record by 
December 30th of that calendar year. 
 
3.03 The tax abatement shall be for the residential capital improvements only. Land 
values and the current base value are not eligible and will not be abated. 
 
3.04 The tax abatement period will commence with receipt of the Certificate of 
Occupancy, or not more than one year following approval of the taxing authority’s 
resolution, whichever is first.   
 
3.05. The Abatement may be modified or terminated at any time by the Common Council 
in accordance with the Act. 
 
 
 Passed by the Common Council of the City of Marshall, this 24th day of August, 
2021. 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
          Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 

Page 52Item 4.



 
CITY OF MARSHALL 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT 

FOR HOME TAX ABATEMENT APPLICANT E&J RENTALS 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Marshall Minnesota (the “City”), 

will hold a public hearing at a meeting of the Council beginning at 5:30 p.m., on August 24, 2021 to 

be held at City Hall, 344 West Main Street, in Marshall, Minnesota, on the request of Home Tax 

Abatement Applicant that the City abate a portion of property taxes levied by the City in connection 

with the construction house structure. The property is located within the City and is currently 

identified as Parcel No. 27-711048-0. The approximate amount of assistance is $2,374 over a 

maximum period of 2 years. The City Council will consider granting a property tax abatement in 

response to the request.  

 

Information about the proposed tax abatement will be on file and available for public inspection at 

the office of the City Clerk at City Hall.  

 

All interested persons may appear at the public hearing and present their views orally or in writing. 

Following the public hearing, the City Council will take action concerning the adoption or rejection 

of the proposed tax abatement application.  

  

August 10, 2021 

 

Kyle Box 

City Clerk 
 

Page 53Item 4.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: PUBLIC HEARING 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: 505 Darlene Dr.– 1) Public Hearing regarding a home property tax abatement request 2) 

Consideration of a resolution approving home property tax abatement. 

Background 

Information: 

On August 10, 2021 a public hearing was called for and to be held on August 24, 2021 regarding 

a home property tax abatement request. Per M.S 469.1813 sub 5 The governing body of 

the political subdivision may approve an abatement under sections 469.1812 to 

469.1815 only after holding a public hearing on the abatement. The property is located 

at 505 Darlene Dr. with an estimated market value of $230,300.00 and with the difference of 

improvement being $206,100.00. 

27-630030-0 E & J Rentals 505 Darlene Drive 

 

NON -HOMESTEAD TAX RATE 

2021 post build total 
2021 pre build raw land value value 

Difference of 
improvement 

 
taxes @ 2021 rates 

24,200 $ 230,300.00 
taxes @ 2021 rates 

$ 206,100.00 

$144.00 $ 1,372.00 $ 1,228.00 
 

 

 

Fiscal Impact: The approximate amount of assistance is $1,1228 a year or $2,456 over a maximum period of 2 

years as a Non Homestead. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None Recommended. 

Recommendations: Recommendation #1- To Close the Public Hearing 

Recommendation #2- To approve the resolution approving home property tax 

abatement 

 

Page 54Item 5.



Resolution Number 21-063 
 

RESOLUTION RELATING TO A TAX ABATEMENT ON PROPERTY BY E&J RENTALS; 
GRANTING THE ABATEMENT 

 
BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Marshall, Minnesota, as 

follows: 
 
Section 1. AUTHORIZATION AND RECITALS. 

 
1.01. The City, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.1812 to 469.1815, as 

amended (the “Act”), is authorized to grant an abatement of the property taxes 
imposed by the County on a parcel of property (Property Tax Abatement) if certain 
conditions are met, through the adoption of a resolution specifying the terms of the 
abatement.  
 

1.02. The City has adopted the City of Marshall Tax Abatement Policy which further 
stipulates requirements before an abatement of taxes will be granted for residential 
development. 

 
1.03. E&J RENTALS; have applied for a Home Tax Abatement pursuant to the City’s Home 

Tax Abatement Policy on property legally described as: Parcel ID: 27-630030-0, 505 
Darlene Dr., Marshall, MN 56258.  

 
1.04. Pursuant to the Act, this Common Council on August 24, 2021, conducted a public 

hearing on the desirability of granting the abatement. Notice of the public hearing 
was duly published as required by law in the Marshall Independent, the official 
newspaper of the City. 

 
Section 2. FINDINGS. On the basis of information compiled by the City and elicited 

at the public hearing referred to in Section 1.04, it is hereby found, determined and 
declared: 

 
2.01. There is a need for new development on the Property to increase the tax base of 
the City and to improve the general economy of the state. 
 
2.02. The granting of the proposed abatement is in the public interest because it will 
increase or preserve the tax base of the City. 
 
2.03. The Property is not located in a tax increment financing district. 
 
2.04. The granting of the proposed abatement will not cause the aggregate amount of 
abatements granted by the City under the Act to exceed the greater of ten percent 
(10.00%) of the County’s current property tax levy, or $200,000. 

Page 55Item 5.



 
2.05. It is in the best interests of the City to grant the tax abatement authorized in this 
Resolution. 
 
 Section 3. GRANTING OF TAX ABATMENT 
 
3.01. A property tax abatement (the “Abatement”) is hereby granted in respect of 
property taxes levied by the City on the Property for two (2) years, commencing with taxes 
payable for the assessed value related to the capital improvements outlined in 1.03. 
 
3.02. The City shall provide the awarded abatement payment following payment of due 
real estate taxes annually. One single payment shall be made to the owner of record by 
December 30th of that calendar year. 
 
3.03 The tax abatement shall be for the residential capital improvements only. Land 
values and the current base value are not eligible and will not be abated. 
 
3.04 The tax abatement period will commence with receipt of the Certificate of 
Occupancy, or not more than one year following approval of the taxing authority’s 
resolution, whichever is first.   
 
3.05. The Abatement may be modified or terminated at any time by the Common Council 
in accordance with the Act. 
 
 
 Passed by the Common Council of the City of Marshall, this 24th day of August, 
2021. 

 
 
 

______________________________ 
          Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
City Clerk 

Page 56Item 5.



 
CITY OF MARSHALL 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT 

FOR HOME TAX ABATEMENT APPLICANT E&J RENTALS 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Marshall Minnesota (the “City”), 

will hold a public hearing at a meeting of the Council beginning at 5:30 p.m., on August 24, 2021 to 

be held at City Hall, 344 West Main Street, in Marshall, Minnesota, on the request of Home Tax 

Abatement Applicant that the City abate a portion of property taxes levied by the City in connection 

with the construction house structure. The property is located within the City and is currently 

identified as Parcel No. 27-630030-0. The approximate amount of assistance is $2,456 over a 

maximum period of 2 years. The City Council will consider granting a property tax abatement in 

response to the request.  

 

Information about the proposed tax abatement will be on file and available for public inspection at 

the office of the City Clerk at City Hall.  

 

All interested persons may appear at the public hearing and present their views orally or in writing. 

Following the public hearing, the City Council will take action concerning the adoption or rejection 

of the proposed tax abatement application.  

  

August 10, 2021 

 

Kyle Box 

City Clerk 
 

Page 57Item 5.



CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: AWARD OF BIDS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Project PK-001:  Independence Park Trail Replacement Project – Consider Award of 
Bids. 

Background 

Information: 

The multi-use trail within Independence Park is a bituminous-surfaced trail that is 
approximately 10-FT wide that travels throughout the entire park. The trail pavement 
is in poor condition and several areas do not meet ADA requirements. There are 
numerous locations where surface defects make the trail difficult to traverse, and 
numerous other locations where trail cross slopes are severe, resulting in hazardous 
conditions. 
 
At the August 10, 2021 meeting, City Council authorized staff to advertise for bids.  
 
On August 24, 2021, bids were received for the above-referenced project.  Five bids 
were received as shown on the attached resolution awarding contract.  
 
The apparent low bidder is A&C Excavating, LLC of Marshall, MN with a total bid 
amount, including Alternates 1 & 2 of $410,358.60.  A&C Excavating, LLC is the low 
bidder for all award options that may be considered. Based on the advantageous 
pricing received, city staff recommends to award both project alternates. 
 
 

Fiscal Impact: The project estimate was $591,875.79 (Base Bid + Alternate 1 + Alternate 2), including 
contingency (10%) and engineering (16%) costs for this project.   
 
Based on the bid results, the estimated total project cost, including 5% allowance for 
contingencies and 16% for engineering and administrative costs, is $499,816.77. 
 

Alternative/ Variations: 1) that the Council authorize award of the project, including alternate 2, to A&C 
Excavating, LLC of Marshall, MN in the amount of $375,659.10. 
 

2) that the Council authorize award of the project, including alternate 1, to A&C 
Excavating, LLC of Marshall, MN in the amount of $365,792.60. 
 

3) that the Council authorize award of the base project bid to A&C Excavating, 
LLC of Marshall, MN in the amount of $331,093.10. 

 
Recommendation: that the Council authorize award of the project, including both project alternates 1 

and 2, to A&C Excavating, LLC of Marshall, MN in the amount of $410,358.60. 

 

Page 58Item 6.



RESOLUTION NUMBER 21-064 
 

RESOLUTION ACCEPTING BID (AWARD CONTRACT) 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to an advertisement for bids for the following project: 
 

PROJECT PK-001:  INDEPENDENCE PARK TRAIL REPLACEMENT 
PROJECT -- This project consists of the following: Removal of bituminous 
surfaced trail and installation of concrete trail in Independence Park as 
identified in the project plans and specifications. This project will also include 
associated grading and turf restoration work. 

 
bids were received, opened and tabulated according to law, and the following bids were received 
complying with the advertisement: 
 

Bidder 
Bid 

Amount 
Alternate 1 Alternate 2 Total  

A & C Excavating, LLC 
Marshall, MN 

$331,093.10 $34,699.50 $44,566.00 $410,358.60 

D&G Excavating, Inc. 
Marshall, MN 

$337,749.86 $32,383.81 $46,104.69 $416,238.36 

Towne & Country Excavating 
LLC 
Garvin, MN 

$351,249.40 $31,674.10 $37,676.50 $420,600.00 

R&G Construction Co. 
Marshall, MN 

$371,320.50 $37,864.00 $48,251.75 $457,436.25 

Ti-Zack Concrete, Inc. 
Le Center, MN 

$789,922.50 $76,097.00 $101,281.75 $967,301.25 

 
AND WHEREAS, it appears that A&C Excavating, LLC of Marshall, Minnesota, is the 

lowest responsible bidder. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF MARSHALL, 
MINNESOTA: 
 

1. The Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to enter into a contract 
with A&C Excavating, LLC of Marshall, Minnesota, in the amount of $410,358.60 in 
the name of the City of Marshall for the above-referenced project, according to the 
plans and specifications therefore approved by the City Council and on file in the 
office of the City Clerk. 

 
Passed and adopted by the City Council this   24th   day of  August , 2021. 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________  __________________________________ 
City Clerk      Mayor 
 
This Instrument Drafted by: 
Jason R. Anderson, P.E. 
Director of Public Works/City Engineer 

Page 59Item 6.



Page 60Item 6.



** Disclaimer: The City of Marshall does not guarantee
the accuracy of the data included on this map.

This map data is for referencing purposes only.

Independence
Park Trail

Replacement
Project

³

0 0.03 0.05 0.08 0.10.01

Miles

3/17/21

Project Area

Page 61Item 6.

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygon

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygon

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Line

JDehn
Text Box
Replace Concrete Trails

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygon

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Polygonal Line

JDehn
Line

JDehn
Text Box
Realigned Concrete Trails

JDehn
Line

JDehn
Text Box
Proposed Culvert Crossing (Separate Project)

JDehn
Text Box
Proposed Stormwater Pond Expansion (Separate Project)

JDehn
Oval

JDehn
Polygon

JDehn
Text Box
PotentialPondExpansion

JDehn
Callout
Culvert Crossing

JDehn
Text Box
8/20/21

JDehn
Polygon

JDehn
Line

JDehn
Text Box
Alternative Bid Options



CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: AWARD OF BIDS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Project Z87 - Diversion Channel Slope Repair and Sheet Piling Removal Project – 
Consider Award of Bid. 

Background 

Information: 

The Redwood River Diversion Channel begins west of the Lyon County Public Works 
property at the diversion structure east of County Road 7. Over the last several 
years, the channel bank has eroded significantly in several locations upstream of the 
drop structure north of Madrid Street. There are several locations where sheet 
piling used for outfall installation was left in place. This sheet piling, along with 
numerous recent high-water events, has contributed to the erosion of the diversion 
channel banks. The drainage ditches adjacent to the diversion channel spill into the 
channel via flume channels. These flume channels have also exhibited erosion and 
need repair. 
 
City Engineering staff has identified a project to repair the severely eroded channel 
bank locations, remove sheet piling, and repair flume channels and storm water 
pipe outfalls. Staff originally budgeted $155,000 in the 2021 Capital Budget to 
perform repairs in the diversion channel. 
 
At the July 27, 2021 meeting, City Council authorized staff to advertise for bids.  
 
On August 18, 2021, bids were received for the above-referenced project. At the bid 
opening, it was noted that our electronic bidding system indicated that three bids 
were completed and those three bids were read aloud. It was noted that R & G 
Construction of Marshall was the apparent low bidder with a bid of $98,950.44.  
 
Following the bid opening, city staff identified that a fourth bid was submitted on 
time, but the bidder had not acknowledged the third and last project addendum 
that was issued. Because the final addendum was not acknowledged, our electronic 
bidding program identified the bid as being incomplete. Upon investigation, staff 
realized that Towne & Country Excavating’s proposal was completed and submitted 
on Friday, August 13th. The third addendum was issued on Monday, August 16th. The 
electronic bidding program sends an e-mail notification that an addendum is issued, 
but Towne & Country did not check e-mail or otherwise failed to acknowledge the 
most recent addendum. Therefore, the program turned Towne & Country’s 
“completed” submittal into an “incomplete” submittal. Towne & Country’s proposal 
was for $85,094.00 and the contractor has notified staff that Addendum No. 3 does 
not impact their submittal.  
 
The purpose of Addendum No. 3 was to notify all bidders of an alternative method 
of completing a portion of the contract work. Staff determined the need to issue 
Addendum No. 3 because staff had authorized one contractor that they may utilize 

Page 62Item 7.



an alternative method to complete work and it was important to issue notification 
of the alternative method to all plan holders to help ensure that contractors are 
aware of all construction methods available to them to give the City of Marshall the 
best possible price. 
 
City staff has conferred with City legal staff regarding this situation. As is common in 
municipal bid advertisements, the City’s advertisements contain the language that 
the city reserves the right to reject all bids or waive informalities or irregularities. 
There are several court rulings that have established that a bidder who has deviated 
from the specifications may still be awarded a contract if the deviation was a non-
material deviation. A general rule is that a deviation is material if it gives a bidder a 
substantial advantage or benefit over other bidders. Conversely, non-material 
deviations are those that are technical irregularities that do not injure other 
bidders.  
 
Reviewing Addendum No. 3, it is not requiring any additional information from 
bidders, it is not changing the scope of work that is required to be completed, it is 
not changing project quantities, it does not contain a new proposal sheet, it does 
not change the nature of work to be completed, and by city staff’s determination, it 
is largely non-material in nature because it is a question and answer type of project 
addendum.  
 
To make an award recommendation in this instance, the City Council will need to 
make the determination of whether the failed acknowledgement of Addendum No. 
3 constitutes a material deviation.  
 

Fiscal Impact: Staff budgeted $155,000 in the CIP for this project. The project will be funded by the 
Surface Water Management Utility. If awarded to Towne & Country Excavating, the 
project will cost $103,644.49, including 5% contingency and 16% engineering fees. IF 
awarded to R&G Construction, the project will cost $120,521.64, including 5% 
contingency and 16% engineering fees.  

Alternative/ Variations: 1) that the Council declare the failed acknowledgement of Addendum No. 3 to 
be material in nature, reject the non-conforming apparent low bid and 
authorize award of the project to the second low bid received from R&G 
Construction Co. of Marshall, MN in the amount of $98,950.44. 

2) that the Council reject all bids and put the contract out for bid again. 
 

Recommendation: that the Council declare the failed acknowledgement of Addendum No. 3 to be non-
material in nature and authorize award of the project to Towne & Country 
Excavating, LLC of Garvin, MN in the amount of $85,094.00. 

 

Page 63Item 7.



BID TABULATION 
 

PROJECT Z87:  DIVERSION CHANNEL MAINTENANCE PROJECT  
MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 

 
     ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE:    $122,417 
     BID OPENING INFORMATION: August 18, 2021 / 10:00 AM (Local Time)       Page 1 of 1 
 

NAME OF BIDDER BID AMOUNT COMMENTS 

A&C Excavating, LLC 
Marshall, MN   

Carl Bolander & Sons Co. 
St. Paul, MN   

D&G Excavating, Inc. 
Marshall, MN   

Prahm Construction Inc. 
Slayton, MN   

R&G Construction Co. 
Marshall, MN   

Towne & Country Excavating LLC 
Garvin, MN   

   

   

   

   

 
Page 64Item 7.

JDehn
Text Box
$113,628.44

JDehn
Text Box
$121,928.80

JDehn
Text Box
$98,950.44

JDehn
Text Box
Apparent Low Bidder

JDehn
Text Box
$85,094.00



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider annual agreements for renewal with Lutheran Social Services & Marshall Area Senior 

Citizens for 2022 

Background 

Information: 

Lutheran Social Services (LSS) leases the kitchen area from the City at the Adult Community 

Center (107 S. 4th Street) to prepare food that is delivered to Marshall area residents as part of 

their Meals on Wheels program. As of July 31st, LSS has served just shy of 8,000 meals out of the 

Center in 2021. 

 

Marshall Area Senior Citizens (MASC) requests renewal for the year January 1, 2022 through 

December 31, 2022. 

Fiscal Impact: One notable change in the Lease Agreement with LSS – the per meal rate paid to the City 

increases from 0.18 to 0.21 cents per meal for 2022. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None recommended. 

Recommendations: Staff recommends approval of agreement renewals as presented. 

 

Page 65Item 8.



AGREEMENT PROPOSAL 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this _____ day of  _____________, 20_____ by and between 

the Marshall Area Senior Citizens, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the “Corporation” and the Adult Community 

Center Commission of the City of Marshall, State of Minnesota, a body politic, hereinafter referred to as 

“Commission” and  

 

WHEREAS, the City of Marshall owns an Adult Community Center located at 107 South 4th Street, 

Marshall, Minnesota, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Commission operates said Adult Community Center, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Corporation is an organization of citizens from the Marshall area which promotes activities 

for older adults, as well as provides some financial support to the Adult Community Center, and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Corporation and the Commission desire to establish certain understandings between the 

two organizations, and to facilitate this have agreed as follows: 

1. That the facilities shall be open to members of the Corporation and non-members of the corporation. 

2. The Commission shall schedule hours of operation for the Center.   

3. That for the year January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 the Corporation shall make a monthly 

contribution of $550.00 payable by the 25th day of each month. However, any funds paid to M.A.S.C. 

Inc., by the Foundation, relating to investment earnings from the Corporation’s contribution to the 

Foundation, shall be designated toward the monthly rent contribution. 

4. Building maintenance shall be the responsibility of the Commission (City).  However, users of the 

facilities shall be obligated to perform general “Clean-up, pick-up” tasks. 

5. Special events shall be scheduled with the coordinator’s approval.  Revenues from non-Corporation 

related events such as receptions, family celebrations and other Corporation conducted events shall 

belong to the Commission (City).  Proceeds from fund raising events sponsored by the Corporation 

will belong to the Corporation. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this agreement the date and year above written. 

 

     MARSHALL AREA SENIOR CITIZENS INC. 

 

     By: _______________________________________________ 

             (M.A.S.C., Inc. President)                                       Date 

 

     ADULT COMMUNITY CENTER COMMISSION 

 

     By: ________________________________________________ 

             (Adult Community Center Commission Chair)     Date 

 

     CITY OF MARSHALL 

 

     By: _________________________________________________ 

             (City of Marshall Mayor)   Date 

Page 66Item 8.



      LEASE AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this  _____  day of ___________, 20___ by and between the City 

of Marshall, Minnesota, (hereinafter referred to as City) and Lutheran Social Services, (hereinafter referred to as 

LSS). 
 

 WHEREAS, the City is the owner of the building located in the City of Marshall and referred to herein as 

the Adult Community Center; 
 WHEREAS, LSS is organized and exists for the purpose of providing meals for qualifying individuals. 

 WHEREAS, LSS agrees to lease and use a portion of the Adult Community Center for the purpose of 

installing equipment for the provision of meals and for the preparation and consumption of meals. 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual obligations and agreements of the parties herein, and 

other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the parties 

hereby agree as follows: 

1. City hereby leases to, and LSS hereby accepts, space within the Adult Community Center, as set forth in 
Paragraph 4 of this agreement for the following purposes: 

a. The location and installation of food preparation and storage equipment for storage and preparation 

of food in the nutrition program. 
b. Serving area and consumption area for the patrons of the nutrition program 

c. Preparation area to provide meals to be delivered off site. 

2. This lease shall run from January 1 of 2022 and terminating on December 31 of 2022.  
3. LSS will pay to the City as and for rental for said premises for the period from January 1, 2022 to 

December 31, 2022 the sum of 21 cents for every meal prepared on site and for any partial meal 

prepared on site of which sum shall include the cost to the City for utility services (gas, water, sewer, 
garbage, local phone service and electricity).  Said amount shall be payable monthly on or before the first 

day of the month.  The rental amount provided for in this paragraph may be adjusted upwards by the City 

upon sixty days notice to LSS such adjustments to be based on increases in the use of utility services. 
4. LSS shall be allowed the use of the kitchen located at the Adult Community Center from the hours of 8:00 

a.m. to 1:00 p.m. and shall be allowed the use of the dining room in the Adult Community Center from the 

hours of 9:00 a.m. to 12:30 p.m., Monday through Friday.   Any other hours of use of the Adult 

Community Center by LSS shall require prior approval of the Adult Community Center.  Adult 

Community Center maintains their right to utilize the kitchen and dining area or permit use to 

others during the above-mentioned timeframes with advance communication to both the user and 

LSS.  
 

5. LSS will provide liability insurance for personal injury and property damage in at least the minimum 

amount of $500,000. LSS shall list City as “additional insured” on said Policy and shall provide the City 

with proof of such coverage.  LSS shall hold the City harmless from all liability for injury or damage to any 
persons or property arising out of LSS use of City’s premises.  LSS will ensure all equipment belonging to 

them in amounts and under terms sufficient to hold the City harmless from any liability loss to said 

equipment.  A complete inventory of equipment provided and used by LSS at the Adult Community Center 

will be provided to the City at the beginning of the contract period, and any changes thereto will be 
promptly reported in writing to the City.  LSS shall provide all worker’s compensation insurance required 

by law for the coverage of its employees, agents and servants.  It is specifically understood by and between 

the parties that all times under this agreement and all employees, agents and servants of LSS who 
participate in the meals program or in any other way authorized by this agreement shall be deemed to be 

employees of LSS and not of the City of Marshall, for the purpose of determining worker’s compensation 

liability. 
6. LSS shall make its equipment available to the City for use by it or other such persons or organizations as it 

may designate upon reasonable notice and at such times and under such conditions as the parties may agree 

to and the circumstances may warrant. 

7. LSS shall always be responsible for the maintenance, repair and replacement of equipment belonging to 

LSS or belonging to the City and used by LSS, in a safe and sanitary condition and shall be responsible for 

custodial activity associated with and resulting from their meals program. The entire used rental area that is 

used must be cleaned daily. The City shall be responsible for and provide all other necessary and 

Page 67Item 8.



reasonable maintenance and custodial services in and around the Adult Community Center. Per agreement 

made on January 1, 1998, the following equipment is owned by the City of Marshall and is to be 

maintained and/or replaced as needed.  City owned equipment includes the following: Hobart Dishwasher, 

McCall 2 section freezer 4045F, Convection oven, Stainless steel worktable, Hobart mixer A200, Hot food 

table E-303-25P6, Refrigerator COR155d, and Vulcan 6 burner oven 

8. LSS may not assign any right, privilege or license conferred by this agreement; nor may it sublet or 

encumber any portion of the lease premises without first obtaining written consent of the City. 

9. Notwithstanding any other provision hereof, the parties hereto may by mutual consent and in writing agree 

to modifications and additions hereto.    

10. This agreement may be terminated prior to expiration of the term hereof as follows: 

a. By Mutual written agreement of the Parties; or 

 b. By either Party (the Aggrieved Party), upon material breach of the agreement by the other party 

(the Breaching Party), which breach is not cured to the Aggrieved Party’s reasonable satisfaction within 

sixty (60) days after the aggrieved Party provides the Breaching Party with written notice of the breach.  In 

the event either Party gives written notice of breach, the Aggrieved Party alleging the breach may be 

required by the Breaching Party to specify in writing the exact nature of the alleged breach, specific 

incidents that support the claim of the alleged breach, and the specific actions that the Aggrieved party 

alleging the breach deems reasonable and appropriate to cure the alleged breach or: 

 c. By providing a minimum written notice of at least 180 days prior to the effective date of 

termination.                                                                                                        

11.  Address for any notifications required by this agreement shall be as follows, unless and until written notice 

of a new address is given by one party to the other: 

 
For City:     For LSS 

Adult Community Center Coordinator  LSS  

SCC      Attn: Carrie Clemens 

107 South 4th Street    3101 South Frontage Road  Suite 100 
Marshall, MN  56258    Moorhead, MN  56560 

(507) 537-6120     (218) 233-7521 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands the day and date first written above. 

 

      CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 

 

      By  ____________________________ 

             Authorized Official City of Marshall 

 

 

ADULT SENIOR CENTER COMMISSION 

 

By _____________________________ 

             ASCC Chairperson 

 

 
LSS (Lutheran Social Services) 

 

    By: ______________________________ 
     Title:  

Page 68Item 8.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider LG220 Application for Exempt Permit for the Buffalo Ridge Gobblers NWTF. 

Background 

Information: 

This LG220 application of Exempt Permit is for the Buffalo Ridge Gobblers NWTF to 

hold a raffle on October 15, 2021 at the Red Baron Arena and Expo, 1651 Victory 

Dr., Marshall, Minnesota 

Fiscal Impact: There is no City fee for this permit. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

Not acknowledge this permit. 

Recommendations: BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council hereby (1) grants local unit of government 

approval for the Buffalo Ridge Gobblers NWTF to hold a raffle on October 15, 2021 

at the Red Baron Arena and Expo, 1651 Victory Dr., Marshall, Minnesota, (2) 

acknowledges the receipt of LG220 Application of Exempt Permit, (3) waives the 30-

day waiting period, and (4) authorizes and directs the appropriate city personnel to 

complete and sign the LG220 Application for Exempt Permit on behalf of the City of 

Marshall 

 

Page 69Item 9.



Page 70Item 9.



Page 71Item 9.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 10, 2021 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Call for a Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Property Tax Abatement at 306 Athens Ave. 

Background 

Information: 

Per M.S 469.1813 sub 5 The governing body of the political subdivision may approve 

an abatement under sections 469.1812 to 469.1815 only after holding a public 

hearing on the abatement. 

27-711050-0 Keo Rasmussen 306 Athens Ave 

 
calculation for city tax abatement policy 

 
 

HOMESTEAD TAX 
RATE 

 

2021 prebuild raw land value 
2021 post build 

total 

value 

Difference of 
improvement 

11,800 $                203,200.00 $                  191,400.00 

 
taxes @ 2021 rates 

 
taxes @ 2021 rates 

 

$                                       42.00 $                      1,098.00 $                       1,056.00 

city portion only 

 
 

 

Fiscal Impact: NA 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

NA 

Recommendations: To call for a public hearing for the proposed property tax abatement. 

 

Page 72Item 10.



 
CITY OF MARSHALL 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING PROPOSED PROPERTY TAX ABATEMENT 

FOR HOME TAX ABATEMENT APPLICANT KEO RASMUSSEN 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the City Council of the City of Marshall Minnesota (the “City”), 

will hold a public hearing at a meeting of the Council beginning at 5:30 p.m., on September 14, 2021 

to be held at City Hall, 344 West Main Street, in Marshall, Minnesota, on the request of Home Tax 

Abatement Applicant that the City abate a portion of property taxes levied by the City in connection 

with the construction house structure. The property is located within the City and is currently 

identified as Parcel No. 27-711050-0. The approximate amount of assistance is $2,112 over a 

maximum period of 2 years. The City Council will consider granting a property tax abatement in 

response to the request.  

 

Information about the proposed tax abatement will be on file and available for public inspection at 

the office of the City Clerk at City Hall.  

 

All interested persons may appear at the public hearing and present their views orally or in writing. 

Following the public hearing, the City Council will take action concerning the adoption or rejection 

of the proposed tax abatement application.  

  

August 24, 2021 

 

Kyle Box 

City Clerk 
 

Page 73Item 10.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider approval of a Temporary On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor License for the 

Marshall Area Chamber of Commerce. 

Background 

Information: 

Attached is an application for a Temporary On-Sale Liquor License for the Marshall 

Area Chamber of Commerce to use at Western Equipment Finance, 408 E. Main St., 

Suite 9, Marshall, MN on September 22, 2021. 

Fiscal Impact: $30.00/day  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None recommended 

Recommendations: To approve a Temporary On-Sale Liquor License for the Marshall Area Chamber of 

Commerce to use at Western Equipment Finance, 408 E. Main St., Suite 9, Marshall, 

MN on September 22, 2021. 

 

Page 74Item 11.



Page 75Item 11.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider approval of a Temporary On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor License for the 

Marshall Area YMCA. 

Background 

Information: 

Attached is an application for a Temporary On-Sale Liquor License for the Marshall 

Area Chamber of Commerce to use at the YMCA, 200 S. a St., Marshall, MN on 

September 15, 2021. 

Fiscal Impact: $30.00/day  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None recommended 

Recommendations: To approve a Temporary On-Sale Liquor License for the Marshall Area Chamber of 

Commerce to use at the YMCA, 200 S. a St., Marshall, MN on September 15, 2021. 

 

Page 76Item 12.



Page 77Item 12.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consideration of temporary extension of alcohol license area for Brau Brothers 

Brewing Company, 1010 East Southview Drive for Hop Fest on September 10-11, 

2021 

Background 

Information: 

Attached is an application for the Hop Fest Celebration to be held at Brau Brothers 

Brewing Company on September 10-11, 2021. The current alcohol license approved 

by the City and State is for a taproom and identifies the area to include the inside of 

the brewery and the exterior areas under the overhangs. 

 

The State does allow the City to allow for a temporary extension of the designated 

area if they are contiguous with the other areas of the license holder. The City has 

complete discretion of any approval or conditions that may be applied as determined 

necessary. 

Fiscal Impact: None  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

Propose any conditions or changes as may be determined necessary to ensure the 

compliance to public sanitation, safety or peace. 

Recommendations: To approve the temporary extension of alcohol license area for Brau Brothers 

Brewing Company, 1010 East Southview Drive for Hop Fest on September 10-11, 

2021 

 

Page 78Item 13.



Page 79Item 13.



Page 80Item 13.



Page 81Item 13.



Page 82Item 13.



Page 83Item 13.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: CONSENT AGENDA 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider approval of the bills/project payments 

Background 

Information: 

Staff encourages the City Council Members to contact staff in advance of the meeting regarding 

these items if there are questions. Construction contract questions are encouraged to be 

directed to Director of Public Works, Jason Anderson at 537-6051 or Finance Director, Karla 

Drown at 537-6764 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

 

Recommendations: The following bills and project payments be authorized for payment. 

 

Page 84Item 14.



8/19/2021 10:05:57 AM Page 1 of 5

Council Check Report
Marshall, MN By Vendor Name

Date Range: 08/13/2021 - 08/24/2021

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: AP-REG AP

4549 A & B BUSINESS, INC 08/20/2021 74711,989.89EFT 0.00

5813 ACE HOME & HARDWARE 08/13/2021 11958199.85Regular 0.00

5813 ACE HOME & HARDWARE 08/20/2021 119617357.96Regular 0.00

6128 ACTION CO LLC 08/13/2021 7418296.77EFT 0.00

6404 ADVANCED HEALTH, SAFETY & SECURITY 08/20/2021 1196184,540.17Regular 0.00

6412 AG PLUS COOPERATIVE 08/20/2021 7472321.12EFT 0.00

0567 ALEX AIR APPARATUS INC 08/20/2021 7473205.00EFT 0.00

5119 ALL FLAGS,LLC 08/20/2021 1196191,605.01Regular 0.00

0578 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 08/13/2021 74191,680.93EFT 0.00

0578 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 08/20/2021 74744,782.78EFT 0.00

3761 AMERICAN BOTTLING CO. 08/13/2021 11958290.00Regular 0.00

3761 AMERICAN BOTTLING CO. 08/20/2021 11962098.88Regular 0.00

0658 AP DESIGN 08/13/2021 7420410.00EFT 0.00

0658 AP DESIGN 08/20/2021 747531.50EFT 0.00

3681 APWA 08/13/2021 119583268.75Regular 0.00

6831 APWA-MN CHAPTER 08/13/2021 1195841,485.00Regular 0.00

6721 AQUARIUS WATER CONDITIONING 08/13/2021 1195855.50Regular 0.00

6694 ARAMARK UNIFORM & CAREER APPAREL GROUP, INC08/13/2021 7421114.88EFT 0.00

0630 ARCTIC GLACIER 08/13/2021 119586538.83Regular 0.00

0630 ARCTIC GLACIER 08/20/2021 119621538.13Regular 0.00

0629 ARNOLD MOTOR SUPPLY 08/20/2021 119622126.41Regular 0.00

5447 ARTISAN BEER COMPANY 08/13/2021 119587178.90Regular 0.00

5447 ARTISAN BEER COMPANY 08/20/2021 1196231,835.60Regular 0.00

6830 BALATON SPORTSMAN CLUB INC 08/13/2021 119588250.00Regular 0.00

0688 BELLBOY CORPORATION 08/20/2021 74765,854.28EFT 0.00

0699 BEVERAGE WHOLESALERS 08/13/2021 11958929,186.95Regular 0.00

0699 BEVERAGE WHOLESALERS 08/20/2021 11962433,665.62Regular 0.00

0704 BIKE SHOP 08/20/2021 11962648.99Regular 0.00

0715 BLADHOLM CONSTRUCTION INC 08/20/2021 1196276,769.00Regular 0.00

6482 BLOMBERG, GRANT 08/13/2021 119590400.00Regular 0.00

5726 BOLLIG, MARK 08/13/2021 11959199.00Regular 0.00

0724 BOLTON & MENK INC 08/13/2021 742229,508.00EFT 0.00

0726 BORCHS SPORTING GOODS 08/13/2021 7423270.00EFT 0.00

0018 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY 08/13/2021 7424732.89EFT 0.00

4457 BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE 08/13/2021 1195923,411.88Regular 0.00

4457 BREAKTHRU BEVERAGE 08/20/2021 1196284,208.99Regular 0.00

2431 BUELTEL-MOSENG LAND SURVEYING, INC 08/13/2021 7425210.00EFT 0.00

0728 BUFFALO RIDGE CONCRETE,INC 08/20/2021 7477991.83EFT 0.00

6744 C&L DISTRIBUTING 08/20/2021 11962990.00Regular 0.00

0799 CARLOS CREEK WINERY 08/20/2021 119630390.00Regular 0.00

0802 CARLSON & STEWART REFRIG INC 08/13/2021 7426363.23EFT 0.00

0815 CATTOOR OIL COMPANY INC 08/13/2021 74272,190.06EFT 0.00

0818 CAUWELS, ROGER 08/13/2021 7428138.92EFT 0.00

0836 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 08/13/2021 742911.99EFT 0.00

0836 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS 08/20/2021 7478102.48EFT 0.00

6692 CHRISTENSEN BROADCASTING LLC 08/13/2021 7430390.00EFT 0.00

0875 COMPUTER MAN INC 08/20/2021 747913,539.84EFT 0.00

0920 CULLIGAN WATER CONDITIONING OF MARSHALL 08/20/2021 119631317.00Regular 0.00

0934 D & G EXCAVATING INC 08/20/2021 7480194,643.07EFT 0.00

3819 DACOTAH PAPER CO 08/13/2021 74311,050.05EFT 0.00

3819 DACOTAH PAPER CO 08/20/2021 7481276.58EFT 0.00

5731 DOLL DISTRIBUTING 08/13/2021 743215,924.00EFT 0.00

5731 DOLL DISTRIBUTING 08/20/2021 748217,283.15EFT 0.00

1020 DUININCK BROS., INC. 08/20/2021 7483770,608.01EFT 0.00

Page 85Item 14.



Council Check Report Date Range: 08/13/2021 - 08/24/2021

8/19/2021 10:05:57 AM Page 2 of 5

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

1037 ECOWATER SYSTEMS 08/13/2021 743367.50EFT 0.00

1061 EMERGENCY APPARATUS MAINTENANCE INC 08/20/2021 7484124,580.35EFT 0.00

4858 ENGRAVESTONE 08/13/2021 119593867.00Regular 0.00

4753 ENTERPRISE LEASING CO 08/20/2021 7485201.82EFT 0.00

6834 EQUIPARTS CORP 08/20/2021 11963294.89Regular 0.00

1090 FASTENAL COMPANY 08/13/2021 7434623.54EFT 0.00

1090 FASTENAL COMPANY 08/20/2021 748643.83EFT 0.00

6832 FIRST DAKOTA NATIONAL BANK 08/13/2021 1195942,614.55Regular 0.00

1126 FLEXIBLE PIPE TOOL COMPANY 08/13/2021 7435643.50EFT 0.00

6478 GOPHER STATE ONE CALL 08/13/2021 7436247.05EFT 0.00

1199 GRAHAM TIRE AND AUTOMOTIVE SERVICES 08/20/2021 1196331,880.80Regular 0.00

1201 GRAINGER INC 08/13/2021 743771.89EFT 0.00

1201 GRAINGER INC 08/20/2021 74877.64EFT 0.00

6127 GRANDVIEW VALLEY WINERY, INC 08/13/2021 1195951,608.00Regular 0.00

1215 GREENWOOD NURSERY 08/20/2021 1196341,088.00Regular 0.00

1243 HARDWARE HANK 08/13/2021 743865.16EFT 0.00

1256 HAWKINS INC 08/20/2021 74887,578.39EFT 0.00

1271 HENLE PRINTING COMPANY 08/13/2021 7439256.57EFT 0.00

1311 HYVEE FOOD STORES INC 08/13/2021 11959699.88Regular 0.00

5684 ICC 08/20/2021 119635784.74Regular 0.00

1325 ICMA RETIREMENT TRUST #300877 08/20/2021 11963650.00Regular 0.00

5546 INDIAN ISLAND WINERY 08/13/2021 119597129.12Regular 0.00

5546 INDIAN ISLAND WINERY 08/20/2021 119637507.84Regular 0.00

1358 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 08/20/2021 DFT000104828,962.14Bank Draft 0.00

1358 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 08/20/2021 DFT000104925,619.89Bank Draft 0.00

1358 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE 08/20/2021 DFT00010508,721.12Bank Draft 0.00

1399 JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQUOR COMPANY 08/13/2021 11959822,612.18Regular 0.00

1399 JOHNSON BROTHERS LIQUOR COMPANY 08/20/2021 1196386,979.41Regular 0.00

1417 KENNEDY & GRAVEN, CHARTERED 08/20/2021 7489399.00EFT 0.00

3564 KESTELOOT ENTERPRISES, INC 08/20/2021 7490133.01EFT 0.00

5095 KIBBLE EQUIPMENT 08/13/2021 744035.06EFT 0.00

4140 KRUSE FORD-LINCOLN-MERCURY, INC 08/13/2021 119600134.95Regular 0.00

5036 KUECHLE UNDERGROUND, INC 08/20/2021 11964091,323.36Regular 0.00

5138 L & A SYSTEMS, LLC 08/20/2021 74913,071.81EFT 0.00

1507 LOCHER BROTHERS INC 08/13/2021 74411,069.60EFT 0.00

1508 LOCKWOOD MOTORS INC. 08/20/2021 11964133.70Regular 0.00

1541 LYON COUNTY FAIRGROUNDS 08/13/2021 11960150.00Regular 0.00

1548 LYON COUNTY LANDFILL 08/20/2021 749254.54EFT 0.00

1552 LYON COUNTY RECORDER 08/13/2021 744263.15EFT 0.00

1555 LYON LINCOLN ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE INC 08/13/2021 11960238.23Regular 0.00

5459 MAGNEY CONSTRUCTION, INC 08/13/2021 119603253,641.48Regular 0.00

1575 MAILBOXES & PARCEL DEPOT 08/13/2021 744333.74EFT 0.00

1575 MAILBOXES & PARCEL DEPOT 08/20/2021 749316.92EFT 0.00

1604 MARSHALL AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 08/13/2021 74441,000.00EFT 0.00

1616 MARSHALL CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU 08/13/2021 74454,000.00EFT 0.00

1616 MARSHALL CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU 08/20/2021 749414,760.49EFT 0.00

1623 MARSHALL INDEPENDENT, INC 08/20/2021 119642210.60Regular 0.00

6018 MARSHALL M CLUB 08/13/2021 1196041,387.50Regular 0.00

1633 MARSHALL MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 08/13/2021 74462,147.52EFT 0.00

1633 MARSHALL MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 08/20/2021 74957,740.42EFT 0.00

1637 MARSHALL PUBLIC SCHOOLS 08/20/2021 749623,797.41EFT 0.00

3545 MARSHALL RADIO 08/13/2021 74471,575.00EFT 0.00

1649 MARSHALL TRUCK SALVAGE INC. 08/13/2021 1196056.33Regular 0.00

5924 MAXWELL FOOD EQUIPMENT 08/13/2021 11960624.03Regular 0.00

6586 MCDYER TOOLS 08/20/2021 11964323.60Regular 0.00

4980 MENARDS INC 08/20/2021 119644417.67Regular 0.00

3669 MINNESOTA STATE RETIREMENT SYSTEM 08/20/2021 DFT00010457,715.82Bank Draft 0.00

1839 MINNESOTA VALLEY TESTING LABS INC 08/13/2021 7448158.40EFT 0.00

1757 MN CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT CENTER 08/20/2021 DFT0001040356.25Bank Draft 0.00

1757 MN CHILD SUPPORT PAYMENT CENTER 08/20/2021 DFT0001041287.49Bank Draft 0.00

1818 MN REVENUE 08/20/2021 DFT000105112,043.98Bank Draft 0.00

Page 86Item 14.



Council Check Report Date Range: 08/13/2021 - 08/24/2021

8/19/2021 10:05:57 AM Page 3 of 5

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

1834 MN TRANSPORTATION ALLIANCE 08/13/2021 7449525.00EFT 0.00

1864 MONTES ELECTRIC INC 08/13/2021 1196071,394.22Regular 0.00

1877 MOTION INDUSTRIES INC 08/20/2021 11964658.17Regular 0.00

1887 MTI DISTRIBUTING INC 08/13/2021 745035.13EFT 0.00

2512 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT 08/20/2021 DFT0001035200.00Bank Draft 0.00

2513 NATIONWIDE RETIREMENT-FIRE 08/20/2021 DFT000103617.33Bank Draft 0.00

1945 NORMS GTC 08/13/2021 119608207.58Regular 0.00

1945 NORMS GTC 08/20/2021 11964736.99Regular 0.00

1986 NORTH CENTRAL INTERNATIONAL, INC 08/20/2021 749766.34EFT 0.00

1961 NORTHERN SAFETY COMPANY INC 08/20/2021 7498121.35EFT 0.00

6463 OFFICE OF MNIT SERVICES 08/20/2021 119648695.15Regular 0.00

5891 ONE OFFICE SOLUTION 08/13/2021 7451711.88EFT 0.00

5891 ONE OFFICE SOLUTION 08/20/2021 7499311.56EFT 0.00

2019 PAUSTIS WINE COMPANY 08/13/2021 1196091,486.00Regular 0.00

2026 PEPSI COLA BOTTLING OF PIPESTONE MN INC 08/13/2021 745211.85EFT 0.00

2026 PEPSI COLA BOTTLING OF PIPESTONE MN INC 08/20/2021 750059.25EFT 0.00

2028 PERA OF MINNESOTA REG 08/20/2021 DFT000104353,489.29Bank Draft 0.00

2036 PHILLIPS WINE AND SPIRITS INC 08/13/2021 1196105,835.21Regular 0.00

2036 PHILLIPS WINE AND SPIRITS INC 08/20/2021 11964912,288.35Regular 0.00

3557 POMP'S TIRE SERVICE, INC. 08/20/2021 7501735.41EFT 0.00

2096 QUARNSTROM & DOERING, PA 08/13/2021 7453716.00EFT 0.00

4826 RIEKE, BENJAMIN 08/13/2021 745410.50EFT 0.00

2195 ROYAL TIRE INC 08/20/2021 1196511,846.10Regular 0.00

2201 RUNNINGS SUPPLY INC 08/13/2021 745541.98EFT 0.00

6835 SCHULER, NICOLE 08/20/2021 11965275.00Regular 0.00

6735 SMALL LOT COOP, LLC 08/20/2021 119653129.00Regular 0.00

3495 SMSU 08/13/2021 7456472.50EFT 0.00

4855 SOUTHERN GLAZER'S OF MN 08/13/2021 74579,719.80EFT 0.00

4855 SOUTHERN GLAZER'S OF MN 08/20/2021 75025,918.47EFT 0.00

2311 SOUTHWEST GLASS CENTER 08/13/2021 7458113.00EFT 0.00

2311 SOUTHWEST GLASS CENTER 08/20/2021 7503114.29EFT 0.00

2318 SOUTHWEST SANITATION INC. 08/13/2021 74593,365.92EFT 0.00

5686 STANTON, TROY 08/13/2021 11961399.00Regular 0.00

6800 STOCKWELL ENGINEERS 08/13/2021 746038,640.00EFT 0.00

4385 STUART C IRBY CO. 08/13/2021 746145.86EFT 0.00

2428 TITAN MACHINERY 08/13/2021 746219.75EFT 0.00

6786 TRUCK CENTER COMPANIES EAST LLC 08/13/2021 7463173.16EFT 0.00

6156 TRUE BRANDS 08/20/2021 750481.36EFT 0.00

5106 ULINE 08/20/2021 7505457.75EFT 0.00

5023 US GEOLOGICAL SURVEY 08/13/2021 74648,610.00EFT 0.00

3443 VALIC DEFERRED COMP 08/20/2021 DFT00010371,172.00Bank Draft 0.00

3443 VALIC DEFERRED COMP 08/20/2021 DFT000103837.77Bank Draft 0.00

3443 VALIC DEFERRED COMP 08/20/2021 DFT00010391,650.00Bank Draft 0.00

5733 VAST BROADBAND 08/13/2021 119614335.40Regular 0.00

5733 VAST BROADBAND 08/20/2021 119654961.01Regular 0.00

4489 VERIZON WIRELESS 08/13/2021 74651,428.18EFT 0.00

4489 VERIZON WIRELESS 08/20/2021 7506484.15EFT 0.00

6113 VERSA-VEND VENDING INC 08/13/2021 7466520.92EFT 0.00

2538 VIKING COCA COLA BOTTLING COMPANY 08/13/2021 7467407.20EFT 0.00

2538 VIKING COCA COLA BOTTLING COMPANY 08/20/2021 7507395.45EFT 0.00

4594 VINOCUPIA 08/13/2021 7468163.50EFT 0.00

6085 VOYA - INVESTORS CHOICE 08/20/2021 DFT00010461,828.24Bank Draft 0.00

5961 WAYNE'S TRACTOR REPAIR 08/13/2021 1196151,029.32Regular 0.00

2591 WESTERN PRINT GROUP 08/13/2021 7469116.00EFT 0.00

2605 WINE MERCHANTS 08/13/2021 119616323.46Regular 0.00

2605 WINE MERCHANTS 08/20/2021 119656241.98Regular 0.00

Page 87Item 14.



Council Check Report Date Range: 08/13/2021 - 08/24/2021

8/19/2021 10:05:57 AM Page 4 of 5

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

6394 WING, LAURA 08/13/2021 747032.97EFT 0.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount

Payment
CountPayment Type

Bank Code AP Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

68

0

0

14

90

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

172 0.00

Payment

504,256.22

0.00

0.00

142,101.32

1,332,991.04

1,979,348.58

Payable
Count

149

0

0

14

160

323

Page 88Item 14.



Council Check Report Date Range: 08/13/2021 - 08/24/2021

Page 5 of 58/19/2021 10:05:57 AM

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

68

0

0

14

90

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

172 0.00

504,256.22

0.00

0.00

142,101.32

1,332,991.04

1,979,348.58

149

0

0

14

160

323

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

999 POOLED CASH FUND 1,979,348.588/2021

1,979,348.58

Page 89Item 14.



CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA
PRIOR AND CURRENT  YEARS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

8/24/2021

ORIGINAL CURRENT
PROJECT #: Coding DATE CONTRACTOR: CONTRACT CHANGE CONTRACT 2019 Prior 2020 Prior 2021 Prior PYMTS THIS RETAINAGE BALANCE: PERCENT

AMOUNT: ORDERS AMOUNT Payments Payments Payments MEETING: COMPLETE

W13 602-49500-55120 5/28/2019 WWTF Improvement Project Magney Construction, Inc. 14,074,300.00    14,074,300.00    4,099,265.87      6,918,924.06      1,873,877.87      253,641.48       691,879.44       236,711.28         98.32%
E22 630-49600-55130 9/24/2019 COE Flood Control 2019 Betterments U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 190,000.00         190,000.00         150,483.00         39,517.00           79.20%
CH1 494-43300-55120 11/12/2019 City Hall Renovation Brennan Companies 5,030,200.00      695,744.00         5,725,944.00      3,039,722.04      2,390,589.53      286,297.20       9,335.23             99.84%
Z75 476-43300-55170 4/14/2020 S 4th St Reconstruction R & G Construction 2,583,754.90      10,885.14           2,594,640.04      2,528,408.74      27,377.08           5,000.00           33,854.22           98.70%
Z76 476-43300-55170 5/26/2020 S 1st St Reconstruction Duininck, Inc 617,136.55         (7,706.25)           609,430.30         562,896.42         57,673.16           1,500.00           (12,639.28)         102.07%
Z77 630-49600-55170 6/23/2020 Legion Field Strom Water Improvements-Phase 1 Towne & Country Excavating LLC 277,943.00         (2,967.25)           274,975.75         257,658.64         2,602.61           14,714.50           94.65%
Z82 479-43300-55170 2/9/2021 N 1st St/W Redwood St/W Marshall St Reconstruction D & G Excavating Inc. 1,051,247.90      6,200.00             1,057,447.90      710,120.57         194,643.07       47,619.14         105,065.12         90.06%
Z51 495-43300-55170 2/23/2021 2021 Bituminous Overlay Duininck, Inc 580,564.28         (160.00)              580,404.28         589,099.98         1,000.00           (9,695.70)           101.67%
Z83 479-43300-55170 2/23/2021 James Ave/Camden Dr Reconstruction Kkuechle Underground 849,244.50         849,244.50         621,371.20         91,323.36         37,510.24         99,039.70           88.34%
B21 479-45200-55120 3/9/2021 Restroom Facility and Picnic Pavilion - Patriot Park Bladholm Construction 188,886.00         12,348.00           201,234.00         184,403.00         6,769.00           10,062.00         -                     100.00%
Z88 479-43300-55170 4/13/2021 State Aid Overlay Duininck, Inc 1,924,600.45      53,113.40           1,977,713.85      54,010.36           770,608.01       43,400.97         1,109,694.51      43.89%
Z80 602-49500-55170 5/11/2021 T.H. 23/Independence Park Sewer Realignment D & G Excavating Inc. 189,448.50         189,448.50         189,448.50         0.00%

28,269,165.45 743,041.82 29,012,207.27 4,249,748.87 13,490,265.10 7,013,291.70 1,316,984.92 1,126,871.60 1,815,045.08

Page 90Item 14.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider approval of a Tax Increment Financing Resolution for Suite Liv’n. 

Background 

Information: 

Gabe Olson, owner of L2C LLC (Suite Liv’n) has applied for Tax Increment Financing to develop 
two, 24-unit workforce apartment buildings located at 406 Village Drive and 501 Village Drive.  
 
L2C LLC is co-owned by Olson and his business partner, Jeff Huston who also co-own Suite Liv’n, 
the property management company that is responsible for managing the apartments. L2C LLC 
purchased its first property in Marshall in 2018 and now owns approximately 350 units within 
the city.  
 
Estimated project costs for the development both units are $6.2 million with construction 
anticipated to begin in Spring of 2022. The proposed project would include 32 one-bedroom 
units and 16 two-bedroom units. The proposed development would include 40% of dwelling 
units affordable to household earning 60% or less of the area median income.  
 
The development would also help meet the goals of the City of Marshall’s new Housing Study 
which is nearing completion. The study draft indicates a need for 124 new market rate rental 
housing units, 75 shallow-subsidy units and 128 deep-subsidy units through 2030. Proposed 
rental rates for the project range from $700 - $900. (Housing Study Draft Executive Study 
included in packet) 
 
Olson originally requested 25 years of TIF for the project but following review from Baker Tilley, 
staff is requesting a 12-year, Pay-Go TIF Plan which would equates to $460,000 in payments.  
 
Staff has submitted a Development Agreement to the HRA for approval.    

Fiscal Impact: $460,000 over 12 years of Increment. 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

None  

Recommendations: Approve resolution approving establishment of Project Area No. 6 and a Project Plan therefor; 
approving establishment of Tax Increment Financing (Housing) District No. 6.1 and a Tax 
Increment Financing Plan therfor 

 

Page 91Item 15.



MA175-124-732322.v4 

CITY MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 

 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 21-065 

 

APROVING ESTABLISHMENT OF PROJECT AREA NO. 6 AND A PROJECT 

PLAN THEREFOR; APPROVING ESTABLISHMENT OF TAX INCREMENT 

FINANCING (HOUSING) DISTRICT NO. 6-1 AND A TAX INCREMENT 

FINANCING PLAN THEREFOR; AND APPROVING AND AUTHORIZING THE 

EXECUTION OF A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE SUITE LIV’N 

HOUSING PROJECT AND RELATED DOCUMENTS 

 

 WHEREAS, the City Council (the “Council”) of the City of Marshall, Minnesota (the “City”) has 

the statutory responsibility under Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.028 to approve redevelopment plans and 

projects of the Housing and Redevelopment Authority in and for the City of Marshall, Minnesota (the 

“Authority”), after public hearing thereon; 

 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has proposed to establish Project Area No. 6 (the “Project Area”) 

located in the City pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 469.001 to 469.047 (the “HRA Act”), and to 

that end has caused to be prepared a document entitled “Project Plan for Project Area No. 6” (the “Project 

Plan”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the Project Plan contains an identification of need and a statement of purpose and 

objectives, land uses and standards for development for carrying out a development project, including 

property to be acquired, public improvements to be provided, development to occur, and sources of 

revenue to pay development costs within the Project Area; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has determined a need to establish Tax Increment Financing (Housing) 

District No. 6-1 (the “TIF District”) within the Project Area, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Sections 

469.174 to 469.1794, as amended (the “TIF Act”), and to that end has caused to be prepared a document 

entitled “Tax Increment Financing Plan for Tax Increment Financing (Housing) District No. 6-1” (the “TIF 

Plan”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the TIF District is being established to facilitate the acquisition and construction of an 

affordable housing development consisting of two three-story apartment buildings containing a total of 

approximately 48 rental housing units and related amenities (the “Housing Development”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.175 requires that before a county auditor may certify 

a tax increment financing district created under the TIF Act the governing body of the municipality must 

approve the tax increment financing plan after a public hearing thereon; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has asked the Council to approve the establishment of the Project Area 

and the Project Plan therefor and the creation, within the Project Area, of the TIF District as a housing tax 

increment financing district under Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.174, Subd. 11 and the adoption of the 

TIF Plan therefor, all pursuant to and in accordance with the TIF Act; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on June 22, 2021, the Council adopted a resolution calling for a public hearing on July 

27, 2021 to consider the establishment of the Project Area and the Project Plan and the establishment of the 

TIF District and the TIF Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Project Plan and the TIF Plan were, in accordance with the HRA Act and TIF Act, 

Page 92Item 15.



 

MA175-124-732322.v4 2 

referred to the Planning Commission of the City (the “Planning Commission”) and by resolution adopted 

by the Planning Commission on July 14, 2021, the Planning Commission found that the Project Plan for the 

proposed Project Area and the TIF Plan for the proposed TIF District conform to the general plan for the 

development or redevelopment of the City as a whole; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Authority has performed all actions required by law to be performed prior to the 

creation of the TIF District and adoption of the TIF Plan therefor, including, but not limited to, 

notification of the Lyon County Commissioner representing the area of the County in which the TIF 

District is located, and delivering a copy the proposed TIF Plan for the TIF District and the Authority’s 

estimate of the fiscal and economic implications of the proposed TIF District to the County 

Auditor/Treasurer of Lyon County and the Clerk/Treasurer of the School Board of Independent School 

District No. 413, which have taxing jurisdiction over the property to be included in the TIF District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on July 27, 2021, the Authority adopted a resolution establishing the Project Area and 

approving the Project Plan therefor and establishing the TIF District and approving the TIF Plan, and 

referred such plans to the Council for consideration; and 

 

 WHEREAS, this Council has reviewed the contents of the Project Plan and the TIF Plan; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on July 27, 2021, the Council held a public hearing relating to the establishment of 

the Project Area and the approval of the Project Plan therefor and the establishment of the TIF District 

and the approval of the TIF Plan therefor, and at the public hearing, the views of all interested parties 

were heard; and  

 

 WHEREAS, the Council has considered the findings and determinations of the Planning 

Commission and the Authority respecting the Project Area, Project Plan, TIF District, and TIF Plan, 

together with the documentation submitted in support of the same and has taken into account the 

information and knowledge gained in hearings upon and during consideration of other matters relating to 

the development proposed within the Project Area; and 

 

 WHEREAS, to facilitate the development of certain property within the Project Area and the TIF 

District, the City, the Authority, and L2A, LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company (the 

“Developer”), have negotiated a Contract for Private Development (the “Development Agreement”) 

which provides for the construction of an affordable housing development consisting of two three-story 

apartment buildings containing a total of approximately 48 rental housing units and related amenities (the 

“Project”), and the issuance by the Authority of its Taxable Tax Increment Revenue Note (Suite Liv’n 

Housing Project) (the “Note”) to the Developer; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Development Agreement has been prepared and presented to the City Council for 

its consideration, stating the terms and conditions described therein and the Authority’s assistance with the 

financing of certain costs of the Project. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Marshall, Minnesota 

that: 

 

Page 93Item 15.



 

MA175-124-732322.v4 3 

 Section 1. Findings; Project Area No. 6 

 

1.01. The Council hereby finds that the Project Plan is intended and, in the judgment of the 

Council, the effect will be, to carry out the objectives of the Project Plan and to create an impetus for 

development and housing activities in the City and otherwise promote public purposes and accomplish 

certain objectives as specified in the Project Plan. 

 

1.02. The Council hereby finds that:  

 

(a) the land in the Project Area would not be made available for redevelopment 

without the use of tax increment financing; and  

 

(b) the Project Plan is intended and, in the judgment of this Council, the effect of 

such actions will be to afford maximum opportunity, consistent with the needs of the City as a 

whole, for the development of the Project Area by private enterprise; and 

 

(c)  the Project Plan conforms to the general plan for the development of the City as 

a whole.  

 

 Section 2. Findings; Tax Increment Financing (Housing) District No. 6-1 

 

 2.01. The Council hereby finds that the creation of the TIF District and adoption of the TIF Plan 

therefor, are intended and, in the judgment of the Council, its effect will be, to carry out the objectives of the 

Project Plan and to create an impetus for the construction of low and moderate income housing, and will 

otherwise promote certain public purposes and accomplish certain objectives as specified in the Project Plan 

and TIF Plan. 

 

 2.02. The Council hereby finds that the TIF District qualifies as a “housing district” under 

Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.174, Subd. 11 of the TIF Act for the following reasons: 

 

The TIF District is, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 469.174, Subdivision 11, a 

“housing district” because it consists of a project or portions of a project or a portion of a 

project intended for occupancy, in part, by persons or families of low and moderate 

income as defined in Chapter 462A, Title II of the National Housing Act of 1934; the 

National Housing Act of 1959; the United States Housing Act of 1937, as amended; Title 

V of the Housing Act of 1949, as amended; and any other similar present or future 

federal, state or municipal legislation or the regulations promulgated under any of those 

acts.  No more than 20% of the square footage of buildings that receive assistance from 

tax increments will consist of commercial, retail or other nonresidential uses. 

The Housing Development to be constructed in the TIF District will consist of 

approximately 48 units of workforce housing.  At least 40% of the units (i.e., 20 units) in 

the Housing Development will be rented to and occupied by individuals or families 

whose income is 60% or less of area median income.   

The Housing Development, which includes the only two buildings in the TIF District 

receiving assistance from the TIF District, is not expected to be used for any commercial, 

retail, or other non-residential use; therefore, not more than 20% of the square footage of 

the buildings that will receive assistance from tax increments from the TIF District are 

expected to be used for commercial, retail or other non-residential uses.   

Page 94Item 15.



 

MA175-124-732322.v4 4 

 2.02. The Council hereby makes the following findings: 

 

(a) The Council further finds that the proposed Housing Development, in opinion of 

the Council, would not reasonably be expected to occur solely through private investment within 

the reasonably foreseeable future and, therefore, the use of tax increment financing is deemed 

necessary.  

 

(b) The Council further finds that the TIF Plan conforms to the general plan for the 

development or redevelopment of the City as a whole.   

 

(c) The Council further finds that the TIF Plan will afford maximum opportunity 

consistent with the sound needs of the City as a whole for the development of the TIF District by 

private enterprise.   

 

 2.05. Reasons and facts supporting all the above findings are set forth in the TIF Plan and are 

incorporated herein by reference.  The Council has also relied upon a resolution of the Planning 

Commission, the reports and recommendations of the Authority’s and City’s staff and consultants, as well 

as the personal knowledge of members of the Council, in reaching its conclusions regarding the TIF Plan. 

 

 Section 3. Public Purpose 

 

 The adoption of the Project Plan and the TIF Plan conforms in all respects to the requirements of 

the TIF Act.  The proposed housing development will satisfy a need within the community for affordable 

multifamily housing in that at least 40% of the residential units in the housing development (i.e., 20 

units) will be rented to and occupied by individuals or families whose income is 60% or less of area 

median income and will improve the tax base and the general economy of the State, and thereby serves a 

public purpose.  The City expressly finds that any private benefit to be received by the developer is 

incidental, as the tax increment assistance is provided solely to make the development financially feasible 

and thus produce the public benefits described.  Therefore, the City finds that the public benefits of the 

TIF Plan exceed any private benefits. 

 

 Section 4. Approvals; Further Proceedings 

 

 4.01. The establishment of the Project Area and the Project Plan therefor are hereby approved. 

 

 4.02. The establishment of the TIF District and the TIF Plan therefor are hereby approved. 

 

 4.03. The staff of the Authority and the City, the Authority’s Executive Director and the 

Authority’s and the City’s advisors and legal counsel are authorized and directed to proceed with the 

establishment of the Project Area and the TIF District and the implementation of the Project Plan and the 

TIF Plan and this resolution.  The Authority’s Executive Director is authorized and directed to negotiate, 

draft, execute, prepare, file and present to the Board of Commissioners of the Authority for its consideration 

all further plans, resolutions, documents and contracts necessary to accomplish these actions. 

 

 4.04. The Authority is authorized and directed to file a request for certification of the TIF District 

with the County Auditor/Treasurer of Lyon County and to file a copy of the TIF Plan and the Project Plan 

with the Commissioner of the Minnesota Department of Revenue and the Office of the State Auditor 

pursuant to Minnesota Statutes 469.175, Subd. 4a. 

 

Page 95Item 15.



 

MA175-124-732322.v4 5 

 4.05. Subject to approval by the Authority on the date hereof, the City hereby approves the 

Development Agreement, substantially in accordance with the terms set forth in the form presented to the 

City Council, together with any related documents necessary in connection therewith, including without 

limitation all documents, exhibits, certifications or consents referenced in or attached to the Development 

Agreement, including without limitation the Note (collectively, the “Development Documents”), and hereby 

authorizes the Mayor and City Administrator to negotiate the final terms thereof and, in their discretion and 

at such time as they may deem appropriate, to execute the Development Documents on behalf of the City, 

and to carry out, on behalf of the City, the City’s obligations thereunder when all conditions precedent 

thereto have been satisfied. 

 

 4.06. The approval hereby given to the Development Documents includes approval of such 

additional details therein as may be necessary and appropriate and such modifications thereof, deletions 

therefrom and additions thereto as may be necessary and appropriate and approved by legal counsel to the 

City and by the officers authorized herein to execute said documents prior to their execution; and said 

officers are hereby authorized to approve said changes on behalf of the City.  The execution of any 

instrument by the appropriate officers of the City herein authorized shall be conclusive evidence of the 

approval of such document in accordance with the terms hereof.  This resolution shall not constitute an offer 

and the Development Documents shall not be effective until the date of execution thereof as provided 

herein. 

 

4.07. In the event of absence or disability of the officers, any of the documents authorized by this 

resolution to be executed may be executed without further act or authorization of the City Council by any 

duly designated acting official, or by such other officer or officers of the City Council as, in the opinion of 

the City Attorney, may act in their behalf.  Upon execution and delivery of the Development Documents, 

the officers and employees of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take or cause to be taken such 

actions as may be necessary on behalf of the City to implement the Development Documents when all 

conditions precedent thereto have been satisfied.  

4.08. The City Council hereby determines that the execution and performance of the 

Development Documents will help realize the public purposes of state laws, including Minnesota Statutes, 

Sections 469.174 through 469.1794, the Project Plan, and the TIF Plan. 

Approved by the City Council of the City of Marshall, Minnesota this 24th day of August, 2021. 

 

CITY OF MARSHALL, MINNESOTA 

 

 

  

Robert J. Byrnes 

Mayor 

 

 

Attest: 

 

 

  

Kyle Box  

City Clerk 

 

Page 96Item 15.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: INFO 

Subject: 2022 Marshall Area Fine Arts Council (MAFAC) Community Contribution Request 

Background 

Information: 

In 2021, Council approved a contribution to MAFAC of $6,000. 

The 2022 requested contribution to MAFAC is for $6,000 (a 0% change). 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

 

Recommendations:  

 

Page 97Item 16.



 

 

 

 

June 22, 2021 

 

Ms. Sharon Hanson 

City Administrator 

City of Marshall 

344 West Main Street 

Marshall, MN   56258 

 

Ms. Sharon Hanson: 

 

The Marshall Area Fine Arts Council (MAFAC) appreciates past funding granted to us by the 

City of Marshall; such funding assists us in our mission of providing art exhibitions and 

performances, promoting local artistic talent, and providing educational experiences. This year, 

for example, MAFAC hosted an Arts-in-the-Park event at Justice Park and distributed 97 free art 

kits in less than an hour to local children. The kits were well-received and a great end-of-the-

school-year treat! 

 

In addition to meeting our mission, MAFAC officers and members are active in the Marshall 

Downtown Business Association, the Chamber of Commerce, and the grant-writing webinars 

and workshops offered by Southwest Minnesota Arts Council (SMAC). MAFAC is also excited 

to bring music back to Liberty Park this summer with “A Little Night Music” Wednesday 

evenings in July, and we are thrilled to announce that our always-popular concert series will 

resume this fall. 

 

Please note our request of $6,000 from the City of Marshall: $4,000 for our operating fund (for 

expenses such as rent, utilities, supplies, and programming) and $2,000 for “A Little Night 

Music” concerts (for musician expenses and advertising for four concerts). More detailed 

information can be provided, if necessary, when we attend the City Council meeting at a later 

date.  

 

Thank you for your continued support and consideration of the Marshall Area Fine Arts Council; 

we truly appreciate it! 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Catherine Schlagel, President 

JoAnne Fraunfelder, Treasurer 

 

Enclosed: Financial Statement 

Marshall Area Fine Arts Council 
109 N 3rd St • PO Box 531 • Marshall MN 56258 

507.532.5463 • mafac.arts@gmail.com 
 

Page 98Item 16.



2020 Budget 2020 Actual 2020 Budget 2020 Actual

Administrative $40,794 $53,677 $40,030 $36,441

Performance $31,739 $20,266 $33,085 $11,048

Gift Shop $6,000 $6,722 $5,150 $4,082

Exhibits $947 $3,508 $1,365 $2,938

Books on 3rd St. $1,200 $1,021 $1,050 $619

Totals $80,680 $85,194 $80,680 $55,128

Revenue Expenditures

Marshall Area Fine Arts Council

2020 Final Revenue/Expenditures

tmp7DEA 8/19/2021

Page 99Item 16.



Page 100Item 16.



MARSHALL AREA FINE ARTS COUNCIL

• The Marshall Area Fine Arts Council (MAFAC) is a volunteer 

nonprofit organization dedicated to presenting art 

exhibitions and performances, promoting local artistic 

talents, and providing educational experiences. 

Page 101Item 16.



BOOKS ON 3RD 
STREET

“Books on 3rd Street” is a 
book shop that features 
books written by local and 
regional authors, and books 
about southwestern 
Minnesota.

On the shelves of “Books on 
3rd Street” you’ll find fantasy, 
science fiction, poetry, 
memoirs, history, fiction, non-
fiction and books for children. 

Page 102Item 16.



BOOKS ON 3rd STREET

MAFAC TRIES TO 
PROMOTE 

SHOPPING LOCALLY, 

SHOPPING 
DOWNTOWN, AND

SHOPPING

3RD STREET. 

Page 103Item 16.



MAFAC GIFT SHOP
The MAFAC Gift Shop is one of the nicest gift 
shops in the area.

Items in the Gift Shop are designed and 
handcrafted by artists from Marshall and the 
surrounding areas. 

In the Gift Shop you will find original 
paintings, prints, cards, pottery, books and 
sculpture. 

The MAFAC Gift Shop has a wide array of 
handcrafted jewelry.

The Gift Shop has many unique items you 
won’t find anywhere else, and at very 
reasonable prices. 

Page 104Item 16.



UNIQUE, ONE-OF-A-KIND, REASONABLE 
PRICES

Page 105Item 16.



THE RETURN OF “A LITTLE NIGHT MUSIC”
LIBERTY PARK

JULY 2021

• July 7th – The Roe Family Singers

• July 14th – Mike Jacobs

• July 21st - The Prairie Arts Chorale

• July 28th – The Oak Lake String Band

THANK YOU, CITY OF MARSHALL, FOR 
HELPING MAKE “A LITTLE NIGHT MUSIC” POSSIBLE!

Page 106Item 16.



“ART IN THE PARK”
JUNE 2021

93 FREE ART KITS DISTRIBUTED TO KIDS K-12

Page 107Item 16.



MAFAC CONCERT 
SERIES 2021-2022.

Tajci-Waking Up In America
Sunday, October 3, 3:00 p.m.
SCCPA

Prairie Arts Chorale
Friday, November 5, 7:00 p.m.
Marshall Middle School

Barron Ryan
Sunday, November 21, 3:00 p.m.
Marshall Middle School

The Chipper Experience
Saturday, March 12, 3:00 p.m.
SCCPA

Branden & James
Sunday, May 8, 3:00 p.m.
Marshall Middle School

Page 108Item 16.



Concert Series Subscriptions Available 

Page 109Item 16.



MAFAC ART GALLERY

• The MAFAC Art Gallery stages an 
exhibit every six weeks. 

• Exhibits vary from stained glass, 
to photography, original oils, 
textiles, mixed media, print, 
sculpture and other art 
mediums. 

Page 110Item 16.



ART GALLERY EXHIBITS

Page 111Item 16.



2020 Actual 2021 Budget 2020 Actual 2021 Budget

Administrative $53,677 $35,166 $36,441 $41,410

Performance $20,266 $12,063 $11,048 $15,332

Gift Shop $6,722 $5,000 $4,082 $4,200

Exhibit $3,508 $767 $2,938 $1,075

Books on 3rd Street $1,021 $1,000 $619 $950

Totals $85,194 $53,996 $55,128 $62,967

Marshall Area Fine Arts Council

2020 Final Revenue/Expenditures

Revenue Expenditures

2021 Revenue/Expenditures Budget

Page 112Item 16.



Comparing Revenue 2020 Actual to 2021 Budget

Grants $13,197 15%

Business 
Sponsorship
$15,975 19%

Membership
$11,250 13%

Concert Series
$17,627 21%

City/County $8,500
10%

CARES Grant
$15,000 18%

Miscellaneous
$3,645 4%

2020 Revenue

Grants $7,845 15%

Business 
Sponsorship
$14,600 27%

Membership
$10,400 19%

Concert Series
$11,051 20%

City/County $8,500
16%

CARES Grant $0 0% Miscellaneous
$1,600 3%

2021 Revenue Budget

2020 Actual 
Revenue

2021 Revenue 
Budget

Grants $13,197 15% $7,845 15%

Business Sponsorship $15,975 19% $14,600 27%

Membership $11,250 13% $10,400 19%

Concert Series $17,627 21% $11,051 20%

City/County $8,500 10% $8,500 16%

CARES Grant $15,000 18% $0 0%

Miscellaneous $3,645 4% $1,600 3%

Total $85,194 $53,996

Page 113Item 16.



Comparing Expenditures 2020 Actual to 
2021 Budget

Advertising/Promotion
$1,000 2%

Rent/Utilities
$16,697 30%

Artist Payments
$6,732 12%

Payroll $7,266 13%

Accounting Services
$4,800 9%

Supplies $796 2%

Performance Fees $11,048
20%

Postage/Phone/Maint
$2,927 5%

Mural Maintenance
$1,000 2% Equip/Software

$2,862 5%

2020 Expenditures

Advertising/Promotion
$1,660 3%

Rent/Utilities
$17,200 27%

Artist Payments
$4,750 8%

Payroll $12,750 20%

Accounting Services
$5,800 9%

Supplies $1,675 3%

Performance Fees
$15,332 24%

Postage/Phone/Maint
$3,000 5%

Mural Maintenance
$0 0% Equip/Software

$800 1%

2021 Expenditure Budget

2020 Actual Expenses 2021 Expense Budget

Advertising/Promotion $1,000 2% $1,660 3%

Rent/Utilities $16,697 30% $17,200 27%

Artist Payments $6,732 12% $4,750 8%

Payroll $7,266 13% $12,750 20%

Accounting Services $4,800 9% $5,800 9%

Supplies $796 1% $1,675 3%

Performance Fees $11,048 20% $15,332 24%

Postage/Phone/Maint $2,927 5% $3,000 5%

Mural Maintenance $1,000 2% $0 0%

Equip/Software $2,862 5% $800 1%

Total $55,128 $62,967

Page 114Item 16.



MARSHALL AREA FINE 
ARTS COUNCIL 

The Marshall Area Fine Arts Council is 
motivated to build community through the 
arts by providing art exhibits and 
performances and educational experiences.

The Marshall Area Fine Arts Council is 
dedicated to promoting the artistic talents of 
local and regional artists and authors. 

The Marshall Area Fine Arts Council is a 
volunteer organization. We rely on 
volunteers and membership. Please consider 
becoming a member of MAFAC. 

Page 115Item 16.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: INFO 

Subject: Coalition of Greater Minnesota Cities Update 

Background 

Information: 

Marty Seifert, Senior Lobbyist with Flaherty & Hood will provide a legislative update to the City 

Council. This update will be focused to Coalition of Greater Minnesota Cities issues. 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

 

Recommendations:  

 

Page 116Item 17.



CGMC Goal Governor House Senate Final Outcome
Local Government 
Aid (LGA)

Prevent cuts to LGA No LGA cut No LGA cut • No LGA cut
• One-time supplemental 

aid to prevent reduction 
to any city based on 
formula

• No LGA cut
• One-time 

supplemental aid to 
prevent reduction to 
any city based on 
formula

Public Facilities 
Authority (PFA) 
water infrastructure 
programs

$100M in bonding and/or 
other sources

• $0 in bonding
• $15.936M in Legacy 

bill for Point Source 
Implementation Grants 
(PSIG)

• $15M in bonding
• $15.936M in Legacy 

bill for PSIG

• No bonding bill
• $16.936M in Legacy 

bill for PSIG
• $165M using federal 

relief funds

• No bonding bill
• $15.9M in Legacy bill 

for PSIG

Municipal PFAS 
Source Reduction 
Initiative

• $500,000 for source 
reduction at wastewater 
facilities

• Creation of stakeholder 
group to oversee the 
initiative

• $500,000 for source 
reduction at wastewater 
facilities

• No stakeholder group

• $500,000 for 
source reduction at 
wastewater facilities

• No stakeholder group

• $500,000 for source 
reduction at wastewater 
and solid waste 
recovery facilities

• Combined stakeholder 
group

• $600,000 for 
source reduction 
at wastewater and 
solid waste recovery 
facilities

• Combined stakeholder 
group

Child Care - Facilities 
Grant Program

$20M in bonding $0 in bonding $5M in bonding • No bonding bill
• Appropriates $50M in 

federal relief funds to 
reopen closed facilities

$22.5M statewide for 
facilities

Child Care - Grants to 
Minnesota Initiative 
Foundations for 
child care business 
development

$4M $0 $2M $3M • $3M in 2022-23
• $2M projected in base 

budget for 2024-25

Child Care - DEED 
child grants for 
training and business 
development

$10M $750,000 $10M $20M using federal relief 
funds

• $5M in 2022-23
• $3M projected in base 

budget for 2024-25

Prepared for the Coalition of Greater Minnesota Cities by Flaherty & Hood, P.A. 7/1/2021

2021 Legislative Session: 
Final Outcomes on CGMC Priorities 

Page 117Item 17.



Prepared for the Coalition of Greater Minnesota Cities by Flaherty & Hood, P.A. 7/1/2021.

2021 Legislative Session: 
Final Outcomes on CGMC Priorities 

CGMC Goal Governor House Senate Final Outcome
Greater Minnesota 
Business Development 
Public Infrastructure 
(BDPI) Grant Program

• $20M in bonding
• $3.574M in cash

• $0 in bonding
• $3.574M in cash

• $0 in bonding
• $3.574M in cash

• No bonding bill
• $3.574M in cash

• No bonding bill
• $3.574M in cash

Housing - Greater 
Minnesota Fix-Up Fund 
(new program)

$5M $0 $0 $0 $0

Housing - Greater 
Minnesota Housing 
Public Infrastructure 
Grant Program (new 
program)

$2.5M in bonding $0 $0 No bonding bill $0 (no bonding bill)

Housing - Greater 
Minnesota Workforce 
Development Fund

$6M $6M $4M $4M $4M

Large-City Streets  
(Cities with populations 
over 5,000 receive state 
funding through the 
Municipal Street Aid 
program)

$25M/year increase No increase New, dedicated revenues 
increase MSA by $16M/
year by 2025

Dedication of new 
general funds increase 
MSA by $4M/year by 
2025

No significant increase. 
MSA will see a small 
increase of less than 
$700,000 per year as a 
result of other provisions 
in the transportation bill. 

Small-City Streets 
(Cities with populations 
under 5,000 receive no 
dedicated funding from the 
state)

$25M/year $0 $19.6M/year in 
dedicated, ongoing funds

$9M/year in ongoing 
dedicated funds; one-
time general fund 
appropriations of $6.1M 
in 2022, $5.7M in 2023

$18M one-time 
appropriation in FY22 

Page 118Item 17.



Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances (PFAS)
 
PFAS are a class of pervasive chemicals that have been linked to various health concerns and have been found in 
waterbodies across the state. PFAS can be removed from drinking water through expensive treatment, but there 
is no technologically feasible method for removing them from wastewater. 

CGMC’s Role: We advocated for a municipal source reduction strategy, which the Legislature established 
and funded this year. We also blocked legislation that could have held cities liable for the presence of PFAS in 
wastewater or drinking water. We continue to defend against detrimental proposals and seek ways to reduce 
sources of PFAS.

Chloride
 
More than 100 cities could face chloride limits in their wastewater permits, but there is no feasible method 
to remove chloride at a wastewater facility. Most cities will need a variance from these permit requirements, 
and a variance will still require efforts by the city to reduce chloride. Some cities may be required to install 
central water softening, but others may be able to address the issue by working with citizens to remove and/or 
upgrade home water softening equipment.   

CGMC’s Role: We sought state funding for grants to assist cities with the removal or upgrade of home water 
softeners, which the Legislature passed this year. We also submitted comments to the Minnesota Pollution 
Control Agency (MPCA) in favor of chloride variances that were approved. We continue to support cities on this issue.

Funding for Innovative Approaches and Climate Impact
 
As the cost of wastewater treatment increases, cities are looking to alternative approaches to address water 
quality issues and the impacts of the changing climate. Current state funding may not always support innovative 
projects because they do not fit into traditional program definitions. 

CGMC’s Role: We advocated in favor of a new MPCA grant program that will help cities plan for the 
infrastructure needed to address extreme weather. The 2021 Legislature created and funded this program.  

Recent Successes

Lake Pepin TMDL
 
Nearly two-thirds of Minnesota’s watersheds drain into Lake Pepin and are therefore subject to the Lake Pepin 
Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) plan. This plan seeks to impose phosphorus limits on cities’ wastewater and 
stormwater even though data shows the lake is no longer impaired. 

CGMC’s Role: We joined with other local government advocacy organizations to bring a contested case action 
on the TMDL and negotiated several process changes that will assist cities in the future. 

Class 3 & 4 Waters/Salty Parameters
 
Several CGMC members have unnecessary permit limits based on MPCA’s outdated Class 3 and 4 water 
quality standards, which have caused major impediments to economic development. In addition to the 
cities that currently have problematic permit limits, more than 20 CGMC members are slated to receive 
outdated permit limits unless MPCA updates the underlying water quality standards. 

CGMC’s Role: We participated in MPCA’s rulemaking process and submitted comments in favor of MPCA’s 
plan to update the standards. The plan was recently affirmed by an Administrative Law Judge and we will 
continue to support these changes until they are finalized by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

CGMC Environmental Program 
Successes, Emerging Issues & 
Continued Advocacy

Page 119Item 17.



Nitrogen and Nitrate Standards (EPA Nutrient Criteria) 
 
The U.S. EPA is developing nutrient criteria for lakes that will regulate nitrogen and nitrate. These standards could 
have major negative economic impacts for municipal wastewater facilities. 

CGMC’s Role: CGMC is participating in the federal rulemaking process and will monitor state developments.  

Proposed Permit Fee Increase
 
MPCA is seeking to impose a fee increase on water quality related permits to generate more funding for its water 
quality operations. A significant portion of this increase will fall on municipalities. 

CGMC’s Role: We are pushing for increased state general fund spending for water quality operations, rather 
than requiring local municipalities to pay for these increases. The 2021 Legislature appropriated $3 million for the 
water quality budget, but we anticipate MPCA will seek an increase for the remaining deficit. We will monitor 
and advocate as the proposed fee increases move forward. 

CGMC Environmental Program 
Successes, Emerging Issues & 
Continued Advocacy

Emerging & Ongoing Issues

Wild Rice Sulfate Rule
 
Minnesota’s standard for sulfate in wild rice waters is outdated and may result in permit limits that require 
expensive facility upgrades that would not actually improve water quality. In the spring of 2021, the U.S. EPA 
proposed adding 30 waterbodies to the impairment list which could result in cities facing sulfate limits in their 
permits. 

CGMC’s Role: We submitted comments objecting to the inclusion of these waterbodies on the impairment 
list and urging the U.S. EPA to work with Tribal Nations and other stakeholders to protect wild rice. We will 
continue to monitor and advocate on this issue. 

Water Infrastructure Funding
 
As facilities age and regulatory burdens increase, cities face increasing water infrastructure costs. Ensuring that 
cities receive help from the state in the form of Public Facilities Authority (PFA) grants and loans is vital.

CGMC’s Role: We continue to advocate for PFA funding from bonding and the Clean Water Fund. The 2020 
bonding bill included an historic $125 million for PFA programs, and the 2021 Legacy bill included $15.9 million for 
the PFA’s Point Source Implementation Grant Program. In 2022, we will continue to push for a large bonding bill 
that includes substantial PFA funding and will review whether current programs are meeting the needs of our 
member cities. 

Drinking Water and Water Access
 
Access to safe, clean and affordable drinking water is critical for Greater Minnesota communities. Several cities 
throughout the state have identified environmental, regulatory and economic challenges related to drinking 
water and water access.  

CGMC’s Role: We are working to better understand our members’ concerns, monitor emerging issues and 
trends, and develop strategies to ensure Greater Minnesota communities have access to affordable water 
resources for generations to come. 

Created for the Coalition of Greater Minnesota Cities by Flaherty & Hood, P.A. 7/1/2021.
Page 120Item 17.



SAVE 
THE 
DATE
Website
greatermncities.org

Facebook  
facebook.com/greatermncities 
 
Twitter 
@greatermncities

YouTube
youtube.com/GreaterMNCities

Mark your calendar for upcoming Mark your calendar for upcoming 
CGMC events:CGMC events:

Summer Conference
July 29-30, 2021, Alexandria

Fall Conference
Nov. 18-19, 2021, Willmar

Legislative Action Day
March 2, 2022, St. Paul

FOLLOW 
CGMC ON 

SOCIAL 
MEDIA

Page 121Item 17.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: INFO/ACTION 

Subject: Enterprise Fleet Management 1) Review proposal 2) Consider approval of a fleet 

management program with Enterprise Fleet Management. 

Background 

Information: 

In 2018/2019 staff began to research a fleet management option for the City’s fleet vehicles. 

Staff partnered with Enterprise Fleet Management to present information and next steps on 

the program. The program was ultimately halted due to timing. 

At the August 2, 2021 budget work session, it was requested by Councilmember Lozinski and 

Councilmember Labat and with a consensus from the remaining members in attendance to 

revisit the fleet management program and bring update information and a proposal back to the 

City Council before the end of August 2021. 

Staff began to work with Enterprise Fleet Management with our current fleet vehicles, current 

and future equipment budgets and have compiled the information for review. The City’s fleet 

currently consists of 50+ vehicles that will be considered for the fleet management program.  

Senior Account Executive, Wong Nystrom will be in attendance to provide detailed information 

on Enterprise Fleet Management’s program.  

Staff remain in support of this program. 

Fiscal Impact: Estimated Savings: $251,715 (10 Years) 

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

 

Recommendations: To approve a fleet management program with Enterprise Fleet Management. 

 

Page 122Item 18.



10

8

6

Full-size Sedan 4 9.1 6,000 # 3 0 1 0 0 0 4

Minivan-Passenger 1 18.8 6,000 # 1 0 0 0 0 0

3/4 Ton Van Cargo 1 16.8 6,000 # 1 0 0 0 0 0

Compact SUV 4x4 1 11.7 6,000 # 1 0 0 0 0 0

Mid Size SUV 4x4 8 2.8 6,000 # 0 0 0 4 4 0

Full Size SUV 4x2 1 6.6 6,000 # 0 0 1 0 0 0

Full Size SUV 4x4 1 3.6 6,000 # 0 0 0 1 0 0

Compact Pickup Ext 4x4 2 24.3 6,000 # 2 0 0 0 0 0

1/2 Ton Pickup Ext 4x4 20 9.1 6,000 # 7 3 5 0 5 0

3/4 Ton Pickup Ext 4x4 8 12.6 6,000 # 7 0 0 1 0 0

1 Ton Pickup Reg 4x4 2 9.6 6,000 # 1 1 0 0 0 0

1 Ton Pickup Ext 4x4 2 5.1 6,000 # 0 0 1 1 0 0

Totals/Averages 51 9.3 6,000 23 4 8 7 9 0

Confidential

Model Year Analysis

8/19/2021

Vehicle Types

2022 2023 2024 2025 2026
Under-
Utilized * Fiscal Year 2023 = 8 years old and older, or odometer over 80,000

* Fiscal Year 2024 = 6 years old and older, or odometer over 60,000

* Fiscal Year 2025 = 4 years old and older, or odometer over 40,000

* Fiscal Year 2026 = Remaining Vehicles

* Underutilized = Annual Mileage less than 2,500

* Fiscal Year 2022 = 10 years old and older, or odometer over 100,000

Vehicle Type # of Type
Average 

Age (years)

Average 
Annual 
Mileage

City of Marshall - Fleet Profile
Fleet Profile Fleet Replacement Schedule Replacement Criteria

5

1 1

3

5

0 0

2 2

4 4

0

3

5
4

3 3
4

2

0
0

20
23 Vehicles over 10 Years

8%

23%

22%

43%

4%

CAR HD TRUCK SUV TRUCK VAN

Page 123Item 18.



51
0.00% 51
6,000 3.06

$38.16
16 $3.00

Annual
Fiscal 
Year

Fleet Size
Annual 
Needs

Owned Leased Purchase Lease*
Equity 

(Owned)
Equity 

(Leased)
Maintenance Fuel Fleet Budget Net Cash

Incl. Tax
Average 51 4.0 51 0 139,778 0 61,200 57,375 258,353 0 258,353

'22 51 23 28 23 0 159,425 -23,000 -14,332 44,131 52,200 218,424 39,929 258,353
'23 51 6 24 27 0 187,912 -8,000 -79,981 41,162 51,300 192,394 65,959 258,353
'24 51 18 16 35 0 278,005 -28,000 -168,240 35,225 49,500 166,490 91,863 258,353
'25 51 21 9 42 0 352,618 -45,500 -146,117 30,030 47,925 238,957 19,396 258,353
'26 51 26 0 51 0 398,716 -76,500 -113,421 23,351 45,900 278,046 -19,693 258,353
'27 51 12 0 51 0 398,716 -322,793 23,351 45,900 145,174 113,179 258,353
'28 51 31 0 51 0 398,716 -73,644 23,351 45,900 394,323 -135,970 258,353
'29 51 8 0 51 0 398,716 -234,926 23,351 45,900 233,040 25,312 258,353
'30 51 27 0 51 0 398,716 -231,749 23,351 45,900 236,218 22,135 258,353
'31 51 20 0 51 0 398,716 -239,217 23,351 45,900 228,750 29,603 258,353

YEAR 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 Under-Utilized Lower average age of the fleet

QTY 23 4 8 7 9 0
Est  $ $1,000 $2,000 $3,500 $6,500 $8,500 $0 Resale of the aging fleet is significantly reduced

TOTAL $23,000 $8,000 $28,000 $45,500 $76,500 $0
Reduce operating costs
Newer vehicles have a significantly lower maintenance expense

* Lease Rates are conservative estimates Newer vehicles have increased fuel efficiency with new technology implementations

**Estimated Current Fleet Equity is based on the current fleet "sight unseen" 

and can be adjusted after physical inspection Maintain a manageable vehicle budget
Lease Maintenace costs are exclusive of tires unless noted on the lease rate quote. Challenged by inconsistent yearly budgets

Currently vehicle budget is underfunded

8/19/2021

10 Year Savings

KEY OBJECTIVES

Confidential

$181,000

45% of the current light and medium duty fleet is over 10 years old

Current Fleet Equity Analysis

Estimated Current Fleet Equity**

City of Marshall - Fleet Planning Analysis

$251,715

Fleet Costs Analysis

Fleet Mix

$10,852Avg. Sustainable Savings

Annual Miles

Price/Gallon
Proposed Maint.

51 Fleet Growth
Proposed Cycle

$100.00
12.75

Current Fleet

Fleet Cost

Proposed Fleet
Current Cycle

Current MPG
Current Maint.

Maint. Cents Per Mile $0.20

22%

24%
54%

Fuel Maintenance Purchase

Page 124Item 18.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: ACTION 

Subject: Consider Amendment to Purchasing Ordinance 

Background 

Information: 

Staff are recommending this change to the purchasing ordinance to ensure compliance with the 
newly approved purchasing policy.  By having the ordinance reference the council approved 
policy, future changes to the policy would not conflict with the ordinance.  This would allow a 
more efficient process and simplify procedures in the future.   
 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

 

Recommendations: Approve Amendments to the Purchasing Ordinance 

 

Page 125Item 19.



Sec. 2-74. - Supervision of purchases and contracts. 
SHARE LINK TO SECTIONPRINT SECTIONDOWNLOAD (DOCX) OF SECTIONSEMAIL 

SECTIONCOMPARE VERSIONS 

(a) 

All city purchases and contracts shall be made or let by the city administrator, or his 

representative, when the amount of the purchase or contract does not exceed council 

approved purchasing policy and procedures $5,000.00. All other purchases and expenditures 

shall be made and all other contracts let by the council after the recommendation of the city 

administrator has first been obtained. He shall be responsible for determining that all 

purchases, and contracts are necessary, legal, proper and reasonable. 

 

Page 126Item 19.

https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/
https://library.municode.com/


 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: NEW BUSINESS 

Type: INFO/ACTION 

Subject: 800 N. Hwy. 59 Property  

Background 

Information: 

On July 13th, 2021, City Council gave staff the direction to proceed with discussion and 
negotiations with the seller of the property located at 800 N. Hwy. 59.  City staff viewed the 
property and negotiated with the seller.  City staff has worked with the City Attorney’s Office to 
draft a detailed purchase agreement.  The purchase agreement outlines the property to be 
purchased and contingencies made in order for the purchase agreement to be fully executed.  
Please see the attached purchase agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Fiscal Impact: $325,000 

Recommendations: Consider the approval of the purchase agreement for 800 N. Hwy 59. 

  

 

Page 127Item 20.



 

1 

PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into this 12th day of      

August, 2021 (the “Effective Date”), by and between City of Marshall, a MN Municipal 

Corporation ("Buyer") and Sandra K. Mosch, a Single Person,  ("Seller").   

 

 1. PROPERTY TO BE PURCHASED.  Seller agrees to sell and Buyer agrees to 

purchase, upon the terms and conditions and subject to the contingencies hereinafter set forth, the 

real property, and all other rights, privileges, easements, licenses and appurtenances, thereunto 

belonging, owned by Seller consisting of the following described property: NON-AG SEC 33-

01010001. Said property to be surveyed from the U.S. Hwy 59 right of way to the easterly 

boundary defined as an existing metal fence. Southerly boundary is defined, norther boundary to 

be defined as the middle of gate and chain link fence and gravel roadway. Said property shall be 

legal described on Exhibit A and visually depicted on Exhibit B attached hereto (the “property”). 

 

 2. PURCHASE PRICE.   The purchase price will be the sum of Three Hundred 

Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars and 00/100 cents ($325,000.00). Which the buyer will pay as 

follows: Earnest money of $2,500.00 upon the execution of this agreement, receipt of which is 

hereby acknowledged and the remaining purchase price of $322,500.00 is to be paid at the closing 

date. 

 

 3. EXCLUSIVITY.  Until such time, if any, as this Agreement is terminated, Seller 

will not, directly, or indirectly, solicit, initiate, entertain, or accept any inquiries or proposals from, 

discuss or negotiate with, provide any information to, or consider the merits of any unsolicited 

inquiries or proposals from any person or entity relating to any transaction involving the sale or 

acquisition of the Property. A violation of this paragraph is a material breach of this Agreement.  

 

 4. CONVEYANCE OF MARKETABLE TITLE; POSSESSION.   Seller shall 

convey the Property to Buyer or its assigns at Closing by General Warranty Deed.  

Notwithstanding the foregoing, any and all liens or encumbrances, such as mortgages, and 

construction liens, must be satisfied by Seller prior to or at Closing, and marketable title shall be 

conveyed to Buyer at Closing.  Possession of the Property shall be delivered to Buyer immediately 

after the Closing.   

 

 5. SELLER DELIVERABLES.  Seller agrees to deliver to Buyer, within fifteen (15) 

days of the Effective Date, copies of (i) any existing surveys or plat documents in Seller’s 

possession; (ii) any unrecorded leases, agreements or covenants that restrict the Property; (iii) any 

geotechnical, environmental, wetland delineation information, warranties, or maintenance 

documents or other property condition reports or letters in Seller’s possession; (iv) any 

correspondence, notices, letters or development agreements from either the City of Marshall or 

Lyon County related to zoning, permitted uses, assessments or future plans for the Property; (v) 

any covenants, codes, restrictions, declarations, conditional use permits, variances, easements, 

licenses or other conditions or restrictions affecting the Property (collectively, the “Seller 

Deliverables”).   

 

Page 128Item 20.



 

2 

Within fifteen (15) days after the Effective Date, Seller, at her expense, shall furnish Buyer with a 

title insurance commitment (“Title Commitment”) from a national title insurance company, for 

issuance to Buyer of an ALTA Owner’s Policy of Title Insurance without standard exceptions, 

with respect to the Property, in the amount of the Purchase Price, showing Seller to be the sole 

owner of marketable and insurable title to the Property, free and clear of any liens and 

encumbrances, certified to the date of the filing of the warranty deed (the “Title Policy”).  The 

Title Company shall also deliver to Buyer copies of all instruments or exception documents 

referenced in the Title Commitment.   

 

The date of Buyer’s receipt of both the Title Commitment and all Seller Deliverables will be 

memorialized as the “Seller Deliverable Date”. 

 

 6. DUE DILIGENCE CONTINGENCIES.  The obligation of Buyer to conclude 

the transaction for the purchase of the Property as contemplated by this Agreement is expressly 

made contingent upon the provisions of this section.   

 

(a) Within sixty (60) days from the Seller Deliverable Date (the “Due Diligence 

Period”), Buyer, at Buyer’s expense, shall have determined in its sole 

discretion that Buyer is satisfied with the title, survey, and physical 

condition of the Property and Buyer has obtained all due diligence and 

feasibility inspection reports deemed necessary by Buyer (including, but not 

limited to, site assessments, engineering assessments, environmental site 

assessments, soils tests, well tests, agreement on tax abatement, building 

inspections, and review of documents, permits, licenses and special 

assessments), the results of which due diligence inspections must be 

satisfactory to Buyer in all respects.  

 

(b) Buyer shall have sixty (60) days from the Seller Deliverable Date, in which 

to provide Seller with any written objections to the status of title.  Buyer 

shall be deemed to have waived any title objections not made within the 

applicable period provided for above, except that this shall not operate as a 

waiver of Seller’s covenant to deliver a warranty deed.  Objection to liens 

shall be presumed.  Seller shall have a period of thirty (30) days in which to 

correct the title and make it marketable and insurable.  If title to the Property 

cannot be made marketable and insurable within said period of time or such 

further time as may be granted by Buyer, Buyer may, in its sole discretion, 

proceed with the Closing without waiving any claim Buyer may have 

against Seller for said title objections, and/or seek any other remedy 

provided herein or by law, or may cancel the purchase contemplated by this 

Agreement, in which case Buyer shall have no further liability to Seller. If 

applicable, the Title Policy shall be issued as soon as possible after Closing. 

 

(c) From the Effective Date through the date of Closing, there shall not have 

occurred any material adverse changes in the condition of the Property or 

the title thereto, except as may have been requested, caused or suffered by 

Buyer.  

Page 129Item 20.



 

3 

 

(d) No action, suit, or proceeding before any court or any governmental body 

or authority, pertaining to the transaction shall have been instituted or 

threatened by Closing. 

 

(e) As of date and hour of Closing, title to the Property shall be marketable, 

insurable to the extent of the Purchase Price and subject to no easements, 

reservations, restrictions, encroachments or other matters, except for those 

that are deemed acceptable by Buyer. 

 

(f) Buyer’s ability to obtain city/government approvals for its intended use and 

satisfaction with related requirements, including one (1) ingress/egress 

points on U.S. Hwy 59 as shown on Exhibit B. 

 

(g) Buyer’s satisfaction that it’s intended use including bulk outside storage of 

material will be allowable without undue burden. 

 

(h) Upon the date of Closing, at Buyer’s expense, the Property will be platted 

as a separate tax parcel in accordance with Exhibit B, zoned appropriately 

for Buyer’s intended use, with all platting/subdivision/development fees 

paid by Buyer including any sewer or water access fees or sewer line cost 

recovery fees. 

 

Buyer shall give notice to Seller, on or before the dates set forth above, if a 

contingency has not been satisfied by such date.  If any contingency has not been 

satisfied to Buyer’s satisfaction, Buyer may elect to terminate this Agreement and 

the parties shall have no further obligations to each other.  Alternatively, Buyer may 

waive any one or all of the contingencies described above and close the transaction 

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.   

 

 7. PROPERTY TAXES.   The general real estate taxes due and payable in the year 

of Closing, regardless of when payable, shall be prorated to the date of Closing, with Buyer being 

responsible for such taxes beginning the day after Closing.  Other taxes and balances of any special 

assessments, whether for prior years or pending, planned, or levied, shall be paid by Seller on or 

before Closing.  Any real estate taxes due and payable for the years following Closing shall be paid 

by Buyer.   

 

 8. REPRESENTATION AND WARRANTIES.  As a material inducement to cause 

Buyer to enter into this Agreement, Seller warrants and represents to Buyer, with respect to the 

Property as follows (Seller’s warranties and representations are true and correct in all material 

respects on the Effective Date and shall be true and correct in all material respects on the Closing 

date and shall survive the Closing of the transaction contemplated hereby): 

 

 (a) There are no actions, lawsuits, judgments, liens, suits, claims, 

investigations or other proceedings pending or threatened against Seller or the 

Page 130Item 20.



 

4 

Property which relates to Seller or the ownership, maintenance, or operation of the 

Property or might in any way affect the Property or this transaction.  

 

 (b) To Seller's knowledge, there is no environmental condition, 

situation or incident that could in any manner give rise to any action or liability 

under any environmental law, and Seller is not subject to and is not currently 

operating under any compliance or consent order, schedule, decree or agreement 

issued or entered into under any environmental law.  The Property has never been 

used as a landfill or as a garbage dump.  

 

 (c) No building or other improvement encroaches on the Property, nor 

does any improvement which is part of the Property encroach on lands of others or 

on any public or private road or right of way.  

 

 (d) Seller is not a foreign person within the meaning of § 1445 of the 

Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Seller shall complete an appropriate 

Certificate of Non-Foreign Status at Closing confirming the accuracy of this 

representation.  

 

 (e) Seller has good and marketable title to the Property.  Seller has the 

full right, power, and authority to sell, convey and transfer the Property herein and 

to execute, deliver and carry out the provisions of this Agreement.  No leases or 

right of possession affect the Property. Seller is not aware of any unrecorded 

contracts, options, easements or other arrangements or interests relating to the 

Property.   No person or entity has provided labor or materials to the Property within 

six (6) months prior to closing whose claim for such labor or material has not been 

fully paid.  

 

 (f) Each individual executing this Agreement on behalf of Seller is duly 

authorized to execute and deliver the same on behalf of Seller, and the members, 

managers, or governors, as applicable, of Seller have executed proper resolutions 

authorizing this transaction.  
 

 (g) One (1) above-ground liquid propane storage tank is located on the 

Property near an existing building in the southeast corner of the Property.  There 

are no other water wells, septic systems, or underground or above-ground storage 

tanks located in or on the Property. 

 

 (h) Seller and any occupant of the Property have complied in all 

material respects with and are not in violation in any material respect of, any 

applicable federal, state, or local statutes, laws, and regulations (including, without 

limitation, any applicable building, zoning, or other law, ordinance, or regulation) 

affecting the Property, including any requirements of the State of Minnesota.  

 

(i) Seller has not received any notice of the creation of any special 

assessment district for future improvements for which the property may be 

assessed.  To the best of Seller’s knowledge, there are no proceedings in which 

Page 131Item 20.



 

5 

special assessment districts affecting the property are currently under consideration 

for future improvements to be made by Lyon County or the City of Marshall. 

 

(j) Seller has not: (i) made a general assignment for the benefit of its 

creditors; (ii) filed any voluntary petition in bankruptcy or suffered the filing of an 

involuntary petition in bankruptcy; (iii) suffered the appointment of a receiver to 

take possession of all or substantially all of Seller’s assets; (iv) suffered the 

attachment or other judicial seizure of all or substantially all of Seller’s assets; (v) 

admitted in writing its inability to pay the estate’s debts as they become due; or (vi) 

made an offer of settlement, extension or composition to its creditors generally. 

 

(k) To the best of Seller’s knowledge, the Property has not been 

contaminated with any Hazardous Substances; the Property is not subject to any 

federal, state, or local lien or proceedings, any claim, liability, action, or threat of 

remediation, respecting any Hazardous Substances allegedly impacting the 

Property or adjacent real estate; Seller has not received any written notice from any 

governmental body of the presence or release of any hazardous substances that 

would cause the Property, or any portion thereof, to be in violation of any applicable 

environmental laws, nor has Seller received written notice from any applicable 

governmental body or has any actual knowledge that the Property is not in 

compliance with applicable environmental laws; and to the best of Seller’s 

knowledge, no Hazardous Substances have leaked, escaped or been discharged, 

emitted or otherwise released from the Property onto any adjoining properties or 

from any adjoining property onto the Property.  For purposes of this Agreement, 

the term “Hazardous Substance” shall mean any hazardous waste, toxic substances, 

polychlorinated biphenlys, asbestos, petroleum products, and any element, 

compound, mixture, or substance regulated by any federal, state, or local law, rule, 

or regulation because of its toxicity, corrosiveness, reactivity, or carcinogenic 

effect, and also includes, but is not limited to substances defined as “hazardous 

substances” or “toxic substance” in the Comprehensive Environmental Response 

Compensation Liability Act of 1980, as amended 32 U.S.C. §9601, et seq., 

Hazardous Materials Transportation Act, 49 U.S.C. Appx. or as “hazardous 

substance,” “hazardous waste” or “pollutant or contaminate” under Minnesota law. 

 

(l) There are no underground or above-ground storage tanks located in or 

on the Property, except as provided in Paragraph 8(g).  

 

(m) There is a right of access to the Property from a public right-of-way. 

 

(n) There is no present violation of any restrictions relating to the use or 

condition of the Property. 

 

(o) The Property does not lay in a 100-year flood plain area.   

 

Page 132Item 20.



 

6 

(p) Seller has no actual knowledge and has not received any notice of any 

pending, planned, or proposed special assessments which may be levied upon the 

Property.   

 

 9. RISK OF LOSS.  The risk of loss or damage to the Property or for any liability 

relating to the Property shall remain with Seller until Closing. If prior to closing, any substantial 

portion of the Property is damaged by fire or other casualty or taken or threatened by condemnation 

or eminent domain, the Buyer, at its sole discretion, may terminate this Agreement through written 

notice to Seller.  

 

10. BROKERAGE.  The Seller has hereby retained the services of Keller Williams 

Preferred Realty Agency to assist in the sale of property and negotiation of this agreement. Realtor 

commissions/brokerage fees shall be paid by seller to said Keller Williams Preferred Realty. 

 

 11. CLOSING DATE; CLOSING COSTS.  The closing (“Closing”) of the 

transaction contemplated by this Agreement shall occur within thirty (30) days after the date that 

the Due Diligence Period lapses or is earlier waived in writing by Buyer, or on such other date and 

at a reasonable time as may be agreed to by both Buyer and Seller.  The location of the closing 

shall be at the Title Company unless the parties mutually agree to another location.  Seller shall be 

responsible for the payment of the following Closing costs:  (i) preparation of the Warranty Deed 

(ii) preparation of and recording expense of all releases, satisfactions and corrective documents, 

(iii)  any transfer fees and/or taxes assessed or to be assessed in connection with the conveyance 

of the Property, (iv) one-half (½) of the closing fees, (v) Seller's attorney fees, (vi) the cost of 

issuing the Title Commitment, and (Buyer shall be responsible for the payment of the following 

Closing costs:  (i) costs for recording the Warranty Deed, (ii) one-half (½) of the closing fees, (iii) 

the title insurance premium, for an owner's policy of title insurance in an amount equal to the 

Purchase Price; (iv) Buyer's attorney fees. 

 

 12. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement by 

and between the parties and any other prior representations or agreements are deemed merged 

herein and those not specified herein do not represent any agreements or promises or covenants or 

representations on the part of either party hereto. 

 

 13. AMENDMENTS, MODIFICATIONS OR WAIVERS.   No amendment, 

modification or waiver of any condition, provision or term shall be valid or of any effect unless 

made in writing signed by the party or parties to be bound or a duly authorized representative and 

specifying with particularity the extent and nature of such amendment, modification or waiver.  

Any waiver by any party of any default of another party shall not affect or impair any right arising 

from any subsequent default.  Except as expressly and specifically stated otherwise, nothing herein 

shall limit the remedies and rights of the parties thereto under and pursuant to this Agreement.  

 

 14. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT.  Whenever the singular number is used 

herein, the same shall include the plural where appropriate, and the words of any gender shall 

include any other genders where appropriate.  Captions contained herein are inserted only for the 

purpose of convenient reference, and in no way define, limit or describe the scope of this 

Agreement or any part thereof.  

Page 133Item 20.



 

7 

 

 15. BINDING EFFECT.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 

benefit of the parties hereto and their respective personal representatives, successors and assigns. 

 

 16. COUNTERPARTS; FACSIMILE AND E-MAILED SIGNATURES.  This 

Agreement may be executed in two (2) or more counterparts each of which, upon execution and 

delivery as prescribed, shall be deemed to be an original for all purposes.  In proving this 

Agreement, it shall be necessary to account for only one such counterpart.  Buyer and Seller agree 

that e-mailed (.pdf) signatures will be binding on the parties.  

 

 17. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.  Time is of the essence of each provision of this 

Agreement and of all the conditions thereof.  

 

 18. REMEDIES.  Subject to the contingencies provided in this Agreement, if Buyer 

defaults and fails to carry out its obligations pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, the Seller 

shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and neither party to this Agreement shall have any 

further right or obligation to the other.  If Seller defaults and fails to carry out its obligations 

pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, Buyer shall have all rights and remedies available at law 

or in equity, including the right to seek specific performance of this Agreement.  

 

 19. MUTUAL COOPERATION.  Buyer and Seller will, in good faith, mutually 

cooperate with one another to the extent reasonably necessary to facilitate the consummation of 

the transactions described in this Agreement.  From time to time after the Closing, Buyer and Seller 

will execute, deliver, and acknowledge such further documents or instruments, and perform such 

further acts or deeds, as may be reasonably necessary to consummate the transactions described in 

this Agreement and carry out the purposes and intent of this Agreement.  

 

20. INTERPRETATION AND SEVERABILITY.  The provisions of this 

Agreement will be applied and interpreted in a manner consistent with each other so as to carry 

out the purposes and intent of the parties.  If, for any reason, any provision of this Agreement is 

determined to be unenforceable or invalid, that provision (or such part thereof as may be 

unenforceable or invalid) will be deemed severed from this Agreement, and the remaining 

provisions of this Agreement will be carried out with the same force and effect as if that provision 

(or such part thereof) had not been a part of this Agreement. 

  

21. BENEFIT.  This Agreement will inure to the benefit of and will be binding upon 

each of the parties and their respective successors and assigns. 

 

22. ASSIGNMENT.  Upon written notice to Seller, Buyer may assign this Agreement 

and its rights hereunder to any person or entity that is affiliated or associated with Buyer. 

 

23. GOVERNING LAW.  This Agreement will be construed and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Minnesota without regard to conflicts-of-laws principles 

that would require the application of any other law. 

 

Page 134Item 20.



 

8 

24. ATTORNEY FEES.  If either party defaults in its performance hereunder and the 

other party employs an attorney because of such default, the parties agree to pay, on demand, all 

costs, charges and expenses, including reasonable attorney and paralegal fees, incurred at any time 

by the prevailing party because of the default. 

 

25. NOTICES.  All notices, demands and communications provided for herein or 

made hereunder shall be deemed effective upon delivery by the other party, either by electronic 

mail, personal delivery or upon receipt if mailed first class with postage prepaid, addressed in each 

case as follows, until some other addresses shall have been designated in a written notice given in 

a like manner, and shall be deemed to have been given or made when emailed or mailed to the 

following addresses: 

 

Buyer:  City of Marshall 

  Attn: Sharon Hanson, City Administrator 

  344 W. Main Street 

  Marshall, MN 56258 

  sharon.hanson@ci.marshall.mn.us 

 

COPY:  Keller Williams Preferred Realty 

  Attn: Jana Reilly  

  504 Baseline Road 

  Marshall, MN 56258 

  janar@kw.com 

 

Seller:  Sandra K. Mosch 

  16502 E. Saguaro Blvd. 

  Fountain Hills, Az  85268 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

[the rest of this page intentionally left blank] 

  

Page 135Item 20.



 

9 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller and Buyer have executed this Agreement as of the 

Effective Date. 

  

BUYER: 

 

City of Marshall 
      a Minnesota Municipal Corporation 

 

 

Signed:  

 

Printed: Sharon Hanson   

 

Title:  City Administrator   

 

 

SELLER:  

 

Sandra K. Mosch, a Single Person 
 

 

Signed:       

 

Printed: Sandra K. Mosch   

 

 

Page 136Item 20.



 

10 

  

Exhibit A 

 

Legal description to be provided pursuant to a survey of the premises as described in Paragraph 1 

of the Agreement, Seller to obtain and pay for legal survey.  

 

Page 137Item 20.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Click or tap to enter a date. 

Category: COUNCIL REPORTS 

Type: INFO 

Subject: Commission/Board Liaison Reports 

Background 

Information: 

Byrnes - Fire Relief Association and Regional Development Commission  

Schafer – Airport Commission, Joint LEC Management Committee, MERIT Center Commission, 

SW Amateur Sports Commission 

Meister – Cable Commission, Community Services Advisory Board, Economic Development 

Authority 

Edblom – Planning Commission, Public Housing Commission 

DeCramer – Economic Development Authority, Marshall Municipal Utilities Commission, 

Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Commission 

Labat – Adult Community Center Commission, Convention & Visitors Bureau, Library Board, 

Marshall Area Transit Committee 

Lozinski – Joint LEC Management Committee, Police Advisory Board 

Fiscal Impact:  

Alternative/ 

Variations: 

 

Recommendations:  

 

Page 138Item 21.



Page 139Item 26.



Page 140Item 26.



City of Marshall, Minnesota
Cash & Investments

7/31/2021
 

Par Rate
CASH & INVESTMENTS:

Checking -Bremer 3,322,276.38 0.00%
Money Market - Bremer 8,296,994.38 0.02%
Money Market - Bank of the West 3,383,501.40 0.15%
Money Market - US Bank 956,125.23 0.03%
Money Market - Wells Fargo 528,379.82 0.03%
Certificate of Deposit (10/18/2020) 18 months 1,038,834.69 0.40%
Certificate of Deposit (10/18/2020) 18 months 1,038,834.69 0.40%
Certificate of Deposit (10/18/2020) 18 months 1,038,834.69 0.40%
Certificate of Deposit (6/3/2021) 6 months 5,000,000.00 0.18%
Certificate of Deposit (8/30/2021) 2 Years 245,000.00 1.75%
Certificate of Deposit (8/30/2021) 2 Years 245,000.00 1.85%
Certificate of Deposit (8/30/2021) 2 Years 245,000.00 1.75%
Certificate of Deposit (8/30/2021) 2 Years 245,000.00 1.75%
Certificate of Deposit (8/30/2021) 2 Years 245,000.00 1.75%
Certificate of Deposit (8/30/2021) 2 Years 245,000.00 1.85%
Certificate of Deposit (9/12/2022) 3 Years 245,000.00 1.80%
Certificate of Deposit (3/14/2022) 2 Years 6 months 245,000.00 1.70%
Certificate of Deposit (9/20/2021) 2 Years 245,000.00 1.70%
Certificate of Deposit (9/13/2021) 2 Years 245,000.00 1.80%
Investment Portfolio - General Fund 2,757,224.15
Investment Portfolio - WW/SW Capital Reserve 3,981,397.71
Investment Portfolio - Endowment Fund 2,084,433.85
Municipal 245,000.00
Municipal 330,000.00 0.14%
Municipal 325,000.00 0.24%
Municipal 110,000.00 0.45%
Municipal 140,000.00 0.24%
Municipal 275,000.00 0.20%
Municipal 545,000.00 0.18%
Municipal 100,000.00 0.13%
Municipal 100,000.00 0.15%
Municipal 115,000.00 0.14%
Municipal 250,000.00 0.10%
Municipal 100,000.00 0.10%
Municipal 100,000.00 0.12%
Municipal 200,000.00 0.15%
Municipal 105,000.00 0.16%
Municipal 125,000.00 0.20%
Municipal 100,000.00 0.27%
Municipal 110,000.00 0.21%
Municipal 690,000.00 0.20%
Agency 500,000.00 0.17%
Agency 500,000.00 0.30%
Municipal 100,000.00 0.23%
Agency 1,500,000.00 0.27%
Municipal 100,000.00 0.20%
Municipal 100,000.00 0.20%
Municipal 100,000.00 0.12%
Municipal 125,000.00 0.20%

TOTAL CASH & INVESTMENTS 42,966,836.99

 Cash
3,322,276.38

8%

Money Market
13,165,000.83

31%

Certificate of Deposit
10,566,504.07

24%

Managed Investments
8,823,055.71

20%

Municipal
4,590,000.00

11%

Agency
2,500,000.00

6%

CASH & INVESTMENTS

Page 141Item 26.



8/10/2021 11:00:57 AM Page 1 of 2

Council Check Report
Marshall, MN By Vendor Name

Date Range: 08/10/2021 - 08/12/2021

Vendor Number Vendor Name Payment Amount NumberPayment TypePayment Date Discount Amount

Bank Code: AP-REG AP

4549 A & B BUSINESS, INC 08/11/2021 7410435.06EFT 0.00

6631 AED PROFESSIONALS 08/10/2021 119570123.00Regular 0.00

4570 AMAZON 08/10/2021 119571227.04Regular 0.00

0707 BISBEE PLUMBING AND HEATING INC 08/10/2021 119572135.00Regular 0.00

6539 BREMER BANK CC 08/10/2021 11957314.94Regular 0.00

5351 CENGAGE LEARNING 08/10/2021 11957438.92Regular 0.00

0875 COMPUTER MAN INC 08/11/2021 7411164.85EFT 0.00

3819 DACOTAH PAPER CO 08/11/2021 7412431.35EFT 0.00

4552 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES 08/10/2021 1195752,040.97Regular 0.00

4526 LUANN ANDERSON 08/10/2021 11957732.48Regular 0.00

1545 LYON COUNTY HIGHWAY DEPARTMENT 08/11/2021 741333.49EFT 0.00

1604 MARSHALL AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE 08/11/2021 741430.00EFT 0.00

1633 MARSHALL MUNICIPAL UTILITIES 08/11/2021 74152,144.31EFT 0.00

5925 MIDWEST TAPE 08/10/2021 1195788,000.00Regular 0.00

2136 REDWOOD GAZETTE 08/10/2021 119579102.00Regular 0.00

6286 SCHWEGMAN'S CLEANERS, LLP 08/10/2021 11958068.50Regular 0.00

2318 SOUTHWEST SANITATION INC. 08/11/2021 741683.42EFT 0.00

4489 VERIZON WIRELESS 08/11/2021 741713,305.21EFT 0.00

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Discount

Payment
CountPayment Type

Bank Code AP Summary

Bank Drafts

EFT's

10

0

0

0

8

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

18 0.00

Payment

10,782.85

0.00

0.00

0.00

16,627.69

27,410.54

Payable
Count

25

0

0

0

10

35

Page 142Item 26.



Council Check Report Date Range: 08/10/2021 - 08/12/2021

Page 2 of 28/10/2021 11:00:57 AM

All Bank Codes Check Summary

Payment Type Discount
Payment

Count Payment
Payable

Count

Regular Checks

Manual Checks

Voided Checks

Bank Drafts

EFT's

10

0

0

0

8

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

0.00

18 0.00

10,782.85

0.00

0.00

0.00

16,627.69

27,410.54

25

0

0

0

10

35

Fund Name AmountPeriod

Fund Summary

999 POOLED CASH FUND 27,410.548/2021

27,410.54

Page 143Item 26.



Page 144Item 26.



Page 145Item 26.



Visit Marshall Board Meeting 

DATE: Wednesday August 18th, 2021 | LOCATION: Bello Cucina | TIME: 9:00 a.m. 

 
Members Present: Keith Petermeier, Luke Tietz, Kelly Loft, Russ Labat, Carol Purrington, Ty Brouwer, Joe Rein, Sarah 

Marczak, Steve Klinkhammer 

Members Absent: Caitlyn Sanow 

Staff Present: Cassi Wiess, Adri DeBoer 

Call to order August 18th at 9:02am 

Approvals 

 Additions to Agenda 

 Conflict of Interest 

 July Meeting minutes 
Keith motioned to approve, Luke 2nd. 
 
Financials 

 Review and acceptance of July Financials 
o Lodging came in at $9k from May (we budgeted 13k) 
o RBA got an additional check for 2k which will be on next financials making 7k 
o MACVB Membership 
o Storage items from Amazon 
o Community Support – Facebook and marketing will be under there 
o Made $1,000 on guides so if we need to print more. 
o Google DMO program – new this year helps us get all businesses correct 

Carol motioned to approve, Sarah 2nd. 
 
Action Items 

 Maternity Leave in Policy Manual  
o Once Employed at the CVB for 1 year, you will receive 12 weeks, 100% pay of maternity Leave 

starting the day you give birth. 
o Noted to add “Full time employees” and to include paternity. 

Ty motioned to approve, Keith 2nd. 

 Red Baron Move 
o Printer Quotes; attached 

 Marco $2,126 (purchased) - $84/month (lease – equipment, service, and supplies) 
 One Office $1,169 (purchased)  

Luke and Ty suggested leasing.  
Requesting lease from One Office and lease agreement from Marco. 

o Large wall calendar white board - $389.00  
Suggested to get one without logos. 
Ty motioned to approve, Keith 2nd. 

o Signage; (will have at meeting)  
 1st option – Cast Aluminum sign 88” $1,400 
 2nd Option – Dactronics video board $16,000 
 3rd Option – Dactronics video board $21,000 

Page 146Item 26.



o Phones 
 1 cordless phone - $22/month 

 Community Support  
o Light Up the Night  

 Suggested we do more marketing for them including print publications. Fall under Pilar 4 
($500 cash, $1,000 in-kind marketing) 

Luke motioned $500 cash, $1000 in-kind marketing, Ty 2nd. 
o Ice Dogs 

 December 3rd & 4th – hotels seemed a little low. Suggested Pilar 2 but as in-kind 
marketing. 

Carol motioned $500 in-kind marketing, Keith 2nd. 
o Hopfest 

 Suggested Pilar 3 or 4 for in-kind marketing.  
Ty motioned $200 in-kind marketing, Keith 2nd. 

o MHS Girls Hockey Craft Show 
 Suggested Pilar 1 or 2  

Keith motioned $200 in-kind marketing, Carol 2nd. 
o SW Challenge  

 Suggested Pilar 4 in cash (which goes to their booster club) 
Steve motioned $1,000 cash, Keith 2nd. 

o Wrestling  
 Suggested Pilar 3 or 4 in cash (which goes to their booster club) 

Joe motioned to approve $750 in cash, Carol 2nd. 
o Gun Show 

 Suggested in-kind marketing 
Luke motioned $500 cash and $1,000 in-kind marketing, Keith 2nd. 

 
Director Update 

 SMSU FAM Bus Tour  
o Trial for future  
o Long term goal is to-do these free of charge to businesses or tourism partners 

 Welcome Center @ Lyon Co Museum  
o Application is started for Explore Minnesota 
o We were able to get brochure stands for free 

 New visitor guides are here!  

 Office Move 
 
Board Update  

 Keith stated Fair was packed 

 Hotels had a nice weekend with the Fair in-town. 
 
Next Meeting Date 

 Wednesday September 15th 2021  
 

Adjourn at 10:21am 

Page 147Item 26.



 

Minutes 
                                                                                         Lyon County Transit Advisory Committee  

                                                               06/17/ 2021, 9:00 a.m.-10:00 a.m.  | ZOOM Meeting called to order at 9 a.m. 

CALL TO ORDER AND AGENDA APPROVAL 

A meeting of the Lyon County Transit Advisory Committee was held by Zoom meeting caused by COVID-19 

and social distancing.  The meeting was called to order by Ted.  The meeting began without a quorum. As the 

meeting progressed there was a quorum. 

ATTENDEES/NON ATTENDEES 

In attendance were:  Ted Stamp – chairperson; Chantelle Fogelson, Charlie Sanow, Russ Labat, Jessie Dehn, 

Cathleen Amick, Shelly Pflaum, Nick Leske, Carmen Hailey, Shannon Dorenkamper 

Absent were:   Jim Knudson, Molly Peterson, Melinda Estey                                                                                                                                                                                                

COMMENTS/SUGGESTIONS FROM EACH BOARD MEMBER 

Charlie appreciated all Cathleen has done for transportation as Cathleen moves on to a new position with 

MNDOT.  Cathleen mentioned that the community has also helped further transportation.  Ted is happy for her 

and says she will be missed.  Chantelle offered congratulations; along with Russ, who also said she will be 

missed.  Jessie also offered congratulations and good luck.  Ted talked about the PCA legislation which is in the 

house and senate bills.  Ted is beginning his yearly summer check of intersections and bus stops.  Jessie 

mentioned that the ramps and overlays will be done by the end of July.  There was a discussion about scooters. 

They are a trial through the City Council until the end of December. 

BUS SHELTER GRAPHICS SELECTION – RECOMMENDATION TO CITY COUNCIL 

Nick showed the shelter graphic on the screen.  A 3rd graphic was shown.  Nick spoke about the discussion from 

last month.  The final choice will go to city council.  The logo will go on 3 shelters: 4th and Lyon, South 4th, and 

Birch.  The rep for the graphics said the contrast is good for birds to avoid flying into the shelter. Jessie and 

Chantelle preferred the 2nd picture; Ted thought smaller letters could possibly be larger.  Shelly mentioned 

someone walking would be able to read the letters without difficulty.  Charlie moves to use Option 2, Jessie 2nds 

the motion, motion carries.  This will now go to the city council. 

RTCC UPDATE – ENCOURAGING NEWS 

RTCC quarterly meeting met yesterday.  The resource list was reviewed.  A provider survey is being sent out.  

The survey will be electronic and sent out as a Fillable PDF.  RTCC is waiting for the 3rd year contract.  It is 

supposed to be issued July 1.  The volunteer legislation definition and tax subtraction have been adopted into 

bills. Shelly says this sounds encouraging. 

STAFF UPDATES 

Orders for buses were opened two weeks ago.  Nick is putting numbers together for a Lyon county bus. Buses 

typically take 12-14 months to receive, once ordered. 
Page 148Item 26.



Page 2 

Hopefully September or October orders for the 5310 buses will open for 2021.  The CDC amended the mask 

mandate.  Wearing of masks outside of a transportation hub is no longer required. So far, the mandate has not 

changed for wearing masks indoors.  That target date is September 13.  This goes for any type of transportation.  

Still looking for part time bus and volunteer drivers.  Nick mentioned Cathleen will always be looking out for 

transportation, she will not be far away.  Cathleen showed the analysis on the screen.  The numbers are about 

the same as last month.  The same amount of funding is in place as pre-covid.  The cost per hour is slowly 

decreasing as ridership improves.  In some of the other communities, rides are being denied because the need 

cannot be met.  People are using Community Connections more and more.  The miles are up.  Nick mentioned 

mission and vision.  This is also being talked about at the other TACs.  Ted heard the mission and vision for 

RTCC and said he really liked it.  Cathleen asked Shelly to share the mission and vision for RTCC next month.  

Sunday July 4th no buses are running.  Monday, July 5th the buses will run, but offices are closed.  Jessie asked 

about meeting in person next time.  Nick said we can try that.  Those who are not comfortable can zoom as well.   

Ted closed the meeting at 9:49.  

NEXT MEETING Thursday July 15, 9:00 Community Room/Zoom. 

 

If you cannot attend, please send a representative in your place.  

Respectfully submitted: Carmen Hailey 

Page 149Item 26.



 

CITY OF MARSHALL 
AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

 
 

Meeting Date: Tuesday, August 24, 2021 

Category: CLOSED SESSION 

Type: INFO 

Subject: City Parking Lot Development  

Background 

Information: 

Recently city staff have been discussing interest in purchasing all or parts of the attached 
parking lots from Ralco, following their soon to be acquisition of the property.  
 
City staff is looking for direction on the merits of city interest and if the city should continue to 
pursue discussions.  
 
The purchase by Ralco of the property is not contingent upon the city’s interest and possible 
purchase. So the discussion will focus on public purpose.  
 
The City Council will adjourn into closed session pursuant to minn. stat. § 13d.05; 13d.05, subd. 
3 c. 
 

Fiscal Impact: Unknown 

Recommendations: Give city staff guidance on how the City Council would like to proceed with possible land 
purchase. 

 

Page 150Item 27.



 

Page 151Item 27.



2021 Regular Council Meeting Dates 

2nd and 4th Tuesday of each month 

5:30 P.M. 

City Hall, 344 West Main Street 

 

January 

1. January 12, 2021 
2. January 26, 2021 

February 

1. February 09, 2021 
2. February 23, 2021 

March 

1. March 09, 2021 
2. March 23, 2021 

April 

1. April 13, 2021 
2. April 27, 2021 

May 

1. May 11, 2021 
2. May 25, 2021 

June 

1. June 08, 2021 
2. June 22. 2021 

July 

1. July 13, 2021 
2. July 27, 2021 

August 

1. August 10, 2021 
2. August 24, 2021 

September 

1. September 14, 2021 
2. September 28, 2021 

October 

1. October 12, 2021 
2. October 26, 2021 

November 

1. November 09, 2021 
2. November 23, 2021 

December 

1. December 14, 2021 
2. December 28, 2021

 

2021 Uniform Election Dates 

 February 09, 2021 

 April 134, 2021 

 May 11, 2021 

 August 10, 2021 

 November 2, 2021

204C.03 PUBLIC MEETINGS PROHIBITED ON ELECTION DAY. 

Subdivision 1. School districts; counties; municipalities; special taxing districts. No special taxing district governing 

body, school board, county board of commissioners, city council, or town board of supervisors shall conduct a 

meeting between 6:00 p.m. and 8:00 p.m. on the day that an election is held within the boundaries of the special 

taxing district, school district, county, city, or town. As used in this subdivision, "special taxing district" has the 

meaning given in section 275.066. 

Page 152Item 28.



 

 

 

Upcoming Meetings 

August 
 08/24 Housing and Redevelopment Authority, 5:00 PM, City Hall 

 08/24 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall  

 08/25 Budget Work Session, 4:30 PM, City 

 

September 
 09/14 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall 

 09/28 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall  

 

October 
 10/12 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall 

 10/26 Regular Meeting, 5:30 PM, City Hall  

 

 

Page 153Item 28.


	Top
	Item 1.	Consider approval of the minutes of two work sessions held on August 3, August 10 and the regular meeting held on July 10, 2021.
	Agenda Memo
	2021_08_03 Work Session
	2021_08_10 Regular Meeting

	Item 2.	2025 College Drive Improvement Project (SP 4204-40) – Public Hearing.
	Public Hearing  Municipal Consent
	Overview
	Public hearing layout
	Municipal consent packet
	SP4204-40_Layout 1A 20210630
	MUNICIPAL CONSENT.WEB-614360-v22

	Item 3.	308 Athens Ave. – 1) Public Hearing regarding a home property tax abatement request 2) Consideration of a resolution approving home property tax abatement.
	Agenda Memo
	Resolution Number 21-061 ,Abatement, 308 Athens Ave
	Abatement Notice_Dopheide_308 Athens Ave

	Item 4.	310 Athens Ave. – 1) Public Hearing regarding a home property tax abatement request 2) Consideration of a resolution approving home property tax abatement.
	Agenda Memo
	Resolution Number 21-062 ,Abatement, 310 Athens Ave
	Abatement Notice_E&J Rentals_310 Athens Ave

	Item 5.	505 Darlene Dr. – 1) Public Hearing regarding a home property tax abatement request 2) Consideration of a resolution approving home property tax abatement.
	Agenda Memo
	Resolution Number 21-063 ,Abatement, 505 Darlene Dr
	Abatement Notice_E&J Rentals_505 Darlene Dr

	Item 6.	Project PK-001:  Independence Park Trail Replacement Project – Consider Award of Bids.
	Award of Bid (after opening)
	RESOLUTION NUMBER 21-XXX
	Pages from PK-001 - Plans

	Item 7.	Project Z87 - Diversion Channel Slope Repair and Sheet Piling Removal Project – Consider Award of Bids.
	Award of Bid (Z87)
	Bid Tab (Z87)

	Item 8.	Consider annual agreements of renewal with Lutheran Social Services & Marshall Area Senior Citizens for 2022
	AGENDA MEMO 
	MASC - City of Marshall 2022 Agreement
	LSS - ACC - 2022

	Item 9.	Consider LG220 Application for Exempt Permit for Buffalo Ridge Gobblers NWTF
	Agenda Memo
	LG220_BRG_Redacted

	Item 10.	Call for a Public Hearing Regarding Proposed Property Tax Abatement at 306 Athens Ave.
	Agenda Memo
	Abatement Notice_Rasmussen_306 Athens Ave

	Item 11.	Consider approval of a Temporary On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor License for Marshall Area Chamber of Commerce
	Agenda Memo
	Temp_MACC_Redacted

	Item 12.	Consider approval of a Temporary On-Sale Intoxicating Liquor License for the Marshall YMCA
	Agenda Memo
	Temp_YMCA_Redacted

	Item 13.	Consideration of temporary extension of alcohol license area for Brau Brothers Brewing Company, 1010 East Southview Drive for Hop Fest on September 10-11, 2021.
	Agenda Memo
	Temp. Extention_Hopfest

	Item 14.	Bills
	Agenda Memo - Bills &amp; Project Payments
	Council Check Report
	Project Summary for Council

	Item 15.	Consider approval of a Tax Increment Financing Resolution for Suite Liv’n.
	Council Memo_Suite Liv'_24821
	DOCSOPEN- 732322-v4-Marshall HRA TIF (Hsg) 6-1 City Resolution Approving Project Area Plan and TIF District and Plans Therefor and Approving Development Agreement

	Item 16.	MAFAC Community Request
	MAFAC Community Contribution Request
	MAFAC Letter to City 2021
	MAFAC 2020 Final Financials
	City Council 8.24.2021 slide show with budget (1) (1)

	Item 17.	Coalition of Greater Minnesota Cities Update
	Agenda Memo
	2021 CGMC Session Outcomes Chart
	Enviro Issues 7.1.21
	Save the Date - June 2021

	Item 18.	Enterprise Fleet Management 1) Review proposal 2) Consider Fleet Management Agreement with Enterprise.
	Agenda Memo
	City of Marshall Fleet Profile 8.19
	City of Marshall Fleet Analysis 8.19 including tax

	Item 19.	Consider Amendment to Purchasing Ordinance
	Agenda Item
	Ordinance Change

	Item 20.	Property Purchase Agreement - 800 N Hwy 59
	Purchase Agreement Agenda Item
	Purchase Agreement - City -Mosch 8-11-21 (with Seller's requested revisions)

	Item 21.	Commission/Board Liaison Reports
	Agenda Memo

	Item 26.	Information Only
	08_24 Permits
	Portfolio & Council
	Council Check Report-Library
	SKM_C25821081211160
	CVB_August Minutes
	6-17-2021 MAT TAC Minutes

	Item 27.	City Parking Lot Development
	Ralco parking lots 8-14-21 mtg
	8-24-21 Parking Lot Closed Session Map

	Item 28.	Upcoming Meetings
	2021 Regular Council Meeting Dates, Times and Location(07_13)
	Upcoming Meetings

	Bottom

